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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Huang Chih Shen (Chairman)
Huang Li Hun, Serlina

Independent Non-executive Directors

Wong Ting Kon

Pang Yuen Shan, Christina
Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence
Chan Tsang Mo

COMPANY SECRETARY
Yu Ka Gung (HKICPA)

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Wong Ting Kon (Chairman)
Pang Yuen Shan, Christina
Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence
Chan Tsang Mo

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence (Chairman)
Wong Ting Kon

Pang Yuen Shan, Christina

Chan Tsang Mo

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Pang Yuen Shan, Christina (Chairlady)
Wong Ting Kon

Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence

Chan Tsang Mo

CONFLICTS COMMITTEE

Wong Ting Kon (Chairman)

Pang Yuen Shan, Christina

Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence

Yip Yam Kuen (Resigned on 1 January 2025)
Chan Tsang Mo

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Huang Chih Shen
Huang Li Hun, Serlina
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AUDITOR
PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants and Registered PIE Auditor

LEGAL ADVISOR TO THE COMPANY
DeHeng Law Offices (Hong Kong) LLP

REGISTERED OFFICE

P. 0. Box 31119 Grand Pavilion
Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road
Grand Cayman, KY1-1205
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit 501, 5/F, Stelux House

698 Prince Edward Road East

San Po Kong, Kowloon

Hong Kong

HEAD OFFICE, HEADQUARTERS AND
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN

THE PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC OF CHINA (THE “PRC")
5/F., Block Two

No. 27 Huailin Road

Huaide Village, Humen Town

Dongguan City, the PRC

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Hang Seng Bank Limited

83 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Bank of China Tower

1 Garden Road

Hong Kong

HSBC

Commercial Banking

3/F, HSBC Mongkok Building
673 Nathan Road, Mongkok
Hong Kong
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited

PO Box 1093, Boundary Hall

Cricket Square, Grand Cayman

KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

PLACE OF LISTING

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)

STOCK CODE
540

COMPANY'S WEBSITE
www.speedy-global.com
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of the directors (the “Directors”)
of Speedy Global Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the audited consolidated results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group” or “Speedy Global”)
for the year ended 31 December 2024.

For the year 2024, the Group's revenue increased to approximately
HK$660.5 million, representing an increase of approximately 42.9% as
compared to the year 2023, while profit for the year attributable to
equity holders increased to approximately HK$16.9 million.

Apparel Supply Chain Servicing Business

The apparel supply chain servicing business which offers a wide
range of woven wear, cut-and-sewn knitwear and sweater knitwear
products to a number of owners or agents of global reputable brands
(the “Apparel Supply Chain Servicing Business”) continued to be the
core business of the Group. For the year 2024, revenue under Apparel
Supply Chain Servicing Business was approximately HK$660.5 million
(2023 HK$462.3 million) and profit attributable to Apparel Supply
Chain Servicing Business was approximately HK$16.9 million (2023:
loss HK$5.0 million). Being in line with our strategy to focus on our
strengths in product design and development, as well as quality
control and production management, we design, develop and produce
men’s and women'’s woven wear, cut-and-sewn knitwear and sweater
knitwear products to respond to constantly evolving consumer
preferences. An increase in revenue for the year 2024 was mainly due
to increase in sales from the existing customers.
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Looking ahead to 2025, the Group will continue to pay close attention
to the development of the domestic and international epidemic and
changes in the markets to agilely respond and take appropriate
actions.

In order to explore for more new opportunities with the existing and
potential customers, the Group will enhance product innovation
and creativity continuously. For production management, the Group
will continue to enhance the operating efficiency by simplifying the
production processes which results in a shorter product delivery
time. In addition, the Group will work closely with our customers to
consolidate the fabrication in order to obtain better material prices
with mass volume which will enhance our cost competitiveness.
Moreover, we will try to simplify the Group’s organisation structure
with each operating process in order to save costs.

We are still closely monitoring the property market to determine the
appropriate investment strategy for the Group’s Property Investment
and Development Business. We will seek any appropriate property
investment and development project if we believe that it can magnify
the Group's shareholders’ return.

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to extend my
sincere gratitude to all fellow directors, management and our staff
for their unwavering dedication and contribution to our Group's
development. | would also like to thank all of our shareholders, for
their trust and continuous support over a challenging year 2024.

Speedy Global Holdings Limited
Huang Chih Shen
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 March 2025
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

BE+-A=1+—-HILEE
For the year ended 31

December
—E-mEF =
2024
BHEBT
HK$ million
& Revenue 660.5 462.3 42.9%
EF Gross profit 81.4 39.3 107.1%
EFE Gross profit margin 12.3% 8.5% -
NAEETREA AT Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to
FRmF (EE) equity holders of the Company 16.9 (5.0) -
KARMEZEA AEML  Net profit/(loss) margin attributable to
Fom ), (EE) X equity holders of the Company 2.6% -1.1% -
FRARFEZFAA  Basic and diluted earnings/(losses) per
SRR, (E518) & share for profit/(loss) attributable to
FREAR#ERMN,  equity holders of the Company for
(B18E) (8RB T) the year (HK$ per share) 0.0282 (0.0083) -
R+=—A=+—8
As at 31 December
g £
2024
BHEBR
Financial Position HK$ million HK$ million
mENEEFE Net current assets 83.0 58.8 41.2%
BEMETE Total assets 283.3 261.0 8.5%
RITEE Bank borrowings 21.2 65.9 -67.8%
afEesE Total liabilities 197.2 191.4 3.0%
KRAREZFAA Equity attributable to equity holders of
fEIG = the Company 86.1 69.5 23.9%
R+t=A=+—8
As at 31 December
—E-F
Financial Statistics 2024
B & Current ratio’ 1.4 1.3
& FE B 5 Return on assets? 6.2% -1.7%
N EIE=E Return on equity? 21.7% -6.8%
B f& Lt % Gearing ratio* FEH n/a TE A n/a
FERERS(R) Inventory turnover days (days)® 38 40
FEWRR B RS (B ) Trade receivable turnover days (days)é 40 47
FERERAERE(B) Trade payable turnover days (days)’ 51 59

1. MBLLERERRDEERRDEE 1.

2. EEBBRESAARRRZFEAREENEF 2
(B8RP EELTE  BRIA100%

3. BABRIBESH AR R ERITEABEFENEF, 3
(E18) B P25 - BRIA100%

4. BELEASNRITES VHENREREES 4
BERRERREEEBY RERRTFR R ERERE
I LA100%

5. FERAERBHEERFATHFEEARREERE 5.
BERUZERBAE

6. EUYSRFEAEHEESERFATHRURZREK 6
EEBREE BRUAZFREGE

7. ENEREAEHEESRFATHERNRRGREE 7.
A BRAZEREGE

Current ratio = current assets/current liabilities

Return on assets = profit/(loss) for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Company/average total assets x 100%

Return on equity = profit/(loss) for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Company/average total equity x 100%

Gearing ratio = Bank borrowings, finance payables and lease liabilities net of cash
and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits/total equity x 100%

Inventory turnover days = average inventory balance/cost of sales for the year x
number of days for the year

Trade receivable turnover days = average trade and bills receivable/revenue for the
year x number of days for the year

Trade payable turnover days = average trade payable/cost of sales for the year x
number of days for the year
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BZ+-A=1+—-RHILEE
Year ended 31 December

FHEIT —E-mE —FT-=F —FT-—&F —FT-—%
in HK$'000 2024 2023 2022 2021
EF RESULTS
g Revenue 660,549 462,331 561,797 750,474 685,688
EF Gross profit 81,413 39,323 42,597 48,795 59,982
BrPT1S A Profit/(loss) before income tax
wH (E8) 23,542 (5,323) (32,049) (38,302) (153,025)
FrigHt Income tax (expense)/credit
(%) #B%
(6,641) 373 (2,409) 7,028 4,176
FREF Profit/(loss) for the year
(B#E) 16,901 (4,950) (34,458) (31,274) (148,849)
Rt+t=—HA=+-—-H
At 31 December
FETT —ENE == —E-C
in HK$'000 2024 2022
BEERER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BERASE Total assets 283,310 260,961 319,857 437,268 497,153
BEBE Total liabilities 197,192 191,426 244,426 316,560 346,822
BEFE Net assets 86,118 69,535 75,431 120,708 150,331
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group focuses on providing one stop solution to our customers
by the provision of apparel supply chain services including product
design and development, fashion trend ascertaining and sampling,
raw material sourcing, production order and merchandise sourcing
management, quality control, packaging, inventory management and
logistics management.

B %5 21 B8 FINANCIAL REVIEW
BE+t-—HA=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-mE -
2024 2023
BEAR BEEAR
HK$ million HK$ million
g Revenue 660.5 4623
EA Gross profit 81.4 39.3
KATIRERTTB ARG Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to
FrEFl, (&EE) equity holders of the Company 16.9 (5.0)
RZZT W FE - E®MN4A2.9% = 4 In 2024, the revenue increased by 42.9% to approximately HK$660.5

660,500,0007% 7T ( =& = = 4F : 462,300,000/
o) cAEEKRREMETEZHRKEIERR
B SHE L NPT ER -

E A3 HN107.1% % #)81,400,000/8 7T ( = F
— =%:39,300,000 L) HEEHRKE

TERPMHEREREM-ENEEMEY
123 (ZZE-=%:85%) TEZREARASE

BR T _MEETARNRANER - AEE
B [E KB E W R A B B e AN ER A0 HE Bt -

T M AP RIS A8 £916,900,00078
7T (ZZE =4 : J%E185,000,000% 7T ) % &
HIEAR T _FORKEETBEFFMNHE
FIEIRAN : R (ARSI A R E HaR AR I 5E -
BHRBEKANTE-

HEREHMAX

HEREHAXTIZERRN T _MFEL
HEEEmAHNEEENEETE A
RX kB ZERT - HERZHASIHIED
1,200,000/ 7T ( ==& = =% : 1,500,000/ 7T )
TZEARBEEMS REERSIRD -

million (2023: HK$462.3 million). The increase in the Group’s revenue
was mainly due to the increase in sales from the major customers.

Gross profit increased by 107.1% to approximately HK$81.4 million
(2023: HK$39.3 million) mainly due to the increase in sale orders
from the major customers. The gross profit margin increased
to approximately 12.3% (2023: 8.5%), mainly attributable to the
implementation of effective cost control of the Group during the year
2024. The management of the Group will continue to implement cost-
saving measures where appropriate.

During the year 2024, we recorded a net profit of approximately
HK$16.9 million (2023: net loss of HK$5.0 million). Such change was
mainly attributable to (i) the increase in sale orders from the major
customers; and (i) the decrease in finance cost as a result of the
effective implementation of cost control measure of the Group during
the year 2024.

SELLING AND MARKETING EXPENSES

Selling and marketing expenses mainly represented employees’ wages
for salesmen, commission expenses and travelling expenses related
to sales of goods incurred during the year 2024. Selling and marketing
expenses decreased to approximately HK$1.2 million (2023: HK$1.5
million) mainly due to the decrease in sales commission and travelling
expenses.

F#R o ANNUAL REPORT 2024 09
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Administrative expenses mainly represented the employee benefit
expenses for our management, finance and administrative personnel,
entertainment expenses, rental expenses for our office premises,
depreciation and travelling expenses. Administrative expenses
increased to approximately HK$49.0 million (2023: HK$40.3 million)
mainly due to the increase of employee benefits expense from
approximately HK$16.0 million for the year 2023 to approximately
HK$27.2 million during the year 2024.

Other losses — net of approximately HK$6.1 million during the year
2024 (2023: Other gains — net HK$0.5 million) mainly comprised losses
on disposal of a subsidiary of approximately HK$4.0 million, donation
of approximately HK$1.0 million and foreign exchange losses — net of
approximately HK$0.7 million.

Finance income decreased by 24.3% to approximately HK$2.4 million
for the year 2024 (2023: HK$3.2 million) primarily due to the decrease
in interest income as a result of the decrease in short-term deposits.

Finance costs decreased by 44.6% to approximately HK$4.0 million
for the year 2024 (2023: HK$7.1 million). Finance costs for the year
2024 mainly represented interest expense on bank borrowings. The
decrease in the interest expense on bank borrowings was primarily
due to settlement of bank borrowing during the year 2024.

Income tax expense/(credit) mainly represented amounts of current
income tax paid or payable and the deferred income tax at the
applicable tax rates in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations in Hong Kong, the PRC and Cambodia. During the year
2024, income tax expense was approximately HK$6.6 million (2023:
income tax credit of HK$0.4 million).

Inventories balance increased from approximately HK$43.3 million
as at 31 December 2023 to approximately HK$75.9 million as at 31
December 2024 due to the increase in sales during the year 2024. The
decrease in the inventory turnover days (2024: 38 days; 2023: 40 days)
was because of faster delivery goods to the customers during the year
2024.
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Trade receivables increased by HK$40.2 million to approximately
HK$91.8 million as at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: HK$51.6
million) which is in line with the increase in revenue during the year
2024.

We generally grant customers a credit period of 30 to 90 days and
they are generally required to settle their trade balances with us by
bank transfer or by cheque.

Our trade receivables turnover days for the year 2024 were 40 days
(2023: 47 days). The decrease in turnover days was because of faster
settlement from the customers during the year 2024.

Prepayment decreased by approximately HK$5.6 million to
approximately HK$10.7 million as at 31 December 2024 (31 December
2023: HK$16.3 million) mainly because the decrease in prepayment for
purchase of raw materials and subcontractors.

Trade payables increase from HK$69.5 million as at 31 December 2023
to HK$93.6 million as 31 December 2024 because more purchases
were made before the current year end.

We generally enjoy a credit term of up to 90 days to settle payment.
Our trade payables turnover days for the year 2024 were 51 days
(2023: 59 days). The decrease in turnover days was because of earlier
payments to the suppliers during the year 2024.

The Group had bank borrowings as at 31 December 2024 in the sum
of approximately HK$21.1 million which are denominated in HKS. All
bank borrowings were made from banks in Hong Kong at floating
interest rates. As at 31 December 2024, approximately HK$16.5 million
was repayable within one year, approximately HK$0.6 million was
repayable between one to two years, approximately HK$2.0 million
was repayable between two to five years, approximately HK$2.0
million was repayable over five years and all subject to repayable
on demand clauses. No financial instruments were used for hedging
purposes, nor were there any foreign currency net investments
hedged by current borrowings and/or other hedging instruments.
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During the year 2024, the Group maintained a healthy liquidity
position, with working capital financed by both internal resources
and bank borrowings. As at 31 December 2024, our short-term bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately
HK$87.3 million, of which approximately HK$65.2 million denominated
in HK$, approximately HK$16.2 million in Renminbi, approximately
HK$5.3 million in USD and approximately HK$0.6 million in other
currencies. As at 31 December 2024, the current ratio of the Group
was 1.4 (31 December 2023: 1.3). The Group was in a strong net cash
position as at 31 December 2024. The Group has sufficient and readily
available finance resources for general working capital requirement
and foreseeable capital expenditure.

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the period under review. The Group strives
to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit
assessments and evaluations of the financial status of its customers.
To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the Group's
liquidity position to ensure that sufficient financial resources are
available in order to meet its funding requirements and commitment
timely.

Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations.

Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions
or recognised assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency that
is not the entity’'s functional currency. For group companies with
Renminbi or US dollars as their functional currency, foreign exchange
risk arises primarily from translation of amounts denominated in
foreign currencies. The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by
closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates.

The Group has investments in the PRC, whose net assets are exposed
to foreign currency translation risk. Currency exposure arising from
the net assets of the Group’s investments in the PRC can be managed
through dividends paid outside the PRC.

During the year 2024, the Group did not commit to any financial
instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk.
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There has been no material change in the capital structure of the
Company during the year 2024. The capital of the Company comprises
ordinary shares and other reserves.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not have any significant
capital commitments (31 December 2023: Nil).

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had a total of 138 employees,
including the executive Directors. Total staff costs (including
Directors’ emoluments) for the year ended 31 December 2024
were approximately HK$69.6 million, as compared to approximately
HK$60.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2023. Remuneration
is determined with reference to market norms as well as individual
employees’ performance, qualification and experience.

On top of basic salaries, bonuses may be paid with reference to the
Group's performance as well as individual’s performance. Other staff
benefits include contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme in Hong Kong and the provision of pension funds,
medical insurance, unemployment insurance and other relevant
insurance for employees who are employed by our Group pursuant
to the PRC and Cambodia rules and regulations and the prevailing
regulatory requirements.

The salaries and benefits of the Group’s employees are kept
at a competitive level and employees are rewarded on a
performance-related basis within the general framework of the
Group's salary and bonus system, which is reviewed annually. The
Group also operates a share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 26 May 2022 where options to subscribe for shares may be granted
to the Directors and employees of the Group.

During the year 2024, the Group did not hold any significant
investment in equity interest in any other company.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not have plan for material
investments and capital assets.



BEE AR

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEMBLAR BMEQAARGERE

MERKREREE

R-Z-MERA+=H KEETZHER
— £ ¥ 7 8 =J7Team Can Enterprise Limited
HEARRQEREEEN B R BAgle Sweater
(Cambodia) Co., Ltd.AJ100%E 17D KRB
£ 3,300,000 f%fl:"ﬁ'%%ﬁaﬁ’\:;f:@i
NA=+THAZEXK -BHEFE B2HEAA
HAE-_FT_MNFRAA+= H&_7_E¢ﬂ
A=Z+HK QM-

B EXFIHEEEN RZE_NF  AEEW
EIMEMEBEMBAR BEARLRAEED
¥NEARERHE-

BEEEH

RZF-_MF+_A=1t—H AKERE
THEERAR (T _=F+-_A=+—8:
®)-

i

BETNBFABRT ARaMIZEREERE
MARRENTEE (FERARaBHA -
T——F+ A=+ —ENEKRER [EEhR
PR R —F i —55) -

HAREE

RIB-ME+-A=+—08 ~KEBEHEE
fAIEAXKAREE-

14 AEEIRTK

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

On 13 May 2024, the Group entered into an agreement to dispose
100% of the issued shares of Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Co., Ltd.,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, to Team Can
Enterprise Limited, an independent third party at a consideration of
HK$3,300,000. The disposal completed on 30 September 2024. For
details, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 13 May
2024 and 30 September 2024.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any other material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
during the year 2024.

CHARGE OF ASSETS

There was no charge on the Group’s assets as at 31 December 2024
(31 December 2023: Nil).

NEW BUSINESS OPPORTUNITY

There was no New Business Opportunity (as defined in the Company’s
prospectus dated 31 December 2012 headed “Relationship with
Controlling Shareholders — New Business Opportunity”) referred by
the controlling shareholders of the Company as provided under the
non-competition undertaking.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as of 31 December
2024.
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EESEENEEEENEEER - NRYE  OurBoard is responsible and has general powers for the management
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Name

HITES

BEBLE
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EFeRERAFELEEAFRBAEMNE  and conduct of the business. The following table sets forth information

regarding members of the Board during the year and up to the date of
this annual report:

Z{EHH FiR

Appointment Date Age
Executive Directors
Mr. Huang Chih Shen —E——FNAA=+NA

28 September 2011 54
Ms. Huang Li Hun, Serlina —E-FTF-A+WH

14 February 2020 56
Independent
Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Ting Kon —E——F+-AF=-+WMH

24 December 2012 54
Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina —E-——F+-A=+WH

24 December 2012 52
Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence —E——H+-HA=Z+mWEAH

24 December 2012 77
Mr. Chan Tsang Mo —E-=F\A=+—H

31 August 2023 40
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Mr. Huang Chih Shen (ZE&R), aged 54, is the chairman, chief
executive officer and an executive Director of the Company, and one
of the founders of the Group. He was appointed as the Director with
effect from 28 September 2011. Mr. Huang is primarily responsible for
the overall management, operations and the charting and reviewing
of corporate directions and strategies of the Group. Mr. Huang has
approximately 27 years of experience in the business of the garment
industry. Prior to establishing the Group in 2003, he has been a
director of Shing Fun Knitting & Garment Limited, a related company,
since March 1994. Mr. Huang is one of the founders and has been
the director of Speedy Garment Manufacturing (Hong Kong) Company
Limited (“Speedy Garment”), an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, since its incorporation in 2004. Furthermore, he
has been the director of most of the Group's subsidiaries, including
Jointex Garment Manufacturing Limited ("Jointex Garment”),
Dongguan Speedy Garment Manufacturing Company Limited (“Speedy
Dongguan”), Pageant Enterprise (Hong Kong) Limited (“Pageant”) and
Well Faith Enterprise Limited (“Well Faith”). Mr. Huang was appointed
as a Honorary President of the Hong Kong Association of Youth
Development since November 2017. Mr. Huang was a director of
2010/2011 the 43rd, an advisor of 2011/2012 the 44th, 2012/2013 the
45th, 2013/2014 the 46th, 2014/2015 the 47th and 2015/2016 the 48th
of Yan Chai Hospital Board Office. Mr. Huang received his secondary
school education in Hong Kong until March 1986. As at 31 December
2024, Mr. Huang held 100% interest in Sky Halo Holdings Limited (“Sky
Halo"), our corporate Controlling Shareholder.
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Ms. Huang Li Hun, Serlina (EE1), aged 56, is appointed as
our executive Director on 14 February 2020. She has over 26 years
of experience in the textile industry and the garment field in Hong
Kong, the PRC, Europe and the United States of America. Ms. Huang
graduated from the Lingnan University in Hong Kong in 1993 with a
Higher Diploma in Banking & Finance and subsequently obtained a
bachelor’s degree in Business Administration in 1996. She joined Well
Faith, a subsidiary of the Company, in April 2016 and is currently the
managing director of Well Faith. She is responsible for managing Well
Faith’s business, including sales and marketing. Ms. Huang is the sister
of Mr. Huang Chih Shen, an executive Director and the controlling
shareholder of the Company. As at 31 December 2024, Ms. Huang held
approximately 0.02% interest in the Company.

Mr. Wong Ting Kon (EE#), aged 54, is an independent
non-executive Director. He joined the Group on 24 December 2012
when he was appointed as an independent non-executive Director. He
holds a bachelor’'s degree in commerce from University of windsor,
Canada. Mr. Wong is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) of
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. Wong is currently a partner of Chan Wong & Company C.PA.

Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina (Z %), aged 52, is an
independent non-executive Director. She joined the Group on
24 December 2012 when she was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director. She obtained a bachelor degree in Laws from
City University of Hong Kong in 1995 and a master degree of Laws in
International & Commercial Law from University of Sheffield in 1996.
Ms. Pang was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1999 and is
currently a solicitor and work in private practice in Hong Kong. From
August 2024 to March 2025, Ms. Pang served as an independent non-
executive director of G.A. Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 08126).

Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence (R %), aged 77, is
an independent non-executive Director. He joined the Group on
24 December 2012 when he was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director. Mr. Chang obtained a bachelor's degree in
arts from the University of Hong Kong in November 1970, a diploma
in education from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in December
1976 and a master’s degree in education from Harvard University in
June 1981. Mr. Chang was the principal of Jockey Club Ti-I College
from January 1989 to August 2000. Mr. Chang was the headmaster
of Diocesan Boys' School from September 2000 to August 2012. Mr.
Chang is also at present a freelance writer for Master — insight.
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Mr. Chan Tsang Mo (FREE ), aged 40, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in August 2023. Mr. Chan has over
10 years of finance, accounting and treasury experience.

Mr. Chan served as the company secretary of Century Energy
International Holdings Limited (formerly known as China Oil Gangran
Energy Group Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8132), the shares of
which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, from April 2020 to
August 2021. From September 2022 to July 2023, Mr. Chan served as
an independent non-executive director of Hong Wei (Asia) Holdings
Company Limited (stock code: 8191), the shares of which are listed
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. Since August 2017, he has been
a director of Morton Professional Services Limited and is responsible
for advising on company formation, business establishments and
legal compliance related matters. Since February 2018, Mr. Chan
was appointed as the company secretary of China International
Development Corporation Limited (formerly known as Ascent
International Holdings Limited) (stock code: 264), the shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan was
appointed as the company secretary of Yues International Holdings
Group Limited (stock code: 1529), the shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, with effect from June 2022.
Since January 2019, Mr. Chan has been an independent non-executive
director of Geotech Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 1707), a company whose
issued shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Since 1 April 2023, Mr. Chan served as an independent non-executive
director of Sing Lee Software (Group) Limited (stock code: 8076), the
shares of which are listed on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan has been admitted as a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants in January 2010 and is currently
a practicing member of the Accounting and Financial Reporting
Council. Mr. Chan graduated from the City University of Hong Kong
with a Bachelor of Business Administration degree in Accountancy in
November 2006.

Mr. Yu Ka Gung (R EBR) , aged 38, the company secretary and the
chief financial officer of the Company, is in charge of planning and
management of accounting, finance related matters and corporate
reporting of the Group. Mr. Yu joined the Group in October 2017 as
the financial controller of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Yu had worked as financial controller in a listed
company in Hong Kong. He has more than 10 years of experience
working in accounting, financial management and auditing. Mr. Yu
obtained a bachelor's degree in Accounting from Edinburgh Napier
University and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
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Adapting and adhering to recognised standards of corporate
governance principles and practices has always been one of the top
priorities of the Company. The Board believes that good corporate
governance is one of the key areas that lead to the success of the
Company and in balancing the interests of shareholders, customers
and employees, and the Board is devoted to ongoing enhancements
of the efficiency and effectiveness of such principles and practices.

During the year 2024, the Company had complied with the code
provisions (the “Code Provisions”) set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code") contained in Part 2 of Appendix C1 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), except for the following deviations
below:

Code Provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. The roles of the chairman and the chief executive
officer of the Company are not separate and both are performed by
Mr. Huang Chih Shen. Since the Directors meet regularly to consider
major matters affecting the operations of the Company, the Directors
consider that this structure will not impair the balance of power
and authority between the Directors and the management of the
Company and believe that this structure will enable the Company to
make and implement decisions promptly and efficiently. The Company
understands the importance to comply with the Code Provision C.2.1
and will continue to consider the feasibility of appointing a separate
chief executive officer.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for
securities transactions. All Directors confirmed that, after specific
enquiries were made by the Company, they have complied with the
required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code throughout
the period from 1 January 2024 to the date of the Board meeting
approving the annual results announcement for the year 2024.

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by relevant employees on terms no less exacting than
the required standard set out in the Model Code. All the relevant
employees who, because of office or employment, are likely to be
in possession of inside information in relation to the Company’s
securities has been requested to follow such code when dealing in
the securities of the Company.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board currently comprises six Directors, of which two are
executive Directors, and four are independent non-executive Directors.
The composition of the Board and the biographical details of each
Director are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Profile” on pages 15 to 18 of this annual report.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board discusses the overall strategy as well as the operational
and financial performance of the Company. Other Board meetings
will be held when necessary. Such Board meetings involve the active
participation, either in person or through other electronic means of
communication, of a majority of Directors. The table below sets out
the attendance of all members of the Board at the meetings held
during the year 2024:

BEEHER
Directors’

Attendance
Exgel
Board Meeting

BITES: Executive Directors:

BEREE (FEFITEAAH) Mr. Huang Chih Shen (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) 6/6
EBRIEXT Ms. Huang Li Hun, Serlina 6/6
BYKBTES: Independent Non Executive Directors:

ETEHEE Mr. Wong Ting Kon 6/6
T4 Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 6/6
SRIVEE SR A& Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 6/6
PRI H LA Mr. Chan Tsang Mo 6/6

MEBIIFATEEBNEESTGHNE AR
HBiE—F mMEERfEtAE EHRAIE31002)
FREMEEREERE-

PREFNEFEFAERLEAMEZNE
HEE BN BRELEMARERBNIARE
g E.:%;Eihﬁﬁﬁﬁi?fﬁ WAEEEEH
ANEFEERARINANEMEIE-

There are currently four independent non-executive Directors who
represent over one half of the Board and Mr. Wong Ting Kon has the
appropriate professional qualifications as required by the Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.

Appropriate notices are given to all Directors in advance for attending
regular and other Board meetings. Meeting agendas and other
relevant information are provided to the Directors in advance of Board
meetings. All Directors are consulted to include additional matters in
the agenda for Board meetings.
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Directors have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary with a view to ensuring that Board procedures, and all
applicable rules and regulations, are followed.

Both draft and final versions of the minutes are sent to all Directors
for their comment and records. Minutes of Board meetings are kept by
the company secretary and such minutes are open for inspection at
any reasonable time on reasonable prior notice by any Director.

All Directors attended the annual general meeting of the Company on
24 May 2024.

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and managing
the Company’s affairs, including the responsibilities for the
adoption of long term strategies and appointing and supervising
senior management to ensure that the operation of the Group
is conducted in accordance with the objective of the Group. The
Board is also responsible for determining the Company’s corporate
governance policies which include: (i) development and review of
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
make recommendation; (ii) review and monitoring of the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; (iii) review and monitor the issuer’'s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
(iv) develop, review and monitoring of the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and
(V) review of the Company’s disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for guiding
and monitoring the Company in discharging its duties, certain
responsibilities are delegated to various Board committees which
have been established by the Board to deal with different aspects of
the Company'’s affairs. Unless otherwise specified in their respective
written terms of reference as approved by the Board, these Board
committees are governed by the Company’s articles of association
as well as the Board’s policies and practices (in so far as the same
are not in conflict with the provisions contained in the articles of
association). With the new composition of members of the nomination
committee, remuneration committee, audit committee and conflicts
committee, the independent non-executive Directors will be able to
effectively devote their time to perform the duties required by the
respective Board committees.
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The Board has also delegated the responsibility of implementing
its strategies and the day-to-day operation to the management of
the Company under the leadership of the executive Directors. Clear
guidance has been made as to the matters that should be reserved to
the Board for its decision which include matters on, inter alia, capital,
finance and financial reporting, internal controls, communication
with shareholders, Board membership, delegation of authority and
corporate governance.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group. The financial statements set out on pages 89 to
172 were prepared on the basis set out in Note 2.1 to the financial
statements. Financial results of the Group are announced in a timely
manner in accordance with statutory and/or regulatory requirements.
The declaration of reporting responsibility issued by the external
auditors of the Company on the Company’s financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 81 to 88 of this
annual report.

Throughout the year 2024, the Company complied with Rules 3.10(1),
(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. Except as disclosed in the section
“Directors and Senior Management Profile” above, there is no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship among
members of the Board.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent in accordance with the guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Each Director upon their respective appointment received relevant
guideline materials and attends a training regarding the duties and
responsibilities of being a Director, the relevant laws and regulations
applicable to the Directors, duty of disclosure of interest of the Group.
Continuing briefings and professional development to Directors will be
arranged whenever necessary.

During the year 2024, the Directors have attended external training
and/or seminars and have read materials covering topics such as
business and performance of the Company and accounting issues.
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All independent non-executive Directors have entered into letters of
appointment with the Company for a specific term of three years,
subject to re-election.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, at each
annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being
shall retire from office by rotation. However, if the number of Directors
is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one third shall be the retiring Directors. The Directors who shall retire
in each year will be those who have been the longest in the office
since their last re-election or appointment, but as for persons who
became or were last re-elected as Directors on the same day, those
who should retire will (unless they otherwise agree among themselves)
be determined by lot. Such retiring Directors may, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting. All Directors
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until
the first general meeting of shareholders after their appointment and
be subject to re-election at such meeting and all Directors appointed
by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

The Company established a nomination committee on 24 December
2012 with written terms of reference in compliance with Code
Provisions B.3.1. Its terms of reference are available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the nomination committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular basis; to
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members; to
assess the independence of the independent non-executive Directors;
and to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors. The
nomination committee comprises four independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence (Chairman),
Mr. Wong Ting Kon, Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina and Mr. Chan Tsang
Mo.
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During the year 2024, two meetings of the nomination committee were
held and the attendance records of individual committee members are
as follows:

HE/
ETERRE

Number of
Meetings
Attended/Held

SRS A Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 2/2
EERLE Mr. Wong Ting Kon 2/2
EZG5] EeGan Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 2/2
PR 38 SR A Mr. Chan Tsang Mo 2/2
RERRF Nomination Procedure
RYEEENEE NER REZZELELE When identifying suitable candidates for directorship, the nomination
BEBFEANRE B HEBES FEHM  committee will carry out the selection process by making reference
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to the skills, experience, education background, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, and also the Company’s needs and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations required for the positions.
All candidates must be able to meet the standards as set forth in
Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be
appointed as an independent non-executive Director should also meet
the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Qualified candidates will then be recommended to the Board for
approval.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy in September
2013 and amended the policy in December 2018. Pursuant to the
board diversity policy, the nomination committee will carry out
the selection process by making reference to a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
background and ethnicity, in addition to educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. If it
involves the appointment of an independent non-executive director
of the Board, the Nomination Committee shall also consider the
perspectives, skills and experience that the person can bring to the
Board, and how the person would contribute to the diversity of the
Board. The Company shall take into account its own business model
and specific needs, and disclose the rationale for the factors it uses
for this purpose. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

e SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The following is a chart showing the diversity profile of the Board as at
the date of this annual report:

EIN
Chinese

e Fiean BEARRT]
Ethnicity Age Group #FE (FH)
Directorship with
the Company
(Number of years)

For the purpose of implementation of the board diversity policy, the
following measurable objectives were adopted and achieved:

(1) at least one third of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive directors;

(2) at least one of the members of the Board shall have obtained
accounting or other professional qualifications;

(3) atleast 40% of the members of the Board shall have more than
20 years of experience in the garment industry and shall have
China-related work experience;

(4) at least one of the members of the Board shall have property
investment and development experience; and

(5) at least one director of a different gender to the Board.

WORKFORCE DIVERSITY

The Company also considers relevant factors in the recruitment and
selection of key management and other personnel, and strives to
maintain gender diversity. As at 31 December 2024, the male and
female of all staff (including the senior management) of the Company
accounted 40.6% and 59.4% respectively. The Company will continue
to maintain gender diversity among all its staff as the goal and review
its policies on employee recruitment and management in a timely
manner in accordance with the Company'’s business development and
needs.
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The Company established a remuneration committee on 24 December
2012 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.25
and 3.26 of the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of the
remuneration committee was adopted in compliance with Code
Provisions E.1.2. Its terms of reference are available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to make
recommendation to the Board on the overall remuneration policy
and structure relating to all Directors and senior management of
the Group, assess performance of executive directors, approve the
terms of executive directors’ service contracts, review and approve
share option scheme and to ensure none of the Directors determine
their own remuneration. The emoluments of executive Directors are
determined based on the skills, knowledge, individual performance as
well as contributions, the scope of responsibility and accountability of
such Directors, taking into consideration the Company’s performance
and prevailing market conditions. The remuneration policy of
independent non-executive Directors is to ensure that they are
adequately compensated for their efforts and time dedicated to the
Company's affairs including their participation in respective Board
committees. The emoluments of independent non-executive Directors
are determined with reference to their skills, experience, knowledge,
duties and market trends. The remuneration committee consists of
four independent non-executive Directors namely Ms. Pang Yuen Shan,
Christina (Chairlady), Mr. Wong Ting Kon, Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung,
Terence and Mr. Chan Tsang Mo.

Details of remuneration of Directors are set out in Note 32 to the
financial statements.

During the year 2024, two meetings of the remuneration committee
was held to, amongst others, assess performance of executive
directors, approve terms of the executive directors’ service contracts,
and review and approve the remuneration packages of the Directors
and senior management of the Company. The attendance records of
individual committee members are as follows:

EZ Gk peean Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 2/2
BEEBRLE Mr. Wong Ting Kon 2/2
SR MEE ST A Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 2/2
PRI LA Mr. Chan Tsang Mo 2/2
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 24 December 2012
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 and Rule
3.22 of the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of the audit
committee was adopted in compliance with Code Provisions D.3.3
to D.3.7. Its terms of reference are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the audit committee, among other things,
are to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditors, review the financial
statements and the effectiveness of Company's internal audit function
and provide material advice in respect of financial reporting, and
oversee risk management and internal control procedures of the
Company at least annually. The audit committee consists of four
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Ting Kon
(Chairman), Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina, Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung,
Terence and Mr. Chan Tsang Mo.

The audit committee reports to the Board and has held
regular meetings since its establishment to review and make
recommendations to improve the Group’s financial reporting process
and internal controls.

During the year 2024, three audit committee meetings were held to
review and discuss with the management of the Company and the
external auditors the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, as well as internal controls and other financial reporting
matters. The attendance records of individual committee members are
set out below:

HES

BITERRE

Number of

Meetings

Attended/Held

EERLE Mr. Wong Ting Kon 3/3
Z A+ Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 3/3
SR S A Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 3/3
PRI LA Mr. Chan Tsang Mo 3/3

RIE-ZNF EEFLEBZZESLE .
L BHIS B RIMNEXEE AL E TR R
fi# o

During the year 2024, the Board has not taken a different view from
the audit committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of external auditors.
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CONFLICTS COMMITTEE

The Company established a conflicts committee on 24 December
2012. The primary duties of the conflicts committee are to monitor
and identify actual or potential issues of conflict of interests among
the Company’s Controlling Shareholders, and to ensure that the
Controlling Shareholders involving such conflicting interests would
take appropriate precautions and abstain from making decisions in
connection with such issues. The conflicts committee consists of four
independent non-executive Directors.

During the year 2024, two meetings of the conflicts committee were
held to, amongst others, review the deed of non-competition as
amended by the supplemental deed of non-competition undertakings
(the "Deed of Non-competition”) in respect of the Controlling
Shareholders to ensure ongoing compliance with the same by
the Controlling Shareholders. The attendance records of individual
committee members are as follows:

HE
HITERNRE

Number of
Meetings
Attended/Held

ETHEE Mr. Wong Ting Kon 2/2
Z i 2+ Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 2/2
RIS Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 2/2
PR3 AL A Mr. Chan Tsang Mo 2/2
BEEEEE(RZZTZRF Mr. Yip Yam Kuen
—A—HE(E) (Resigned on 1 January 2025) 2/2
BEETH & AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

BHE-_ T _NME+-_A=+—HIFEH®E
ERKESETE BT IR EZ RS
ZERMT:

The fees in respect of audit services provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers for the year ended 31 December 2024 are
set out as follows:

Bt EHEAR
Fee paid/

payable
(F®ExT)
(HK$'000)

AEEEZRG Audit services for the Group 1,110

B E PRSI BRBKER BN E T
R-ZZF-_MFAESARARHBEAIFERZ
FR %5 o

Save as the disclosed above, PricewaterhouseCoopers did not provide
any non-audit services to the Company during the year 2024.

28  AEmHERARAT e SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Mr. Yu Ka Gung, being our company secretary, is primarily responsible
for the company secretarial work of the Group. Mr. Yu Ka Gung is also
the Company’s chief financial officer. The Company confirms that
Mr. Yu Ka Gung, for the year of 2024, attended no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training.

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Group establishes and
maintains appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems in order to safeguard the interests of the shareholders
and the assets of the Company against unauthorised use or
disposition, ensuring maintenance of proper books and records for the
provision of reliable financial information, and ensuring compliance
with the relevant rules and regulations. The Board is also responsible
for overseeing the Group's risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis, and for reviewing its effectiveness. The
established systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

The Group adopts a complete process style of risk management in a
functional bottom up manner, including risk identification, assessment,
evaluation and treatment. The functional areas across the Group
provide input of risks with treatments, which are appraised and
maintained. The risk management system, as well as the internal
control system, are continuous, proactive and systematic processes.

With the implementation of internal audit function, the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems is reviewed by
conducting internal audit assignments. Recommendations for major
observations of control weaknesses from the audits will be provided,
S0 as to resolve material internal control defects.
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The Audit Committee, which was delegated by the Board, has
conducted annual review, via an appointed Certified Public Accountant
firm to perform internal audit function, on the effectiveness of
the Group's risk management and internal control system put in
place by management covering all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls of the Company and
its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2024. The Audit
Committee considered that the risk management and internal control
system of the Group are effective and adequate.

The following procedures for shareholders of the Company to convene
an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM") of the Company are
prepared in accordance with the Articles of Association as follows:

(1) Two or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company;, shall have the right, by written notice, to require
an EGM to be called by the Directors of the Company for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

(2)  Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company at the following:

Principal office of the Company in Hong Kong

Address:  Unit 501, 5/F, Stelux House
698 Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon
Hong Kong

Email: info@speedy-global.com

(3) If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board does not proceed
duly to convene the meeting to be held within a further 21 days,
the requisitionists themselves or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them may do
so in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
meetings may be convened by the Board, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.
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For matters in relation to the Board, the shareholders can contact the
Company at the following:

Address:  Unit 501, 5/F, Stelux House
698 Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

Email: info@speedy-global.com

Tel: (852) 3583 1111

Fax: (852) 3583 1118

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company, a
shareholder should lodge a written notice of his or her proposal
(“Proposal”) with his or her detailed contact information at the
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the Board will be asked to include the Proposal in the
agenda for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the shareholders for consideration
of the Proposal raised by the shareholder concerned at the general
meeting varies according to the nature of the Proposal as follows:

(1) At least 14 days’ notice in writing if the Proposal requires
approval by way of ordinary resolution of the Company.

(2) At least 21 days’ notice in writing if the Proposal requires
approval by way of a special resolution of the Company in an
EGM of the Company or an ordinary resolution of the Company
in an annual general meeting of the Company.
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The Board recognises the importance of good communications with
all shareholders. The Company believes that maintaining a high level
of transparency is a key to enhance investor relations. The Company
is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of corporate
information to its shareholders and public investors.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its corporate
publications including annual reports and public announcements.
Extensive information about the Company’s activities for the year
ended 31 December 2024 has been provided in this annual report.
While the AGM provides a valuable forum that facilitates direct
communications between the Board and its shareholders, the
Company also maintains its website www.speedy-global.com to
provide an alternative communication channel for the public and
its shareholders. All corporate communication and Company'’s
latest updates are available on the Company’s website for public’s
information. Based on the above, the Company considers the
shareholders’ communication policy conducted during the year 2024
was adequate and effective.

There has been no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year 2024.

Hong Kong, 28 March 2025
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Speedy Global Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “group” or “Speedy
Global”), a leading supply chain service provider, is actively
involved in various sectors of the apparel industry in 2024.
Our comprehensive services cover a wide spectrum, including
product design and development, fashion trend analysis
and sampling, raw material sourcing, production order and
merchandise sourcing management, quality control, packaging,
inventory management, and logistics management.

Within our apparel supply chain servicing segment, we specialise
in providing end-to-end solutions to produce an extensive range
of men’s and women'’s woven wear, cut-and-sewn knitwear,
and sweater knitwear products. Our services cater to owners
or agents of globally recognised and reputable apparel retail
brands. With our strong industry expertise and network, we
ensure the sourcing and delivery of high-quality products to our
clients across continents.

Moving forward, the Group is committed to integrating
Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) principles into
our business strategy, prioritising sustainable practices across
our supply chain services and property development initiatives
to create long-term value for our stakeholders and positively
contribute to the environment and society.

2.1. Introduction
This is the ninth ESG Report published by the Group.
With a vision of “Weaving a Value-added Garment Supply
Chain”, the Group would like to share its efforts in retaining
competitiveness in the garment market, preserving a close-
knit team and community and moving toward sustainability
in this Report.

The Group appointed Allied Sustainability and
Environmental Consultants Group Limited (stock code:
8320) as an independent consultant to prepare the
Environmental, Social, and Governance Report, the “Report”
and to conduct materiality assessment on the Group's
sustainable development.
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2.2,

Reporting Principles

The Report was prepared in alignment with the ESG
Reporting Code as outlined in Appendix C2 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “"HKEX").
In preparation of the Report, the Group strictly adhered
to the principles of Materiality, Quantitative, Balance
and Consistency, ensuring a thorough and transparent
disclosure of our ESG-related initiatives and performances.

° Materiality: The Group is committed to
understanding and addressing the ESG issues that
matter most to our stakeholders. To this end, we
engage actively with a broad range of stakeholders,
gaining insights that guide our strategic ESG planning
and align with industry and global standards.
Insights from this engagement, alongside an internal
stakeholder survey, are discussed further in Chapter
3.

° Quantitative: In line with Appendix C2 of the Listing
Rules, the Group diligently prepares measurable
KPIs for performance evaluation. Quantitative
data is presented with accompanying narratives,
explanations, and relevant comparisons to emphasise
transparency.

o Balance: We are dedicated to the principle of
balance in our reporting, ensuring that our ESG
reports accurately highlight both the challenges
and opportunities we have encountered during the
reporting period. Visuals, such as images, charts,
and graphs, are used to represent our performance
clearly, avoiding any selective presentation or
bias that could mislead readers’ understanding or
influence their decisions.

° Consistency: The report details the standards,
tools, assumptions, and conversion factors applied
wherever applicable. Explanations are provided
for any deviations from previous reports to foster
transparency and trust.
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2.3.

The corporate governance of the Group was prepared in
accordance with all applicable code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code under Appendix C1 of
the Listing Rules of the HKEX. Further details on corporate
governance practices are provided in the “Corporate
Governance Report” section of this annual report.

Reporting Scope

The Report summarised the ESG performances of the
Group during the 2024 financial year from 1 January 2024
to 31 December 2024 (the “Reporting Period”).

The Report covered the operations of the apparel supply
chain services. The reporting scope included the following
major business units of the Group:

° Speedy Garment Manufacturing (Hong Kong)
Ccompany Limited,;

° Jointex Garment Manufactory Limited;

° Dongguan Speedy Garment Manufacturing Company
Limited;

° Koyip Garment (Dongguan) Manufactory Limited;
° Pageant Enterprise (Hong Kong) Limited,
o Well Faith Enterprise Limited; and

° Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company Limited

In this Report, certain aspects of the Group's operations are
excluded to ensure the relevance and clarity of disclosed
information. Specifically, elements of our manufacturing
process that are outsourced to independent contractors
are not included in this Report. Additionally, our apparel
retail and property investment segments are omitted, as no
transactions occurred in these areas during the Reporting
Period.
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2.4.

Furthermore, due to their minimal environmental and
social impact, disclosures for the Group’s remaining
subsidiaries are also excluded. Nevertheless, the Group
remains committed to reviewing and incorporating any
ESG-related impacts should there be a significant future
change in the business scope or operational influence of
these subsidiaries.

Contact Information

For any comments or recommendations on the Report,
please contact the Group through the contacts details set
out below:

Unit 501, 5/F, Stelux House
698 Prince Edward Road East
San Po Kong, Kowloon

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 3583 1111
Fax: (852) 3583 1118
Email:  info@speedy-global.com

MRRIRBIEIR AR /A ] o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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3.1.

3.2.

Board of Director’'s Statement on ESG
Governance

The Board believes that sustainable development is
essential for the long-term success of any company.
Reflecting this conviction, the Group is dedicated to
embedding environmental, social, and governance (ESG)
principles into its business operations, striving to enhance
sustainability through resource optimisation across all
facets of its activities. As the highest governance body,
the Board takes full responsibility for shaping and guiding
the Group’s ESG direction, overseeing key decisions that
impact our sustainability journey.

To operationalise this commitment, the Board has
empowered top management to coordinate and implement
ESG initiatives and ensure comprehensive reporting.
Guided by the material ESG topics identified through
stakeholder engagement surveys, the Board regularly
reviews and discusses the Group’s ESG performance,
progress, opportunities, and risks. This ongoing assessment
enables the Group to proactively address ESG challenges
and leverage opportunities, keeping us aligned with our
mission for sustainable growth.

Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality
Assessment

The Group recognises the value of stakeholders’ viewpoints
in shaping its long-term business growth. To foster active
engagement with stakeholders, the Group is committed
to establishing effective communication channels and
gathering their feedback.

To facilitate this process, the Group enlisted the help of an
external consultant to conduct an anonymous quantitative
online survey with both internal and external stakeholders.
The results of the survey were thoroughly analysed by the
Group, leading to the creation of a materiality ranking.

During the reporting period, the Group conducted a
systematic review of the 2023 materiality assessment
results. After carefully evaluating the current business
environment and stakeholder focus areas, and considering
that there have been no significant changes in relevant
internal and external environmental factors, the Board of
Directors has resolved to maintain the applicability of the
existing assessment framework.
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Topics Rank
k&S 1
Anti-corruption
Fr1EZE T Roghlss T 2
Prevention of child labour and forced labour
RiERTFMLE 3
Protecting customer privacy
EBREEERS 4
Employment management system
EmXRkEEERE S
Product safety and quality management
LR EBERNTERE 6
A safe and healthy working environment
BR KM RHE 1B 7
Resources and material management
EmAE 8
Product responsibility
R PR 0 38 2 A 9
Protecting intellectual property rights
Zlt - TERE ROERIER 10
Diversity, equal opportunity and eliminating discrimination
BE IR i
Employer-employee relations
NERBELEH 12
Fair and responsible marketing
AKERE 13
Water management
ESE 14
Wastewater management
HIRER 15
Training and development

RERER (BREHITERRER SHRRRIKESEREEX) 16

Energy management (|nclud|ng energy target set, energy saving and
energy efficiency improvement)

BEEMER (BEEED) 17
Waste management (Non-hazardous waste)

Bt = 18
Caring for the community

e e IR 19
Supply chain management

BERER (RRERENEERETERE R KHELRERE) 20

Energy management (including management and monitoring of
direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type)

FE ¥ RIRE b 21
Responding to climate change

RERBRERENE 22
Greenhouse gas and air em|ssions management

EREBHRBERRAABEREXNNZE 23
Managing the impact of operations on the environment and natural resources

BENER (BERED) 24

Waste management (Hazardous waste)

38 ARG A R A A o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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4.1.

Through conducting a materiality assessment, the Group
gained a deep understanding of stakeholders’ perspectives
and insights. The Board will consider the identified material
issues when formulating the Group’s ESG approaches and
measures. The Group is committed to ongoing review of
these material issues and providing transparent reporting
on its ESG performance.

Product Development

The Group's primary objective is to establish itself as
a leader in the garment apparel industry by delivering
exceptional services and high-quality products that set it
apart in a competitive market. To achieve this, the Group
upholds stringent standards, ensuring that every product
and service aligns with the specific needs and preferences
of our customers. This dedication to quality and customer
satisfaction underscores our brand’s reputation for
excellence in the industry.

As a prominent player in the garment sector, the Group is
committed to continuous improvement across its entire
product range. The Group proactively assess and refine
key aspects such as cost efficiency, production processes,
quality control, technological advancements, and design
innovations to stay attuned to market demands and
evolving trends, particularly in our niche markets.

To provide innovative and customised designs, the Group
has set up the Research and Development Centres (the
“Centres”) with showrooms. On one hand, the Centres
ensured that all products and designs met customers’
requirements and expectations. On the other hand, the
Centres constantly drove improvements and innovation
in products and services by providing tailored designs.
With the establishment of the Centres, the Group was able
to leverage its extensive knowledge of market trends to
create advanced products.
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4.2. Supply Chain Management

The Group acknowledges the critical role of suppliers
and contractors in ensuring product quality and timely
delivery, making supply chain excellence a cornerstone of
our operational model and policy. To enhance supplier and
contractor management, the Group prioritises rigorous
quality standards and has a strategic plan to diversify its
supply chain network, with expansion into Southeast Asia,
particularly Cambodia, to support this goal.

Within the operational model, the Group enforces strict
measures to oversee suppliers and contractors, conducting
assessments to identify environmental and social risks
throughout the supply chain. Any suppliers or contractors
who fail to meet or participate in these assessments
are excluded from our supply chain network, ensuring
a commitment to high standards in both quality and
sustainability.
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4.3.

To effectively manage procurement practices, the Group
has implemented a monitoring system. This system tracks
the purchasing price of raw materials, enabling long-term
evaluation. Regular reviews of the system records are
conducted to identify any abnormal fluctuations in prices
or supplies. Additionally, all procurement procedures are
standardised to ensure suppliers’ compliance with relevant
laws and regulations. The operations of the Group are
located in Hong Kong, People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") and Cambodia, where the Group continually upload
responsible supply chain practices that align with the ESG
goals.

The breakdown of suppliers by geographic location were
listed as below:

PRC 213
Hong Kong 11
Cambodia 35
Total 259

Product Quality and Safety

In order to enhance its competitiveness, the Group
has prioritised quality assurance policies and product
responsibility. To ensure the quality of fabrics and
garments, the Group engaged the National Product
Quality Supervision and Inspection Centre for Apparel and
Garment Products of Textile Industry to conduct thorough
checks.

In recognition of the Group's ongoing commitment, the
Business Social Compliance Initiative, a reputable initiative
focused on improving social performance in global supply
chains, awarded the Group with a quality management
certification. This certification serves as a testament to
the Group’s dedication to delivering quality products and
ensuring customer satisfaction. As part of its ongoing
pursuit of global recognition, the Group remains committed
to offering tailored and high-quality products and services
to its customers.
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Throughout the value chain, from product design to
delivery, the Group has consistently adhered to standard
requirements and relevant laws and regulations. As a result
of these efforts, there were no significant complaints or
product recalls during the Reporting Period. However, in
the event of any future complaints, the Group is committed
to promptly and professionally addressing the issues and
implementing measures to prevent similar occurrences
from happening again.

Product Quality

Quality control is fundamental to the Group’s operations,
particularly at our Cambodia factory. To ensure customer
satisfaction, the Quality Assurance (QA) department
conducts thorough tests on incoming materials, focusing
on durability and pigmentation. Detailed operational
guidelines and stringent standards are displayed at
workstations, supporting employees in upholding these
requirements. Additionally, the Inspection Department
conducts thorough quality assessments at each production
stage, ensuring that only compliant products proceed to
packaging.

Product Safety

Product safety is equally prioritised throughout our
processes. Within the factory, guaranteeing the production
of safe products stood as a paramount concern for the
Group. Extending from sourcing and manufacturing to
packaging, the Group enforced rigorous protocols and
standards for inspecting fabric materials and final products.
As an example, every finished product was required to
undergo a metal detector screening before shipping,
preventing potential safety issues by ensuring that no
needles or sharp objects remain in the items.

Intellectual Property and Data Protection

To reinforce its competitive positioning and uphold an
ethical business image, the Group has implemented strong
policies for protecting intellectual property rights and
safeguarding the privacy of consumers, suppliers, and
contractors. The Group strictly enforces restrictions against
unauthorised use of suppliers’ trademarks, ensuring that
these intellectual property rights are respected in all
interactions.
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5.1.

Additionally, the Group has established robust procedures
for data collection, handling, and protection. These
procedures are documented in the Group's internal rules,
which all employees are required to follow. The Information
Technology Department enforces stringent access controls,
restricting unauthorised personnel from accessing private
data through electronic systems, thereby safeguarding the
confidentiality of all parties involved.

Climate Change

Recognising the substantial risks presented by climate
change, encompassing both physical and transitional
risks that influence diverse sectors and geographic areas,
the Group is fully aware of the imperative of climate
change mitigation and adaptation for the longevity of its
operations. Proactively addressing this need, the Group has
identified and assessed potential physical and transitional
risks that could affect its business operations.

Operating in Hong Kong, PRC and Cambodia, the Group is
mindful of the increasing frequency of extreme weather
events such as typhoons and heavy rainfall associated
with climate change. In response, the Group has developed
comprehensive emergency plans to effectively address
these threats and ensure business continuity.

As for transition risks relating to climate change, the
Group expects stricter environmental regulations and
policies, including carbon emission standards, in the
future. To get ready for such regulatory changes, the Group
has established internal standards that exceed mere
compliance, showcasing its commitment to proactively
adjust to changing environmental benchmarks and
requirements.
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5.2. Environmental Management

The Group is deeply committed to environmental
protection and recognises the critical role sustainable
practices play in production management.

To integrate sustainable values into its daily business
operations, the Group has implemented a range of
environmental control measures. In line with the
International Organisation for Standardization’s
Environmental Management System Standards (ISO
14001), the Group has established a set of environmental
management policies. These policies not only adhere to
international standards but also align with the 12 principles
of the Worldwide Responsible Apparel Production. By
following these policies, the Group ensures compliance
with local environmental laws and regulations, preventing
any non-compliance issues.

As a global provider that outsources manufacturing,
the Group acknowledges its responsibility to promote
environmental stewardship among its suppliers and
contractors. To monitor their environmental impacts and
compliance, the Group has implemented an environmental
manual. This manual requires suppliers and contractors
to thoroughly implement environmental management
practices and comply with all relevant environmental laws
and regulations in their respective operating regions.

During the Reporting Period, the Group successfully
upheld all applicable laws and regulations pertaining
to environmental protection, emissions, resource
consumption, and waste management.
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5.3. Energy Use and Emissions

On top of managing the performance of the contractors,
the Group also placed an emphasis on reducing its
environmental footprint. In this regard, the Group
implemented measures to periodically monitor and
progressively reduce both energy consumption and
emissions.

Energy Consumption

The Group utilised electricity across various areas under
its operational control, including offices, factory buildings,
showrooms, canteens, dormitories, and other common
areas. Vehicular transportation relied on petrol fuel, while
wood fuel was used for generating hot water.

To promote energy conservation, the Group adopted a host
of policies and measures:

- a policy requiring employees to switch off all lighting,
electrical appliances, and equipment when not in use

- factory buildings displayed environmentally friendly
operating guidelines for staff adherence

- the Dongguan location, implemented efficient lighting
fixtures

- the Cambodia factory incorporated passive building
designs to maximise natural lighting and reduce
electricity usage and an annual environmental audit
is conducted to assess the feasibility of installing
energy-efficient appliances

- a monitoring system to assess and regulate energy
consumption to facilitate future reduction plans and
identify any abnormal trends

- installation of electricity meters in the factory to
monitor consumption and conduct risk assessments
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REFAHERREE RERT
2 EBEMEENFEREHKNEG
BEIEH ZBEAFERHELIR
KANIGEEEERS W ALK
EAMBEE H - RMESHMB K
SEEEEAN73INRER K[
ERBRIME I EFEML2.4%
£ 41,5017 T

EKEBEN
Business Units

BERNE
Hong Kong Office
R IR KXRBR AT

Dongguan Speedy Garment Manufacturing

Company Limited

Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company Limited#
Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company Limited Mo’

HREE

To support the development of renewable energy, the
Cambodia factory has participated in a solar energy
project initiated by a local power generation company.
The power generation company has installed solar energy
generation systems in the Cambodia factory and allowed
the factory to purchase electricity at a discount. During the
Reporting Period, the Group has purchased approximately
73.1 MWh, which accounts for approximately 2.4% of the
electricity consumption of the Cambodia factory, and saved
approximately USD1,501.7.

AEEHE
Overview of Electricity Consumption

By —E_NF
Unit 2024

JK LB 43.1 39.7
MWh

JK FL R 521.4 4347
MWh

JKFLBF 3,067.9 4,812.1
MWh

JK LB 3,632.5 5,286.5
MWh

Total consumption

MiFET - EOBRR D RN ZEBELR
—ECNFAAZTRRERE

Note 1: The decrease in electricity consumption was due to the business
unit being disposed of on 30 September 2024.
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ok ki)
Fuel Type

S
Petrol Note 1

%/Hﬂ Bff 72

Diese| Note 2
bR
Wood Fuel Noe3

MEEET : 0 OH B G 0= A B E R B 4 0
BRI AEREREASEM-

P2 : SR HFESE AN R 7Y TS B3 o -

MisE3 : AP MAEDE R My s AR &k
sk pEAENRE-BA=
TN FHEERAE_S N
FEAA-

R B — o AR B B
BRI AR R AR EER A
FREAF

BERBERERHFL

ARE B EE JBFE - BT IR
Be B B E & MR = /8 (GHG)
MERGER (REENY - a1t
RAME BB ERK - E R E L
BRMERENEE AKECDE
BT —EER RS AREERRE
REHFRAMETEHES LT
HAEB) T B AFIRRIR R BRI H
BB SR B -

REAR AEENEREEET
K —FHEAEERBHICRE
R EERNAFEKF -

MREREHRE
Overview of Fuel Consumption

B —E-@OmEF

Unit 2024
7+ 66,887 37,083
L
7+ 6,000 2,000
L
s 898 844

Tonnes

Note 1: The increase in petrol consumption was due to higher usage of
motor vehicles and transportation, driven by increased operational
activity.

Note 2: The increase in diesel consumption was due to increased factory
activity.

Note 3: The increase in wood fuel consumption may be attributed to
higher demand or changes in fuel usage patterns. As data was
only collected until September 2024 for FY2024.

In the upcoming year, the Group aims to either maintain or
decrease energy intensity below the current year’s level.

Greenhouse Gas and Air Emissions

The Group’s consumption of electricity, fuel, and wood
combustion leads to the generation of both direct and
indirect greenhouse gases (GHG) and air emissions,
including particulate matter, sulphur dioxide, and nitrogen
oxides. Recognising the environmental impact of these
emissions, the Group has implemented a monitoring
system to track GHG emissions and conduct regular
reviews. These evaluations are essential for understanding
our environmental footprint and formulating effective
reduction strategies.

Looking ahead, the Group is committed to maintaining

or decreasing the intensity of GHG emissions, aiming to
achieve levels below those recorded in the current year.
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BERBHEREE
Overview of GHG Emissions
515 By
Indicator uUnit
BE - EEAE R MR — SRS 8 2,239.1 1,125.2
Scope 1: Direct GHG Emission ot Tonnes of CO,
equivalent (tCO.e-)
#E2 : AR E R PR3 M — S biRE 2 1,490.1 3,536.6
Scope 2: Indirect GHG Emission Mote 22 tCO,e-
HRERBENE WE—SELIREE 3,729.2 4,661.8
Total GHG emissions tCO,e-

M aET : B EN UG R B EEE I Note 1: The increase in Scope 1 emissions was due to higher fuel and wood fuel
BEUREH R AR BRREE FELE 0 o consumption driven by increased operational activity.

M2 : EHOERELENAEZREERET Note 2. The emission factors of greenhouse gas emissions due to electricity
REUTRR: ARG == consumption were obtained from the following sources: the 2022 HKEX
FERMHXHF [NARERSE HE published document “How to Prepare an ESG Report, Appendix 2: Reporting
RESATRE - Mk — IR EA W Guidance on Environmental KPIs,” the 2023 National Power Carbon Footprint
BIZE®RES | PEARLME A Factor published by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the People’s
REIRIRE B (20235 2 BIE S Republic of China, and the “Grid Emission Factors in Cambodia” published
ik B A F) RRIBEIRIBE LM by the Ministry of Environment of Cambodia.

B IR EEMBERE T -

MFE3 - #BE28E R A 2 A Agile Sweater Note 3: The decrease in Scope 2 emissions was attributed to the reduction in
(Cambodia) Company Limitedit == electricity consumption at Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company Limited,
“HHFENAZ+AHERZELE following the disposal of the business unit on 30 September 2024.
AEERD-

JBE R BE RR B B M
Overview of Air Emissions Note 1

EE By

Indicator Unit

gkl a) Fx 393.76 210.43
Nitrogen oxides kg

maltyw Fre 1.08 0.58
Sulphur oxides kg

AR T 7.93 4.40
Particulate matter kg

Mz REALY  FE YR Y BE R Note 1: The increase in nitrogen oxides, sulphur oxides and particulate
EARBRIRERE RAMBRE R matter were due to the rise in fuel consumption and wood fuel
FIEme consumption.
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5.4. AKE®E
AEEMAKBREES LAFHE-
PAEF TR K « RS HEIR -
REEWRBEEMKEREES
HA S BERGEDHNKEER
A= K E -

5.4.

FER I I TR - KRR 8 MY s e9om
A R ISR 7K RO 35 6 Bt © 1
ERZH A& EEKETEEM
B - AREGRKE  JEAN R ET
B35k 8k - AT BRI AN FFAf A 7K AR
o

REAR AEENBEFREEET
R —FRBAICRERRFREE
ERARFEKF B8 E L5
HABNORELRK L RATHE
MERE BB TR

EBEN
Business Units

BB AETD
Hong Kong Office Note
REMBFRIRBRBR QT2
Dongguan Speedy Garment Manufacturing
Company Limited Note2
Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company Limited™#2
Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company Limited Nete3
HBAKE
Total consumption
M1 : BEPRRELERKERE AR
PR A B 3 e -
M2 : MAKETHREZEARERERHIK
RAE ] o
M3 AKERIREARZEBEMN
T_MNFENAAZTEBEE-.

Water Management

The Group’s water consumption includes usage in
dormitories, restrooms, offices, and factory operations.
While the Group did not face any water sourcing
challenges during the reporting period, it actively seeks to
enhance water efficiency by promoting water conservation
practices.

At the Cambodia factory, water is sourced from a
nearby river and an on-site retention pond that collects
stormwater. Prior to usage, the Group treats and tests
the water to ensure its quality. Additionally, on-site
water meters have been installed to monitor and assess
consumption patterns.

Looking ahead, the Group is determined to maintain or
reduce water intensity, aiming for levels below those
recorded in the current year. Through these initiatives,
we strive to optimise our water usage and contribute to
sustainable resource management.

AXKEME
Overview of Water Consumption

B
Unit

—EC-mF
2024

13,462 16,498

66,468 72,476

79,930 88,974

Note 1:  The Hong Kong office was not accountable for water consumption

as the landlord bore the cost of water usage.
Note 2: The decrease of water consumption was mainly attributable to the
implementation of effective cost control.
Note 3: The decrease in water consumption was due to the business unit
being disposed of on 30 September 2024.
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55 BEYER

REIEEYREREYENEE
R AEBEERLZEREAE
PO D FIE IR E Y E £ -

BRTRNMBERYNES A&E
THHEE T ZHNEREL K
SEBORNIERERERER R
BEMREERREY- - WIN NEED
REFEEHAERENLEKRTR
AV RE )

ERECERRE AEEZER
BRAFEIRLE a0 - 7R 5K B EAE
&2 EE R AR B LA E’JF&
B REMY B PUBER — R
Fane

ERFAMAZBRES NEBER
51 = {8 & TR T RHE 1T BV A
AoRERERRE AEEEX
BEf - ImNEENIINEAREE
AT BEEY B T [ Y AN B4 i A T Rt
B -BTHREREEEBEHRW
SEHHFEMRBAERE -ES
—RME EREHR AKEL
REEBEERRY WAEEXNA
1o

EER
Indicator

—@ ﬁ %Fﬁa‘ﬂ
General waste Nt 1
BEEEY
Hazardous waste

Mis: —Z-_MEHABEN ERAEE
M RIRERIES -

5.5. Waste Management

The Group recognises that waste is a direct reflection of
its environmental impact and has implemented various
measures to reduce and manage waste production
effectively.

To minimise waste production, the Group consistently
promotes resource optimisation among employees. The
Group is committed to handling and disposing of waste
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
Additionally, the Group has engaged contractors to handle
and recycle different types of waste.

When procuring production supplies, the Group considers
environmentally friendly criteria. For instance, the Group
is gradually transitioning to durable and reusable trays,
hangers, and cutting boards to eliminate single-use items.

During the design and development processes, the
Group utilises a wide range of fabrics for sampling and
testing in showrooms. To enhance resource efficiency, the
Group requires employees in workshops, factories, and
outsourced contractors to recycle and reuse fabric scraps
whenever possible. Staff members are instructed to collect
fabric scraps and threads for donation during production.
Notably, in the reporting period, the Group did not generate
hazardous waste, such as Hexachlorobenzene and
Asbestos.

EEXENBREYIME
Overview of Waste Produced

B
Unit

N 550 413
Tonnes
NI - -
Tonnes

Note 1: Export volume increased in 2024 resulting in more leftover waste
from production materials.
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AEEIZERBEIBERRE
M ME AL E AR =E
ATHEERERABRMK--EE
BEEMHE RMAZEEP R
BRES EREEBTHENER
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B
Indicator

R R

At the Cambodia factory, packaging materials are
predominantly used, while showrooms in Hong Kong and
the PRC do not require direct use of packaging materials.
When selecting packaging materials, we consider customer
preferences while prioritising sustainable options, such as
recyclable plastic packaging.

BEMBEERE
Overview of Packaging Material Consumption
B —E_MF
Unit 2024
NI 662.1 479.9
Tonnes

Packaging material Net 1

M RRMNEBRTEARERRE
HRAR RO S 5% -
TREEEME

6.1. BRBHHEEK

AEBRBDEHBENRETHR
EBRNEZREE ARMMAA
FEEFHEMLESRMER-
At REEHRINEES —BEE
WIERE FEIRZLERM
ERC WEAKE-REBERFERK
R-RTAEEENRE A&H
FEERAGENAFHHTAER
ANER-

EBRERETER
REBCERAFRELBRETNEE
O RBIRE AN RBEEME R

EEHEMAT o ET"BH’? l%*%q:"ﬂ;
BEATERHEEBRER FhkE
MU IEF AR NHERERE
TMsgsa 8 TRk - — BB EM
BERETIMNBER  NEBEKIZA
KERITE TR WRBEH G EEE
B Il = #) SAB0001R 2 42 i i & 1Y
e

Note 1: The disclosed figures of packaging materials represent carton

boxes and plastic bags procured by the Group in the reporting
period.

6. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

6.1. Cohesive Team

The Group recognises that dedicated employees are
fundamental to its business success, as they contribute
to daily operations and drive long-term development. As
a result, the Group is committed to fostering an inclusive
workplace where employees can fully dedicate themselves
and experience continuous growth alongside the Group.
To cultivate such an environment, the Group places great
emphasis on managing its human resources in a respectful
and equitable manner.

Employment and Labour Standards

The Group has adopted a non-discriminatory and inclusive
approach to recruitment, selecting suitable candidates
based on their skills and qualifications. Throughout
the recruitment process, candidates are required to
provide proof of qualifications, identification verification
documents, and working permits to ensure the elimination
of child labour and forced labour risks. If any instances
of forced or child labour are discovered, the Group takes
immediate action to intervene and provides appropriate
compensation based on the SA8000 standard developed
by Social Accountability International.
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HEREMAR ~AEBEHF138% As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Group had a
EBE -ZTRAEREDHIEEDHE total of 138 employees. The employment breakdown by
N different categories is listed as below:

FREEAR

Year-end nhumber
of employees

BIEB A Total Number of Employees 138
mBIE 5D By Gender
ES Male 56
ks Female 82
ZEEER &S By Employee Category
EEE Management 26
SE Senior 15
IE Junior 97
BRERMARE D By Age Group
315 <31 23
312408% 31-40 37
A2 505% 41-50 41
505 VA £ >50 37
BBV ES S By Geographical Location
Fh PRC 129
BB Hong Kong 9
R I FEM A Cambodia Note 1 0
ekl LARBENEBECN —ZE =N Note 1: The business unit in Cambodia being disposed of on 30 September
FNA=+TBEHEEE- 2024.
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T 5k bb SR
Turnover
RateNOte 1
B Overall 25.4%
EHERE D By Gender
eS| Male 24.3%
z Female 26.1%
BRERARE D By Age Group
R A315% <31 42.5%
312405% 31-40 15.9%
A1E505% 41-50 24.1%
505% MA >50 21.3%
R BUEE D By Geographical Location
a3 PRC 21.8%
A Hong Kong 55.0%
SR I R Cambodiaote 2 -
MHsET : MR R=EFERINBBEES AZ Note 1: Turnover rate = Employee in the specified category leaving
/18 FEHE R F 911 B AE*100 employment/Start-of-year number of employees in the specified

category * 100

M2 s LARBENEBECN _Z N Note 2:  The business unit in Cambodia being disposed of on 30 September
FNA=+RAKHE- 2024,
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TEEH Work-related injury cases

BERIER Lost workdays

Safe and Healthy Workplace

The Group is committed to providing a safe and healthy
workplace for its employees through proactive risk
identification and prevention efforts. To this end, the Group
conducts thorough risk assessments to identify potential
industrial hazards and initiates preventive measures to
enhance safety. Furthermore, on-site safety audits are
carried out to analyse the effectiveness of implemented
safety measures, identify areas for improvement, and
develop action plans. The Group also ensures that
employees have access to necessary safety equipment in
workshops to minimise the risk and impact of industrial
accidents.

In our Cambodia facility, a dedicated Safety Committee
oversees on-site safety protocols, frequently updating
practices to meet evolving standards. Safety warnings and
operational guidelines are visibly displayed, and regular
fire safety training and emergency evacuation drills ensure
staff preparedness. Additionally, on-site medical facilities
are available to provide immediate support.

As a result of the sound safety measures, the Group
complied with all applicable laws and regulations regarding
occupational health and safety with no report of work-
related fatality in the past three years. During the Reporting
Period, the Group experienced zero work-related injury
cases and no lost workdays. Nonetheless, the Group is
actively implementing mitigation measures to minimize the
occurrence and impact of such incidents.
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EIIRERE Training and Development
REERAEEANTIEEKIH The Group acknowledges that a robust workforce is
BEBELERENBER UEHZ essential for maintaining operational efficiency and made
BEEEMRENER -KMALIWE efforts to facilitate employee skill development. Induction
THREABEI EFREEAEE trainings were provided to factory staff as a way to convey
HEREAMIIEREE NN - the Group’s expectations and enhance their capability to
RmEB - 78EE QB LR conduct duty. During the Reporting Period, 7 employees
SEBM)2EIE/NRRERES (two female and five male) participated in a one-hour
FENFIEFE - ZEEERE D training program, covering anti-corruption topics. A detailed
E’\JiﬁﬁJlléﬁiﬁéE’eIﬁﬁ BRAE 5T breakdown of the Group's training and development

programs by employee category is provided below.

ZiEE BEEE
B (%) Fi 52 9% 39
RIREAR W1 -2 CE1S3 G

Percentage Average

Number of training  training hours
of trained employee completed per
employee (%)Nte.2 employee Note 3

SHRTINEEAH Total Number of Employees
took part in training 7 3.8 0.05

EMRB2WZH{ESE Employees trained by Gender

3 Male 5 714 0.09
z Female 2 28.6 0.02
REEBERES N Employees trained by
ZIEE Employee Category
EIRENE ManagementNoe4 7 100.0 0.27
=R Senior 0 0 0
IE Junior 0 0 0
M1 IEEE P H=-EESIAZ B Note 1: Percentage of employee trained = employees who took part in
B 42*100 training/number of employees * 100
M2 : HEERESENAD LA =B ER Note 2:  Breakdown for employees in relevant categories = employees in
RZIEE A ZHEE NS the specified category, who took part in training/employees who
*100 took part in training * 100
MisE3 : 1BRERIE B /)T 19557 ks =188 Note 3:  Average training hours for employees in relevant categories = Total
B RIE B M55 48 05 B0 AR B KB Bl number of training hours for employees in the relevant category/
K FRIEB AR Year-end number of employees in the relevant category.
Misds: EEERICEERLRIIREERE Note 4: The management category includes both director-level and
WAL management-level positions.
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6.2.

Anti-corruption

In order to maintain a strong commitment to ethical
and transparent business practices, the Group has
implemented internal policies and standards that provide
guidance to employees on preventing corrupt behaviours,
such as bribery, extortion, fraud, and money laundering.
The Group has also established a whistleblowing policy
and designated channels through which employees can
report any suspected misconduct. Investigations into
reported cases are conducted by senior management,
who are responsible for taking appropriate follow-up
actions. Furthermore, during the Reporting Period, 6
board members and 1 management staff participated
in a one-hour anti-corruption training session to ensure
their familiarity with the latest anti-corruption laws and
standards.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not
encountered any material non-compliance with local laws
and regulations relating to anti-corruption.

Communities Engagement

AS a responsible corporate citizen, the Group is committed
to bringing positive impacts in the community in which it
operates.

In addition to financial contributions, the Group actively
encourages employees to engage in volunteer activities.
To facilitate this, we have established a dedicated
volunteering service team, enabling staff to contribute
their time and skills to various community projects. This
initiative not only strengthens our ties with the community
but also fosters a culture of social responsibility within the
organisation.
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In a concerted effort to deepen its understanding of critical
ESG issues and better meet stakeholder needs, the Group
significantly expanded its stakeholder engagement initiatives
during the Reporting Period. This robust approach is instrumental
in shaping business strategies that effectively address the
identified ESG concerns.

Upholding a steadfast commitment to continuous, transparent
communication with our stakeholders is paramount as it allows
us to promptly address their concerns and proactively adapt to
emerging trends.

By embedding sustainability throughout our operations, we
strive to align our strategies with stakeholder expectations
and industry benchmarks. Our unwavering dedication to ESG
principles underscores our firm commitment to ethical business
practices and the sustainable creation of enduring value for all
stakeholders.
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8. ZER 8. REFERENCE TABLES

8.1. EMRK 8.1. Performance Table

BE&® D —E-mE

Indicator i 2024

REEHERRE
Energy Consumption and Intensity

BN JK L F 3,632.5 5,286.5
Electricity MWh
Wi vai 66,887 37,083
Petrol L
4eom F+ 6,000 2,000
Diesel L
AR U7 898 844
Wood Fuel Tonnes
e R B HEE 33,594 37,282
Total Energy Consumptionhote GJ
M REIR R HEE 50.9 80.6

BEATTHE
Total Energy Intensity Note2 GJ/HKD million

revenue

BERBHERRBE
Greenhouse Gas Emission and Intensity
E - BN Mo_EtikE = 2,239.1 1,125.2
Scope 1: Direct Emission tCO,e-
#[E2  EE BN %ﬂ: E=E 1,490.1 3,536.6
Scope 2: Indirect Emission tCO,e-
BRERBHNE ﬁft RE= 3,729.2 4,661.8
Total GHG Emissions tCO,e-
mERBARE W —EiREE 5.65 10.08

BEATTHE
Total GHG Intensity tCO,e-/HKD million

revenue
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R —E-—mE
Indicator 2024
BERE¥EK
Air emissions
Ay Fx 393.76 210.43
Nitrogen oxides kg
malyw T 1.08 0.58
Sulphur oxides kg
EER R Fx 7.93 4.40
Particulate matter kg
EEXNBEEYREE
Waste Production and Intensity
—MREEZEY) L 550 413
General waste Tonnes
BEEZEY U - -
Hazardous waste Tonnes
BEEREY T RN =RV bl € 0.83 0.89
Total Waste IntensityNotes Tonnes/HKD million
revenue
BEMBEFRE
Packaging Material Consumption
BEME A 662.1 479.9
Packaging Material Tonnes
AKEREE
Water Consumption and Intensity
EHIKE A 79,930 88,974
Total Water Consumption m?3
1B FRK R SHK BB A 97.6 81.2

Total Water IntensityNote4

m¥/employee

BT

faE2 -

PIFES

B4

BERRRSREREN SRR
Wb

©

o

BERTETREAREBERR
EEEBIE REEIRAKR R
CHRERNEMREREL-

BEWMEZRETREANAEENE
RRER KRBT ERBREND
RIES & IRR R BRI -

BRKEER R EER BKOHE
B(TERERBEERSEN) EER
A - ERAARBEEBEM
B 7420249 A30H HE -

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

The decrease in the total energy consumption was due to the
overall decrease in electricity consumption.

The decrease in total energy intensity was driven by business
expansion and higher operational activity, alongside improved
energy efficiency, leading to a more optimised use of energy
resources.

The decrease in waste intensity was driven by the Group's growth
and expansion, reflecting improved resource efficiency amid
increasing demand for our products.

The total water intensity is calculated based on: Total water
consumption (excluding the Cambodia Business Unit)/Total number
of employees. This is because the Cambodia Business Unit was
disposed of on 30 September 2024.
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8.2. ESG Content Index

8.2. ESGRAR ZE 3|

=4 BEENEE it BHEH
Statement/
Aspect KPI Description Section
TEHERA)RE
SUBJECT AREA (A) ENVIRONMENT
A1 HER
A1: EMISSIONS
A1 —MRIEE B 52REEE
@ BE: R
b) BFHBETABEAFENHEBEIZRAMNER
General Information on: 5.2 Environmental
disclosure @ the policies: and Management
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer.
A1.1 e AR R AR R BUR - 5.3 LR A KM
The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 5.3 Energy Use and
Emissions
A1.2 B (SE) ke REE (BE)REREHENRE (UBEE) R (10 53 8REA RN
BE)BE (MASESEMN SERENE) -
BRERBHREE (UEFE) R (NER)ZE (WAEBEEEN-§
ERiEETHE)
Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas = 5.3 Energy Use and
emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of | Emissions
production volume, per facility).
Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
A13 FREXEEEENEE (UNEEE) R (NER)ZE (MAGESSEM - | S55BEENER
BERMETE) -
Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, = 5.5 Waste
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). Management
A14 FEAREREYEE (EHE) R (NER) ZE (WASESEN . | S5BEENER
BHERMATHE)
Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where | 5.5Waste
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). Management
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Bm

Aspect

RS

HRENEE  #Hf B EH
Statement/

KPI Description Section

A15 MFTET U MSENE B RAEINELEEMERIW AR - HlRD | 53 88REA RN
HERREY B R PTG B AR R o
Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them | 5.3 Energy Use and
Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved. Emissions

A1.6 MLERAEREEEEVNTE RELMIVNREERRAE S5BEENER
NELERMERN SR -HIAEREERESEEVNAE  HE
b R TSR R ©
Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, = 5.5 Waste
and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve = Management

them. Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.

A2 ERER

A2: USE OF RESOURCES

A2

— MR E BRERER (BERER K REAMEME) BB - 52REERE
General Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and | 5.2 Environmental
disclosure other raw materials. Management
A2.1 RENESMEER/ JHAEER(WE RI0hH) BFE (UTFET 53 8RERRIER
REE)REE (A BESEN BEREHAE) -
Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas | 5.3 Energy Use and
or oil) in total (kwh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production = Emissions
volume, per facility).
A2.2 BREKEREZE (MAEGESEM SEIBE) - 54 FKER
Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production = 5.4 Water
volume, per facility). Management
A2.3 R FTET L MR IRE AR B B R AES B L B EMREA SR - 5.3 BERME A KM
Rl g R e e e R ETES R R o
Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to | 5.3 Energy Use and
achieve them. Emissions

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

4z o ANNUAL REPORT 2024

61




RIFE-T2NEG

RS

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

=4 HRENEE  #Hf BYEH
Statement/
Aspect KPI Description Section
A2.4 it SR EUGE AR E R B EMRERE - AR ERKEEEERA | 54 AKER
EIE LB EMREE R o
HCKEGE AR LA B EMREE - A RAKS G E R FTEERKR
Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for = 5.4 Water
purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. | Management
Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
A25 MR EEMNEE (UEAE) R (NER) BEESE(EE. S55BEENER
Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if | 5.5 Waste
applicable, with reference to per unit produced. Management

A3 BRERARER

A3: THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

A3 —REE HEBETAARBRAABERENERNZBHBE - 52 RIHER
General Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the ' 5.2 Environmental
disclosure environment and natural resources. Management
A3.1 M EBEHEARRRAABERNEAZERERNEEEHATEN  S52REEE

1180 54 FIKER
Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment = 5.2 Environmental
and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them. Management
5.4 Water
Management

A4 RiRZL

A4: CLIMATE CHANGE

Ad —REkE BRIREHELRAGEEHRTAEEZENERNRGHEBEENR 51 "EE L

% o

General Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related | 5.1 Climate Change

disclosure issues which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

Ad.1 MR EUBRTAEEYENEARGIEESE  REHTE - 51 REE L
Description of the significant climate-related issues which have | 5.1 Climate Change
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions
taken to manage them.
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BE HRENEE  #Hf BYEH
Statement/
Aspect KPI Description Section
TEHBREBHLE
SUBJECT AREA (B) SOCIAL
Bl ERRZEIER
B1: EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
B1 —RkE B 6.1 B REHEK
@ BmE: R
b) BFHETABEAFENHBEIZRAMNNESR
General Information on: 6.1 Cohesive Team
disclosure @ the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer.
B1.1 IR ERER (M2RBSGEE) FREMNREASNEREE . 61 ARENNEK
Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or part- | 6.1 Cohesive Team
time), age group and geographical region.
B1.2 BIR FRAERNMBREDHEERKLL K. 6.1 B REHEK
Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. = 6.1 Cohesive Team
B2  EEHEZZ

B2: HEALTH AND SAFETY

B2

—RkE B 6.1 BREZ I8 E K
@ BE: R
() BITHBETABEAFENEBEEEZRAINER -

General Information on: 6.1 Cohesive Team

disclosure @ the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer.

B2.1 BE-F (PEERFE)BFRIUHMAB R X 6.1 BREZ I0E K
Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past = 6.1 Cohesive Team
three years including the reporting year.

B2.2 HIGELXTEBE: 6.1 BEZ OE K
Lost days due to work injury. 6.1 Cohesive Team

B2.3 TR R 2B URBERTRER - 6.1 BREZ I8 E K

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how
they are implemented and monitored.

6.1 Cohesive Team
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Aspect KPI
B3 : #EREI

it

Description

B3: DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

BB
Statement/
Section

B3 —REE FRRAEREBTIEBRENMNHM R RENBR -l HEs - 6.1 B REHOEK
General Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging = 6.1 Cohesive Team
disclosure duties at work. Description of training activities.

B3.1 BEUFIREESREMN (NERERE FREEE)AINRIEEERS 61 ARENNEK
Lt e
The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category = 6.1 Cohesive Team
(e.g. senior management, middle management).

B3.2 BEURIREEERE S BREETHIINFHRL- 6.1 BRZ0E K
The average training hours completed per employee by gender and = 6.1 Cohesive Team
employee category.

B4 : % T %8|

B4: LABOUR STANDARDS

B4 — k= B 6.1 BRZ8E K

@ BE: R
b) BFHETABERFENHBEIZRAMNNES

General Information on: 6.1 Cohesive Team

disclosure (@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer.

B4.1 it B A SRR R ET RAEHBI 6.1 BRE O EK
Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child = 6.1 Cohesive Team
and forced labour.

B4.2 R B IR ERIF R ER A BB R EREE & 8 o 6.1 B REHOHEK
Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. = 6.1 Cohesive Team
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BE HMRANER  #Hf BHEH

Aspect KPI
B5 :{HEHEEE
B5: SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Description

Statement/
Section

B5

— = BIR ML E SR EYIRIE R At 2 RS UK o 4.2 REEER
General Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply = 4.2 Supply Chain
disclosure chain. Management
B5.1 EmRE SR HERRE - 4.2 RIEEER
Number of suppliers by geographical region. 4.2 Supply Chain
Management
B5.2 W EAERRERNEN MERTEAEANREREE Uk 42 HEEER
HERRTRERF A
Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of = 4.2 Supply Chain
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and how they are | Management
implemented and monitored.
B5.3 BB EERGERSNRERCGRARNEN - AREER 42 HEEER
TRERR A
Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks | 4.2 Supply Chain
along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored. | Management
B5.4 W EREREAREESARRERIRENEN  URBERT 42 HEEER
RERFT %o
Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable = 4.2 Supply Chain
products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are = Management
implemented and monitored.
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Bm

Aspect
B6 . EmREMR

Bé

MEENER  fHd BYEH
Statement/
KPI Description Section
B6: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

— = B IBEMEBERLZR
@ BE: R
b) BFHBETABEAVENHBEIEZRAONNER -

General Information on: 4.3 Product Quality

disclosure @ the policies; and and Safety
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer.

B6.1 PESCEXERLETFRL2ERRERMABKNED L I3EREEREZE
Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety | 4.3 Product Quality
and health reasons. and Safety

B6.2 BEREEREDRRBEHIRFEE ARES % I3EREERELE
Number of products and service related complaints received and how | 4.3 Product Quality
they are dealt with. and Safety

B6.3 R g RSN REERBANED - I3EMERREZR
Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual | 4.3 Product Quality
property rights. and Safety

B6.4 HEERTBERERERIER- I3EMBEREZE
Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. 4.3 Product Quality

and Safety

B6.5 HIUEBEEERRERALBEE  UREERTRERE. IIEREEREREZR
Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how | 4.3 Product Quality
they are implemented and monitored. and Safety
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Bm

Aspect
B7 - RET

B/0*

BRANER

KPI

B7: ANTI-CORRUPTION

it

Description

B EH
Statement/
Section

B7 —REE B 6.1 B REHEEK
@ BE: R
b) BFHBETABEAVENHBEIEZRAONNER -
General Information on: 6.1 Cohesive Team
disclosure (@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer.
B7.1 RERBAAYETASEEEREICELNESHARGENHER 6.1 BEZNNEK
AR o
Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought = 6.1 Cohesive Team
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
B7.2 WS R R R URBBRITRER % 6.1 BRZ I8E K
Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, = 6.1 Cohesive Team
how they are implemented and monitored.
B7.3 HilmMEEREIRENRESHE - 6.1 BREZ I0E K
Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. 6.1 Cohesive Team
B8 (#HERE
B8: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
B8 —RkE BHENHE2ERTHREEMTARFENEREER EHEEEML  2HERE
I8 M &5 O BUSR ©
General Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the = 6.2 Communities
disclosure communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take = Engagement
into consideration the communities” interests.
BS.1 EIRBEE (YA RESE SIRK EF L -8BE)- 62 tESH
Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, & 6.2 Communities
labour needs, health, culture, sport). Engagement
B8.2 ERIHBMPAER (NLBERER) - 62t RS H
Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. 6.2 Communities
Engagement

4z o ANNUAL REPORT 2024

67



BEEMAREAEBHE T _ME+_-A
Z+—BUIFENFRERDLEEZGEATE
wx ([IssRE]) -

AARMFEBEFAKREZER MARREE
WEARNEBEBERY B RERM 27 o

RIBEBRAHROIM RSB R ELBRAASE
BEEXH2E—FImEDNT (BRAKE
PREHNEZRR LK TBAREZHBRA
SEXBORKER)I2HBANNFRF9
EMENEREBT MmO R maRNES
gHE WD

RERRKET
AEBENEEFERNBBRRERIER
BREAERE R - AEBEB B BHIAEIN
Ra BRI R E A R E AR R RS R
B2 HE BN ERRE R AR AR
ETHBARBEARAMBANBERLTEE-

BIFEERER
AEETHEFNZEER LR (LEER
BB R RIER)EANABERNERR
TENERER -AEEBABDEEMNZF
i‘@IZ MAKRERETERRERZF R

Bo-AEER_T—=F—-ATHAEHX
ﬁﬁj:m R-ZZE_NEEBEFE  ANEEEMR
BEATEHDETRER PELRBEED
TREAR KRR -

FEBE
(i) &S
Zx‘ilhf/m 5 N E B IAR 3

ENHBIER - BRILEBIAR T8
/\E\—E%aﬁlﬁ%z—*ﬁ cR-F
“FREFE ASERSREEH
BRI BREB R AT AR RIER -

The Directors are pleased to present the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2024 (the “Financial Statements”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and those
of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 27 to
the Financial Statements.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group's principal activities
as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group and an indication of likely future development in the
Group's business, can be found in the Management Discussion and
Analysis set out on pages 9 to 14 of this annual report. This discussion
forms part of this director’s report.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group continues to update the requirements of the relevant
environmental laws and regulations applicable to it to ensure
compliance. The Group strive to minimise environmental impact by
saving electricity and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other
materials. We also require the manufacturers and the constructor
to operate in strict compliance with the relevant environmental
regulations and rules.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group continues to update the requirement of the relevant
laws and regulations in various countries and regions, particularly
in the Hong Kong, the PRC and Cambodia, applicable to it to ensure
compliance. Substantially majority of the Group's assets are located
and the Group’s revenue is mainly derived from operations in these
areas. The Group was listed on the Stock Exchange on 15 January
2013. During the year 2024 under review, the Group complied with the
relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong, the PRC and Cambodia in
all material respects.

Key Relationships

(i) Employees
The Group offers competitive remuneration packages to attract,
retain and motivate employees. Key personnel have been part
of the management team since the inception of business.
During the year 2024 under review, the Group considered the
relationship with employees was well and the turnover rate is
acceptable and normal.
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(ii)

(iir)

Suppliers

The Group has developed long standing relationships with a
number of our vendors and take great care to ensure they share
our commitment to quality and ethics. The Group selects its
manufacturers and constructors carefully and requires them to
satisfy certain assessment criteria including experience, financial
strength, reputation, ability to produce high quality products and
quality control effectiveness.

customers

The Group is committed to offer a broad and diverse range
of inspiring, value-for money, good-quality fashion to our
customers. We also stay connected with our customers in order
to meet their need. We have ongoing communications with them
through various channels like telephone, email and marketing
materials.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 and
the Group’s financial position as at 31 December 2024 are set out in
the Financial Statements on pages 89 to 172 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: nil).

According to the Company’s existing dividend policy, the Board shall
consider the following factors before declaring or recommending
dividends:

the Company'’s actual and expected financial performance;
retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the subsidiaries of the Group;

the Group's working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements and future expansion plans,

the Group’s liquidity position;

general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group's
business and internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business, financial results and position of the
Company; and

other factors that the Board deems to be relevant.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the
applicable laws and the Company's Articles of Association.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 8 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the Financial Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in Note 13 to the Financial Statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of distributable reserves of the Company are set out in Note 31
to the Financial Statements.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year 2024, the Group made charitable contribution totalling
approximately of HK$22,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group's largest and five largest customers accounted
for approximately 53.9% and 95.9% of the total revenue for the year
2024. Purchases from the Group's largest and five largest suppliers,
which comprise raw material suppliers and third party manufacturers,
accounted for approximately 23.3% and 54.7% of the total purchases
for the year 2024.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the Directors, their
associates, nor any shareholders who owned more than 5% of the
number of issued shares of the Company, had any beneficial interest
in any of the Group's five largest customers or suppliers during the
year ended 31 December 2024.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note
27 to the Financial Statements.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company who hold office during the year and up
to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Huang Chih Shen (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Huang Li Hun, Serlina

R BR /2] e SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Ting Kon

Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina

Mr. Cheung Cheuk Cheung, Terence

Mr. Chan Tsang Mo

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years either from the
Listing Date or 14 February 2020 and shall continue thereafter until
terminated by, not less than three months' notice in writing served by
either party on the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
from 20 December 2024 or 31 August 2023, subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at annual general meeting and until
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by
either party on the other.

No Director is bound by any service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within 1 year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received annual confirmation on independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and all of them are considered to be
independent.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Huang
Chih Shen and Ms. Huang Li Hun, Serlina are subject to retirement by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director or other officer
of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
of the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained
by him as a Director or other officer of the Company in defending any
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in
his favour, or in which he is acquitted.

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Company during the year 2024. The permitted indemnity provision is
in force for the benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong) when
the Report of the Board of the Directors prepared by the Directors
is approved in accordance with section 391(1)@) of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong).
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company or its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company or an entity connected with a Director of the
Company is or was materially interested, either directly or indirectly,
subsisting at the end of the year 2024 or at any time during the year
2024.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Group are disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Profile” on pages 15 to 18 of this annual report.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Group fell within the following bands:

BE+-A=+—-HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E_MF B
2024 2023
A N
Number Number

W AE Bl Emolument bands
= 500,000/ 7T Nil — HK$500,000 5 5
500,001 7t 2 1,000,0005% 7T HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 1 2
1,000,001 7T & 1,500,0007% 7T HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 2 2
3,000,001/% 7T 23,500,000/ 7T HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 - 1
3,500,001/% 7T 24,000,000/ 7T HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 1 -
5,500,001/% 7T 2 6,000,000/ 7T HK$5,500,001 — HK$6,000,000 1 -

REBEEMHRBIMEI6ZREMATHRENE
EFMR AR HEEE—FFEIIE
RIS ERA P 32 -

Further particulars regarding Director's remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in Note 32 to the Financial
Statements, respectively.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no contract of
significance for provision of services to which the Company or its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
any Controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries had a material
interest subsisting at the end of the year 2024 or at any time during
the year 2024.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

The Controlling Shareholders entered into the Deed of Non-
competition and the Controlling Shareholders have confirmed to the
Company of his/its compliance with the Deed of Non-Competition
provided to the Company during the year 2024.

The conflicts committee of the Company and the independent
non-executive Directors had reviewed the status of compliance and
also the confirmations by the Controlling Shareholders and, on the
basis of such confirmations, are of the view that the Controlling
Shareholders has complied with the Deed of Non-Competition.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has made an annual declaration
in respect of their compliance with the terms of non-competition
undertaking as provided in their service agreements.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the status
of compliance as well as confirmation by each executive Director of
the Company and, on the basis of such confirmation, are of the view
that such executive Directors of the Company have complied with
the non-competition undertakings under their service agreements
and these non-competition undertakings have been enforced by the
Company in accordance with its terms.
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A summary of significant related party transactions, which do not
constitute non-exempted connected transactions under the Listing
Rules, made during the year 2024 is disclosed in Note 30 to the
Financial Statements. The Company confirmed that it has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

The Company's existing Share Option Scheme was approved for
adoption pursuant to a written resolution of all of our shareholders
passed on 26 May 2022 for the purpose to provide our Company
with a flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to eligible participants and for
such other purposes as the Board approve from time to time.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board may, at
their absolute discretion, grant or invite any person belonging to any
of the following classes to take up options to subscribe for shares:

(@ any employee, supplier/service provider, customer, partner
or joint venture partner of the Group (including any director,
whether executive and whether independent or not, of the
Group) who is in full time or part time employment with the
Company or any subsidiaries, or

(b) any person who have contributed or may contribute to the
Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company must not exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company must not exceed 10%
of the total number of shares in issue on the adoption date of the
Share Option Scheme unless the Company seeks the approval of the
shareholders in general meeting for refreshing the 10% limit under
the Share Option Scheme provided that options lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme or any other share option
schemes of the Company will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating 10% limit.
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The Share Option Scheme was adopted for a period of 10 years
commencing from 26 May 2022 and remains in force until 25 May
2032. The Company may, by resolution in general meeting or, such
date as the Board determined, terminate the Share Option Scheme at
any time without prejudice to the exercise of options granted prior to
such termination.

The exercise price per share of the Company for each option granted
shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion but in any
event shall be at least the higher of:

(1) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of offer for the
grant of option (“Date of Grant”) which must be a trading day;

(2) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
guotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
trading days immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and

(3)  the nominal value of the shares on the Date of Grant.

Upon acceptance of the options, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the
Company as consideration for the grant. The acceptance of an offer
of the grant of the option must be made within the date as specified
in the offer letter issued by the Company. The exercise period of any
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not be longer
than 10 years commencing on the date of grant and expiring on the
last day of such 10-year period subject to the provisions for early
termination as contained in the Share Option Scheme.

The total number of new shares of the Company that may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share options schemes of the Company shall
not exceed 60,000,000 shares, which represents 10% of the shares in
issue of the Company as at the date of this annual report.
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The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted to each grantee
under the Share Option Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the total number of shares in issue. Any further grant of options in
excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to issuance of a circular by the
Company and approved by its shareholders in accordance with the
Listing Rules.

Since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and during the year
2024, no options were granted under the Share Option Scheme. There
is no option outstanding, granted, cancelled or lapsed during the year
2024. The total number of shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme was 60,000,000 Shares and the total number of options
available for grant under the Share Option Scheme as at 1 January
2024 and 31 December 2024 was 60,000,000 Shares and 60,000,000
Shares, respectively. As at the date of this report, the total number of
shares available for issue and the total number of options available for
grant represents 10% of the issued shares of the Company.

Apart from the aforesaid share option schemes, at no time during
the year ended 31 December 2024 was any of the Company and its
holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate, and none of the Directors, or their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the shares
in, or debentures of, the Company, or had exercise any such right.

As at 31 December 2024, the Company's Directors and chief
executives had the following interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company, its Group
members and/or associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ"), as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code:
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b /N The Company
FEERERT HHEYARER
ESpR HEEEEE LR 13 (BaE1) REMAB DL
Name of Group Number and class Approximate
member/associated  Capacity/nature of securities percentage of
Name of Director corporation of interest (Note 1) shareholding
BEREE /NS ZEEERER (H:E2) 327,242,6880% 54.54%
Mr. Huang Chih Shen Our Company Interest of a controlled e=gald(h)
corporation (Note 2) 327,242,683

ordinary shares (L)

BEBfELT YN ERBEAA 92,0008% 0.02%
Ms. Huang Li Hun, Serlina Our Company Beneficial owner =g ld(h)
92,000
ordinary shares (L)
B 5 Notes:
1. [LIBESRARRSEBBEEEZERD 2T - 1. The letter “L” denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares of our Company or

the relevant associated corporation.

2. FEZERmEERRARRMFEREZ MR =2 2 The disclosed interest represented the interest in the Company held by Sky Halo

ZHFEF+Z A=+ R #ERABHRTESTEER which was in turn wholly owned by Mr. Huang Chih Shen, an executive Director
EE2BHEE AU REIBHFRAEGKRD EEHR as at 31 December 2024. Therefore, Mr. Huang Chih Shen was deemed to be
EEWRBEAERNAQ B interested in the interest of Sky Halo in the Company by virtue of the SFO.
BEHARESR
EEg 20 £:3:3-1 (BaE1) REMABT DL
Name of Group Number and class Approximate
member/associated  Capacity/nature of securities percentage of
Name of Director corporation of interest (Note 1) shareholding
BEEASE iR BEmEAA 10,000M% & 3 A% 100.00%
Mr. Huang Chih Shen Sky Halo Beneficial owner 10,000
ordinary shares
B 5 Note:
1. I BEEEEER 2R » —mME+=ZA 1. The disclosed interest represented the interest in Sky Halo which was wholly
=+—RHA#%XH %RS%&EE%E%E owned by Mr. Huang Chih Shen as at 31 December 2024.

BEXHESEN R-Z_ME+=-H=+— Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the
A BERARFEBITHRAEMERARQR  Directors and chief executives of the Company had any other interests
HEMRSEBEMKE QAR SEMBEEAE (F& KFE  or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of
H M HE GO EXVER) E @ %5 B the Company, any of its Group members or its associated corporations
BREEBEF HEEREEAENMBPEKMEXVES  (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the
FINESDHABMEARN R LB LA TR Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
HMERIOAR (BRESREBEZFHFLESEE  Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
BB R AT RIERBNERIAE) © were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
AR B 5 R B E G0 E35218 808k 5% & or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
YAt B MRS B EEEST BIFR E MM entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
HuhigEmgokB - pursuant to the Model Code.
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FERRNEAQATRMDRIEBERADT  SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND/OR
WEEER KA SHORT POSITION IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

RZE-NFE+-A=+—H BESEFA -  As at 31 December 2024, so far as was known to the Directors, the
UWTAL B (EEARRIEETHMAER  following persons/entities (other than the Directors or chief executive
AN AARAF - EEMEBEKE QAT K8 of the Company) had, or were deemed to have, interests or short
HAEBABR D BB - AR A positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company, its Group
HAEBEEA M EGEMEXVEEE2$39  members and/or associated corporations which would fall to be
HigxABRARRBRENERIOAR D2 disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
MNBRIEE S RS GME336KAATEEFE  Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to

MEDMAMEZRIAR be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:
AEERERQT BHEHARER
RREB S HEEZEER B/ REEtE (BEaE1) REGHED L
Name of Group Number and class Approximate
member/associated  Capacity/nature of securities percentage of
Name of Shareholder corporation of interest (Note 1) shareholding
R (F5E2) ZAYN| EmEBA 327,242,6881% 54.54%
Sky Halo (Note 2) Our Company Beneficial owner =g uld(B]
327,242,688

ordinary shares (L)

BE& 7+ (HHF3) FiN/NE]! ENic3 327,242,6881% 54.54%
Ms. Cheuk Wai Ying (Note 3) Our Company Family LEARL)
327,242,688

ordinary shares (L)

PR St 5 A PN/ EHEAA 33,031,758% 551%
Mr. Chan Hung Kwong, Our Company Beneficial owner Az
Patrick 33,031,758

ordinary shares (L)

BHRELE FiN/N]! EmEA A 30,204,0008% 5.03%
Mr. Cheuk Lim Fai Our Company Beneficial owner =gy
30,204,000

ordinary shares (L)
B 5 Notes:

1. [LIEZATRARAISEFEEEKESEBEE 1. The letter “L" denotes the person's long position in the shares of our Company or
[ty 2 4f B ° the relevant Group member or associated corporation.

2. AN EBRELZESAMAL MR _Z_MF 2 Sky Halo was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and the entire issued share
+ZA=+—HB H2HIBBHTRABEEZREE capital of which was wholly owned by Mr. Huang Chih Shen as at 31 December
TEHER- 2024.

3. BREFHFLBEGS SEFREENRBEEL L 3 Ms. Cheuk Wai Ying, spouse of Mr. Huang Chih Shen, was deemed to be interested
THEAERETRCERAN AR AR in Mr. Huang Chih Shen's interest in the Company by virtue of the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, the Directors were
not aware of any other persons/entities (other than the Directors and
chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company, its Group members
or associated corporations which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

During the year 2024, save as disclosed in the Prospectus, none of the
Directors or substantial shareholders of the Company or any of their
respective associates has engaged in any business that competes or
may compete with the business of the Group or has any other conflict
of interests with the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem any of its listed securities, and neither
did the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of the
Company’s listed securities during the year 2024. As at 31 December
2024, the Company did not hold any treasury shares.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules during the year
2024.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices can be found in
the Corporate Governance Report contained on pages 19 to 32 in this
annual report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was set up for reviewing the Company’s
emolument policy and structure of all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Company, having regard to the
Company'’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market practices. No long-term incentive schemes have been adopted
by the Company.

IMPORTANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There is no important event affecting the Company and its subsidiaries
which has occurred after the reporting period.

AUDITORS

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring auditors, Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers, is to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM
of the Company.

By order of the Board

Speedy Global Holdings Limited
Huang Chih Shen

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 March 2025
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To the Shareholders of Speedy Global Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Speedy Global Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are
set out on pages 89 to 172, comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2024;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to assessment of net
realisable value of slow-moving and obsolete inventories.
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Net realisable value of slow-moving and
obsolete inventories

B2 E T mERM A0 R EET ©
Refer to note 4(b) and note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.
BEEEREREEETHRE KR BT HE
BEMRECHBR BHUELNEBEAEBKR
Eﬁ%%j%ﬁﬁ*ﬁ%%ﬁﬁTh—%%

MREFER ﬁﬁﬂ@iﬁ_Y_Ei
TZA=1t— E BEENEBFERE
1% #5,712,0007% 7T °

The Group manufactures and sells a wide
range of woven wear, cut-and-sewn knitwear
and sweater knitwear products. The value of
these products will drop significantly when
they become obsolete or there is a change
in customers’ demand. The slow-moving and
obsolete inventories may be impaired. As
at 31 December 2024, management made a
provision of approximately HK$5,712,000 for
such inventories.

BMTHREEEHSHELREFE AR FENNEIES RFEB

2 WRBE BN AREMERE MEME A ERERKE m
EHE - TBE - BEURTSZHEEERLIMFNTZE  FHE
BERERH AR -

We obtained an understanding of the management’s internal control

and process of assessing the net realisable value of slow-moving

and obsolete inventories, and assessed the inherent risk of material

misstatement by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and

the level of other inherent risk factors, such as complexity, subjectivity,

changes and susceptibility to management bias or fraud.

BHEMITRRRE B

Specific procedures we have performed included:

o ﬁﬁ%ﬁ&%ﬁTffﬂ@%ﬁmzk%ﬂi

AR ENET

o We evaluated and tested the key controls over the impairment
assessment of inventories, including the procedures on
estimating the net realisable value of the inventorieS'

o  HFERTEMHFEEABNKREME WiR FEREZE
iR R BR A B S B R 1

° We obtained the ageing profile of each inventory item and
tested the accuracy of the ageing profile, on a sample basis, by
checking to the inventory records,

e HRMHETHEREHREIEREER
AEITHE

° We checked the selling prices obtained from subsequent sales
orders and invoices, on a sample basis, and compared to the
cost of inventories;

BIEGEF

P ESHER YHEEFEX
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We focused on auditing the impairment
of slow-moving and obsolete inventories
because the estimation of net realisable
value is subject to high degree of estimation
uncertainty. The inherent risk in relation to the
impairment assessment of slow-moving and
obsolete inventories is considered significant
due to significant judgements involved in
estimating the selling prices less costs to
sell, taking into consideration of the ageing
of inventories, preliminary production and
sales plans agreed with customers, historical
experience of selling inventories of similar
nature and other available factors.

e HMETEENRAUERZBHENFHEIAREFTENER
FERET G WASIHERE BUERMNERNMEER EL
MEEREETFENTHEN RBERME) EITHA

° We discussed with management as to its assessment on the net
realisable value for slow moving and obsolete inventories with no
subsequent sales, collaborating explanations with sales orders,
current market prices of similar products, historical margins and
marketability of the relevant inventories, as appropriate;

e EMHEEZEMBEAMTENETHRGERE WRBERE
HEPHENVFHETE EREEEBH A ZRFED
TEH] -

° We obtained evidence from events occurring up to the auditor’s
report date and challenged management’'s expectation in
estimating the net realisable value by considering the preliminary
sales plans agreed with customers.

ER R r RMRREBEERTEEERERERIERAN

RBREATREESNBIEZFFo

Based on the procedures above, we considered that management’s

judgements and assumptions applied in the assessment of provision

for impairment of inventories were supportable by the evidences
obtained.



7§$MﬁﬁMEuﬁ\°ﬁ@ﬁba%
Eﬁwmﬁﬁﬁu BrEREEEMBHREL
HAPIRZBED RS -

BPYGEEVBRRNBEREL TREHME
B BMTAEZEEMERBEREMEAN
%muuufﬁil

SEBRMYRAMBERRNES  RANEME
HMES HUBEEST EREMER
gt % BB mAABMERTBREFA
fig 1 ﬂTﬁéﬁﬁ%&%M?ﬁﬁéﬁ
R 15,

BB

IEE
&
i
i

ERZFEHTHIE MREMRBEAMRE
BEEERERRL RMAFEREZXFE-
FEDE LPLA EMHRE-

BERARESFARARBREG MG EM
=) <<%.5/%ﬁ7f7r%$& R REBE (RBHERDD
mﬁ%ﬁmﬁﬁﬁfﬁ$ﬁm”A%%ﬁi'
VTHERR/REREMBRERROEE N FE
m% ﬁiﬁ&ﬁ M B RERRALFTF
HY A BB E

ERESAMBHRRN EFRANHEERHE
FERKEMEE N YEERBERN TREEFE
REBFENER URERFKELLEREE
BBRIFEEAEREEEBRIF LS
SR EEMERNERTR

\
’

o

Fo B
N

WH

o

i3S

i

JEH

><l

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

° Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business units within the Group as a basis for forming an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the audit
work performed for purposes of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Pang Ho Yin.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2025



RO TSI R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R-ZF_WF+=-A=1+—H

As at 31 December 2024

R+=—B=+-—AH
As at 31 December
—E_MF &
2024 2023
FE T FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
kREBEE Non-current assets
LE R Property, plant and equipment 6 2,231 9,105
ERREEE Right-of-use assets - 214
IRIEF IE & B Deferred tax assets 18 2,369 2,646
4,600 11,965
REBEE Current assets
T Inventories 7 75,914 43,259
JE U BR SR R EL i i W 3R TR Trade and other receivables 9 104,762 62,370
AN R TE Prepayments 10 10,692 16,252
FEEIRITIE R Short-term bank deposits 12 - 30,942
BehBEeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 11 87,342 96,173
278,710 248,996
EEHAE Total assets 283,310 260,961
Ex EQUITY
AAREEFEEAEMLERZ  Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company
& 7 Share capital 13 60,000 60,000
B 1@ B Share premium 13 53,441 53,441
E B Other reserves 14 15,076 14,150
2ETEE Accumulated losses (42,399) (58,056)
B Total equity 86,118 69,535
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RO TS AT R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RZZE_mMFE+-_A=+—H Asat31December 2024

R+=—B=+-—AH
As at 31 December
S EF &
2024 2023
FE T FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
= LIABILITIES
kERBEE Non-current liabilities
RERIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 18 1,462 1,224
1,462 1,224
REBAE Current liabilities
JE A BR 3R B LA JE A< FRIR Trade and other payables 15 109,842 88,389
EHAE Contract liabilities 1,759 1,009
BVEATR I & (& Current tax liabilities 8,077 4,073
FEAT RLE SRR Finance payables 16 54,889 30,591
IRITIEE Bank borrowings 17 21,163 65,918
HESE Lease liabilities - 222
195,730 190,202
EEHE Total liabilities 197,192 191,426
ERkEBEE Total equity and liabilities 283,310 260,961

LR & B RS AR N R R S — R GE o The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read

on conjunction with the accompanying notes.

FIBNMNAEZHMEBRRN _ZE-_RAFE = The financial statements on pages 89 to 172 were approved by the
ZTN\BEESFgHE YHATRERESZ- Board of Directors on 28 March 2025 and were signed on its behalf.

BEER BEET
Huang Chih Shen Huang Li Hun, Serlina
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mOEBWm
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE_Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2024

BE+-A=+—-HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-mE =45
2024 2023
FE T FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
W zs Revenue 5 660,549 462,331
SHER A Cost of sales 20 (579,136) (423,008)
EF Gross profit 81,413 39,323
HE RS Selling and marketing expenses 20 (1,176) (1,482)
THREXS Administrative expenses 20 (48,966) (40,302)
SREERE(EB),/ Net impairment (losses)/reversal on
BELFE financial assets 3.1(b)&21 (697) 102
H AU A Other income 561 462
Hit (F518) /et —F58  Other (losses)/gains - net 19 (6,050) 524
R S (FFE) Operating profit/(loss) 25,085 (1,373)
BB A Finance income 23 2,415 3,190
A& A Finance costs 23 (3,958) (7,140)
BERK A —F5 Finance costs — net (1,543) (3,950)
BMRETEBATER, (Ei8) Profit/(loss) before income tax 23,542 (5,323)
Fref (%) e Income tax (expense)/credit 24 (6,641) 373
RATREREEAES Profit/(loss) for the year attributable
qzlaq;‘;if*u/ (E548) to equity holders of the Company 16,901 (4,950)
ERNHEMREEEE M Other comprehensive loss for
BiE the year, net of tax
HiE R fEEF MR IE2s 4y Items that may be reclassified
EA subsequently to profit or 10ss
PE 3 =%F Currency translation differences (318) (946)
AATEBEBEEAENS Total comprehensive income/(loss)
ERZHEKA (FE) for the year attributable to equity
g holders of the Company 16.583 (5.896)
FERAQTEZRIZE AE(S Basic and diluted earnings/(losses)
W (F5iE)wEmE  per share for profit/(loss)
RBERF S (FBE) attributable to equity holders of
(SRS TTHR) the Company for the year
TLIIR (expressed in HK$ per share) 25 0.0282 (0.0083)

LR e EREREEN G —HE- The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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mROlEmB R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE_ZT-_WFE+_—_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2024

ADRREEEAES
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
B RDEE Hinfi e 2 B8R @t
Share Share Other  Accumulated

capital premium reserves losses Total

T THT FHT TEx TEx

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(B &E13) (B &E13) (P &E14)
(note 13) (note 13) (note 14)
RZZE-=5-F-Hz&&H Balance as at 1 January 2023 60,000 53,441 15,096 (53,106) 75,431
FRER Loss for the year - - - (4,950) (4,950)
HE2EBA Other comprehensive income - - (946) - (946)
BREETRE Transfer to statutory reserves - - - - -
FRE2AFRESE Total comprehensive loss for the year - - (946) (4,950) (5,896)
R=-Z-=%+=-H=+—Bz#%t Balance as at 31 December 2023 60,000 53,441 14,150 (58,056) 69,535
R-B-_ME-A-Az&H Balance as at 1 January 2024 60,000 53,441 14,150 (58,056) 69,535
FREF Profit for the year - - - 16,901 16,901
Em2mEkA Other comprehensive income - - (318) - (318)
AR ETERE Transfer to statutory reserves - - 1,244 (1,244) -
FRZEUAEE Total comprehensive income

for the year - - 926 15,657 16,583

R-Z-M%+=A=+—B 248t Balance as at 31 December 2024 60,000 53,441 15,076 (42,399) 86,118

Litir e B e R EEM T — & The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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mOIREMER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE_ZT-_W&F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2024

BE+-A=+—-HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-IEF —ZTZ=F
2024 2023
F#&xT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RETHNHEERE Cash flows from operating activities
K& (A /Fsde Cash (used in)/generated from
operations 28(a) (15,647) 29,907
BEATFTSH Income taxes paid (2,352) (260)
BFIE Interest paid (3,958) (7,140)
resEEmIES ORE),  Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating
MAFEE activities (21,957) 22,507
RETENEERE Cash flows from investing activities
BEWE WE&&RE 23 Payments for purchase of property, plant
and equipment 6 (596) (963)
HEME HEMBREMS  Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
A and equipment 28(b) 199 553
HEWB AR (MR EER  Disposal of a subsidiary (net of cash and
RehkBEeZEEY) cash equivalents disposed) 1,503 -
MHRITHER ORd) 1 (Decrease)/increase in short-term bank
deposits 30,942 (30,942)
2 U FIE Interest received 3,004 2,576
REZFBNHRSRA Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing
() 55 activities 35,052 (28,776)
RETHNESRE Cash flows from financing activities
HEEFE LB TR Proceeds received under supplier finance
A arrangements 221,338 169,201
BEEMEHRIE Proceeds from borrowings 32,829 28,000
HEERELHETHER Repayments under supplier finance
arrangements (196,772) (181,911)
BEEE Repayment of borrowings (77,584) (70,393)
HEMNRZAEES Principal elements of lease payments (222) (2,071)
BEEMNIE SR FE Net cash outflow from financing activities (20,411) (57,174)
ReRELEEYRAPEE Net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents (7,316) (63,443)
FYReRBESZEYD Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 96,173 160,720
EXEFHERERASE Effects of exchange rate changes on
BY w2 cash and cash equivalents (1,515) (1,104)
FRESRESZEZEY cash and cash equivalents
at end of the year 87,342 96,173
LR aReRnEREENF—HE- The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Speedy Global Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the apparel supply chain servicing business which offers a
wide range of woven wear, cut-and-sewn knitwear and sweater
knitwear products to a number of owners or agents of global
reputable brands (the “Apparel Supply Chain Servicing Business”).

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 28
September 2011 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law (2010 Revision) of the Cayman Islands.
The address of its registered office is at the office of Vistra
(Cayman) Limited, PO. Box 31119, Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way,
802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman Islands.

The Company has been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 15 January 2013.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar ("HK$"), unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 4.



RO MRS AR 5E
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 mEEBEERETTHESE (£ 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(@) AEBEEMWEFTREIETE (@) New and amended standards adopted by the
Al Group
rEEER-_ZE-_NF—A—HBH The Group has applied the following new and amended
MRS S R ERAR T R 2 standards for its annual reporting period commencing 1
BAERTZER] January 2024:

New and amended

AT RAERTER & standards Subject
BB ER MEN L IE R B Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
F15% (BF] ) BEIER as Current or Non-current
B A5 22 58 Y and Non-current liabilities
EmBEE with covenants Insurance
REEELD Contracts
BEZEELR B mERm2 Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial
(&IEET) Hl|— A (Revised) Amendments to Statements — Classification
BB ER HEBIRE HKAS 8 by the Borrower of a
85k (187 48) KB BIEK Term Loan that Contains
") TE HRE 3K a Repayment on
EoloRsl Demand Clause
BEMEWmE BB HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in Sale and
AR 1655 HEaRE Leaseback
BEGRER HEBRE HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 Supplier Finance
ETHRREE = HE Arrangements
gl
Eykid
LA RSB ET & E'J‘é‘éﬁﬁﬁfﬁsﬁﬁ The new and amended standards listed above did not have
BRANSELETRTE FHHRY any impact on the amounts recognized in prior periods
REB IR RPETEHERFE and are not expected to significantly affect the current or
2. future periods.
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RO RIS 2R MY 5
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 REEERETTHEEE (&) 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) HARRMZEBITEIRRE (b) Amended standards and interpretation not yet
adopted
R-ZE-_NF+_-_A=Z+—HBE% Certain amendments to existing standards and
HE T TR EMREIREER R interpretation have been published that are not mandatory
REMEE] BAKERIRFEHELN - for December 31, 2024 and have not been early adopted
ZEBR AR TS 1EE B 2 R 2R3 by the Group. None of these is expected to have a material
EHAR Y AN B LA K AT 8 B AY R 2R impact on the Group in the current or future reporting

ROELEERTE-

BETEARRE

Amended standards and
Interpretation

BEREHERENR R

BRI BREERER (BFTA)
Amendments to HKAS 21 and HKFRS 1
BRI B WmEERER K
BERUBREERETR (BFTAR)
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7

BREMBEREEARIR
BRMBREERTH
BB RS LRSS
BREMBEREERE105 R
BREGMRAETHR (BTA)

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10 and HKAS 7

BEMBREEAFI8H

HKFRS 18

BERBES (BIF)

Amendments Hong Kong
Interpretation 5

EEMBRELENFEI9%R

HKFRS 19

BB RS ERFE105 &
BB ERF28% (15574)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

96

periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

=
ZERBN
3 FEESHHBEEN
Effective for annual
accounting periods
Subject beginning on or after
e el e —E-AF¥—A—H
Lack of Exchangeability 1 January 2025
SRIADERFEMERT —EZXE—-A—H
Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of 1 January 2026
Financial Instruments
ERENBREEANSHTERNFEIE-F1E ZEZRF—-AH—H
Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting Standards — 1 January 2026
Volume 11
BBHRERNET RER —E-tF—-A—H
Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements 1 January 2027
BERARESRMBRRNZI - ERAHEEREXK —ZE-_+%—-H—H
ERGFNEHERND R
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 presentation of Financial Statements 1 January 2027

- Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand Clause

FARBHEMNHNEAR FE —E-+F—-H—H
Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures 1 January 2027
WEEHEBEAASEGEPEZEANEELEIRA BT
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and To be determined

its Associate or Joint Venture

ARIRBIEMRBRAT] o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash
flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance.

(@) Market risk

()

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations.

Foreign exchange risk arises when future
commercial transactions or recognised assets
or liabilities are denominated in a currency
that is not the entity’s functional currency. For
group companies with Renminbi (“RMB”) as
their functional currency, foreign exchange
risk arises primarily with respect of HK$. For
group companies with US dollars (“USD") as
their functional currency, foreign exchange
risk arises primarily with respect of HKS$. For
group companies with HK$ as their functional
currency, foreign exchange risk arises primarily
with respect to RMB. The Group manages its
foreign exchange risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rates.

The Group has investments in the PRC, whose
net assets are exposed to foreign currency
translation risk. Currency exposure arising from
the net assets of the Group’s investments in the
PRC is managed primarily through dividends
paid outside the PRC.
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3 HXEREKRESEE) 3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea)
31 MBEERBREE (&) 3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a wmHEEE (&) (a) Market risk (Continuead)
) sMNERBR (& () Forejgn exchange risk (Continued)

[prgm! Exposure

AEBENRREHARAR The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk
&) HNHE R B B (A at the end of the reporting period, expressed in
TLHR)IAT HK$, is as follows:

s
Foreign currency
AR EY Hith @t

RMB usD Others Total
TET THER TERT FTET
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

—E-mEtZA=1-H 31 December 2024

ReRBEEED Cash and cash equivalents 892 5,277 613 6,782
FEUCR 7 R A P MR IR Trade and other receivables 106 15,186 - 15,292
EER R AR RE Trade and other payables (2,168) (7,179) - (9,347)
NHEATERRIIEE Finance payables and bank borrowings (45,370) - - (45,370)
“B-=£+ZA=t+-H 31 December 2023

BeRBLEED Cash and cash equivalents 4,089 20,615 858 25,562
IR T R A A R MR OR Trade and other receivables 27,519 6,923 - 34,442
ERRREMENTE Trade and other payables (5,894) (385) - 6,279

08  AEmHERARAT e SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 MEBEERERE)

3.1 MBEREE (&)
(@) wEmE(E)

0 SMNEmE (&)
REBERERH S
FA-ATELHERES
BN BR AR

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)
() Foreign exchange risk (Continued)
Amounts recognised in profit or 10ss
During the year, the following foreign-exchange
related amounts were recognised in profit or
loss:

BZEZ+-_A=1t—HLEFE
Year ended 31 December
—ZE_MFE —_E-=

2024 2023
FTHERT THET

AT AEM (E5E),/
W — F R FE
HIEsE (W:E19)

FFABA KA
HNESE BT 5 U 25

(M5E23)

HK$'000 HK$'000

Net foreign exchange losses

included in other (losses)/

gains-net (note 19) (716) (221)
Exchange gains on foreign

currency borrowings included

in finance costs (note 23) - 5

RERK SR ATEF Total net foreign exchange losses

/ (E518) FER A recognised in profit/(10ss)

HIEH B8 before income tax for the year (716) (216)
BRRE Sensitivity
AEEBFERIPBERE The Group mainly operates in the PRC and
BEEEE - MAHLD Hong Kong with most of the transactions
RPAFBIARE ([A denominated and settled in Chinese Renminbi
R#l) -Ex(I%Ex]) ("RMB"), United States dollars (“USD") and
LA TR EBEE E -5 HK$. Foreign exchange risk arises from future

EERKE BEREER
Z FIBEERAR
RBINRIFIE FHE -
AREBEEBTEREHL
RBFEE T I
EE LBz - B IR SN LR
B B 7N 5 B R R
H Al W RIE RE R
RITHS ENERK
H it & 5RR - B 75 R
MRBERRRITIEED
H1B DRIELR S B
H&RMIFT 1115416
RA7HREE -

commercial transactions, acquired assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations. The Group manages its foreign
exchange risks by performing regular reviews
and arranges hedges against foreign exchange
exposures when considered necessary. Details
of the Group's trade and other receivables, cash
and bank balances, trade and other payables,
finance payables and bank borrowings are
disclosed in Notes 9, 11, 15, 16 and 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 H¥ERERE(E)

3.1 WHERAMEE (&)
(@ wHHEE (&)
Q) SrERE (E)

BRE (&)
RZE-_WMF+=A
—t+t—H WMARER
7T ER, K 595% (=
T -=F:5%) BT
EHMEE R AR
FENRITBRE LT
BEZRBEUARE
STEMYIEENKRE
FETEE(ZE ==
& JE WORR B N B Ath R
WK TEH) B 5 W ek
BEmTNE £ (=
=& R TR
#1,943,000 7T ( =
T~ =4 1,074,000
TT) °

RZZE-_WmFE+=A
=t+—H WETLHE
TSR, HE5% (= F
T ZF:5%) BATEE
e ARNFE
BBk PT 15 818 0% A S =
ZERBENETLEE
B JE WBR R R E fth fE
WRB(ZEZ=%F:
RERIBITHESR)WE
Hs EsEmLEAS
T~ B& #9555,000% 7T (=
T — = 4F 11,143,000
JT) °

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)

(@

100 nEmmiEaR AT o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Sensitivity (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024, if RMB had
strengthened/weakened by 5% (2023: 5%)
against the HK$ with all other variables held
constant, profit after income tax for the year
would have been approximately HK$1,943,000
(2023: HK$1,074,000) lower/higher (2023:
higher/lower) mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of RMB-
denominated finance payables and bank
borrowings (2023: trade and other receivables).

As at 31 December 2024, if USD had
strengthened/weakened by 5% (2023: 5%)
against the HK$ with all other variables held
constant, profit after income tax for the year
would have been approximately HK$555,000
(2023: HK$1,143,000) higher/lower mainly as
a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of USD-denominated trade and other
receivables (2023: cash and bank balances).



3.1 BHEABEE (&)
(@) wmEmE (E)

(if)

Hem BRI FEME
V4

ZNe S ik =Rl el
TERERZLASF
BY BYRTEIN
B 755 FE AN SRR A B8R AT
BE- FHNERES N
ReFEY UHEN
FERRITEEEHR
SEmRRERENE
VB o E A R IR S M
e EBEYIARE IR
ThEREHAEE®E Y
NP EMERR -

RZE-_OMFEER=F
—=fF5+-RA=+-—
A AEBENETRS
LIREZEEYM VKE
NRAEREBITEERZ
BFIEFE-

K5 0 B 5 R A BOR
REERR X REIHA
M 16 RN T4 FE

ERBERFIEED
WA REAR B R B AL
ERTEZKTFHE
Ao

RZE-_WMFE+=A
=+—H WMETHES
MBS EY UK E
NREMBITEENS
TR E EF T 2508
—E - =ZF 5@ E
2o MmETA M BH A
B OAARNFEMNKRASE
MEsHEEEERRE
MESEEY VIKE
B RBITEERNF
BRI FELRHTB
i T~ %, £ F+#9145,000
BT (ZEZ=ZF:
154,000/ 7T ) °

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk arises
mainly from cash and cash equivalents, short-
term bank deposits, finance payables and bank
borrowings. Cash and cash equivalents, finance
payables and bank borrowings at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk. Cash and cash equivalents and short-term
bank deposits at fixed rates expose the Group
to fair value interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group’s
certain cash and cash equivalents, finance
payables and bank borrowings were held at
variable rates.

The interest rates and maturities of the Group’s
finance payables and borrowings are disclosed
in Note 16 and 17.

Management monitors interest rate fluctuations
to ensure that exposure to interest rate risk is
within an acceptable level.

As at 31 December 2024, if HKS$ interest rates
on certain cash and cash equivalents, finance
payables and bank borrowings had been
25(2023: 25) basis points higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, profit after
income tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$145,000 (2023: HK$154,000)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/
lower net interest expense on cash and
cash equivalents, finance payables and bank
borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 EEREAMRESE(E) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 MBEKRREE (£) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continuea)
(b) FEREE (b) credit risk

0 mEEREE
EERBIZERNEEE
B-AEBEZEERR
HRESLECFED
1 HIERTT 17 A M B R
R Ne H b & L FR IR P EE
E-EEECEREER
B - I B RS AR b B
ZEEERR -%EHE
HRZEEERASEA
HeMEEZRREE
B BRHUELAT -

()

Risk management

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. The
Group's credit risk arises from cash and cash
equivalents, short-term bank deposits and
trade and other receivables. Management has
a credit policy in place and the exposures to
these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis. The carrying amounts of these balances
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to financial assets which
are stated as follows:

BE+-A=+-ALEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-MF —E_=F

2024 2023

FET FB T

HK$'000 HK$'000

BekBEeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 87,342 96,173
FRHERITIF R Short-term bank deposits - 30,942
JE Ui B 7R % E i B W 3k T8 Trade and other receivables 104,762 62,370
192,104 189,485

102 REmsiriaRAT o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BEEBERE (&)

()

(b) FEEE (&)

B EIE (&)
RZZFE-_MFR=-F
=+ =-A=+-—
B KEHWITHF RSB
FHRREEEER TN
RITERPEHAEHE IR
T-He MIBITHEHD
EREEE2B I E
RSB EBR5751E
U= =0 S )
BERXRGEHAINBEXRE
Ho /R GL 8%

S KR R e L A K
REME AEECE
RREREEER T
EERBERINXZY
AREF -AEHEYH
EXZHTREFET
ELGRER

NE BRI D EWER
HZEEHARB A
REREREEREPK
15 o

BB EERRRE &
B - AEEEEECZ
KERAEEERFEER
EHEEEREME
EIRFF o HEOR R GE YD
BHERE LN NE
) € HIRY {4 = 1A {E Bl FE
YRR 3k 2 AT Uk Bl £ 58
PARE (R 3L T AT W [0 & 28
EL R ANFEHEERS
BEE-pUmME &
ER/AKEEERR
BEARIRRK

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
credit risk (Continued)

(b)

()

Risk management (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, most of the
bank deposits are deposited with reputable
banks in Hong Kong and state-owned banks in
the PRC. The credit quality of cash and bank
balances has been assessed by reference
to external credit ratings or to historical
information about the counterparty default
rates. The existing counterparties do not have
defaults in the past.

In respect of trade and other receivables, the
Group has policies in place to ensure that the
sales of products are made to counterparties or
customers with appropriate credit history and
the Group performs credit evaluations of these
counterparties and its customers.

The credit period of the majority of the Group's
trade receivables is within 90 days and largely
comprises amounts receivable from business
customers.

In order to minimise the credit risks, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up actions
are taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews regularly the recoverable
amount of each individual trade receivable to
ensure that adequate provision for expected
credit losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors consider
that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.
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BEEBERE(F)
(b) FEmEE (&)

(@

(if)

ARES (4)
AEEATEHEEE
BRI S REE
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e WIOUREEALE

EEY
o EHRITE

e RUBERKEEM
FE YR IR

RehBHeFEMNME
HRTTERIAREE
B 75 ¥ 5 2 Bl SR 95RO
BEREERE &R
BEEBRRBTCE

P& W B 3R
AEBERRBEEVIER
FERNESRN B
AETEEHEREEE
HURKFERAZ MBS
ER -

RITERREEER
FEM R R IZ K REE R
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FEFRESERILBAERN
HEELEEBBERE
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
credit risk (Continued)

(b)

()

()

Risk management (Continued)

The Group has the following financial assets
that are subject to the expected credit loss
model:

° cash and cash equivalents at bank

° short-time bank deposits

° trade and other receivables

While cash and cash equivalents and short-
term bank deposits are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for doubtful debts.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the past
repayment history and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this
period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables.



iR ORI i = b 5t
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 BHXERRER &) 3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 MBEREE (&)
(b) EEmRmE(E)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) =HEEFE (&) (i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
FEUAR TR (&) Trade receivables (Continued)

BBEHEE R _F
—HF+=ZA=+—H
FEZZE-_=%F1+=A
=+ HRNREEERE
HBETEMT:

On that basis, the loss allowance for doubtful
debts as at 31 December 2024 and 31
December 2023 was determined as follows:

am ol ki ks

ZZ2-ME+TZA=1-H 31December 2024

#i830A

More than
30 days

Current past due

#8120

More than
120 days
past due

&1B210A

More than
210 days
past due

##18300A

More than
300 days
past due

kil p=E Expected loss rate 0.27% 1.25% 17.51% 100.00% - 0.92%
RELE-ERER Gross carrying amount - trade

(F#m) (W79) receivables (HK$'000) (note 9) 53,714 37,643 257 180 - 91,794
BERE(TBER) Loss allowance (HK$'000) 145 4n 45 180 - 841

FEER =t
More than
30 days

Current past due

12181200

More than
120 days
past due

#2108
More than
210 days
past due

More than
300 days
past due

ZE-=%+ZH=1+-H 31December 2023
BEBER Expected loss rate 0.13% 087% — - 100% 0.28%
REGE- BN Gross carrying amount - trade

(F#m) (M59) receivables (HK$'000) (note 9) 44,994 6,573 - - 27 51,594
BERE(TER) Loss allowance (HK$'000) 60 57 - - 27 144

105
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 MEBEERER#E)

3.1 MBEBREE (&)

(b) EEmRE(E)

() EHEZENRE (&)
FEUBR R (48)
R+-ZA=+—BHE
Yot AR 5K 5 18 1k e B S )
BEEREOYHERNT

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(71)

Impairment of financial assets (Continuea)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The loss allowances for trade receivables as
at 31 December reconcile to the opening loss
allowances as follows:

BE+t-A=1t—-RLHEE
Year ended 31 December

—EMF —F=-=

2024 2023

FET FAT

HK$'000 HK$'000

F1) At beginning of year 144 246
RREAE Allowance for doubtful debts 697 (102)
FR At end of year 841 144
FEUBR R RE S IE, Impairment losses/(reversal) on trade
(BEREERNAZ receivables are presented as net impairment
P ERE(BEB) & (losses)/reversal within operating profit.
[B] )5 28 o fis] 1% 48 Y [@ 56 Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
AIEME S5 AlE written off are credited against the same line

ARI—IEE - item.

AEBGFEEERR The Group has concentration of credit risk.

EFHBR-ARE
FHREHEERENA
633,311,000/ 7T * 1 A
EEHE-_Z_MFE
+ZA=+—HLFE
W 258I95.9% (T - =
£F : 443,544,000 7T -
1595.9%) » 7 K JiE Ui BR
X4 #2 #9 /90,380,000
BT T -MmMEF
+-A=+—BEKE
R AREN98.5% (—
E-_=F+_-_A=+—
H : 48,392,0005 7T * 15
93.8%) ° 7N & [ T i &=
) BS 5% 1) R B UK R IR A
BEURERIE R B S
KZEERRE-

106
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Sales of goods to the top five customers
constituted approximately HK$633,311,000,
representing 95.9% of the Group’s revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023:
HK$443,544,000, representing 95.9%). The top
five trade receivable balances accounted for
approximately HK$90,380,000, representing
98.5% of the gross trade receivable balances
as at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023:
HK$48,392,000, representing 93.8%). Collections
of outstanding receivable balances are closely
monitored on an ongoing basis to minimise the
credit risk.



iR ORI i = b 5t
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 BBRRER#) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 MBERREE (£) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continuea)

(b) EEmE(E)

() EHEZENRE (&)
R AR EMEA
TRMEE
R AT ENE M
CREEREEMER
RBE-AKEREEL
B S E R FEIR A
BE - BRA— R RRT
1ty Eo A & YR IR B0 TR A
EEEE-

He MEAEENEM
& W R TR HE 1T B B R A
AR SRR (B B - AR
& I T8 H 4 A U 9 B
HoEAEENERE
EBEBAEREEN
R 2 o

RZE-_WMFE+=A
=t+—H B®EA %
J5 % 2 Hob g W R T8 7
2Bk B E E R
TEK-

REBZAERNERE
ERE(BER) /#Q
FER
FR-UTEHERES
MEEFENEENE
TR :

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(71)

Impairment of financial assets (Continuea)
Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
other receivables. The Group applies the
general approach in assessing the expected
credit loss on other receivables according to
the requirements of HKFRS 9.

Other receivables known to be insolvent are
individually assessed for impairment provisions
and written off when reasonably expected to be
uncollectible. Indicators of insolvency, including
the fact that debtors face significant financial
difficulties.

The identified impairment loss on other
receivables that applied the general approach
was immaterial as at 31 December 2024.

Net impairment (losses)/reversal on financial
assets recognised in profit or loss

During the years, the following amounts were
recognised in profit or loss in relation to
impaired financial assets:

BZE+-A=+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-MEF

—E =4
2024 2023
FHET FHT

HK$'000 HK$'000

BIEEE S (BmE) Impairment losses/(reversal)
- AR BT IR A — movement in loss allowance for
285 (MizE21) trade receivables (note 21) 697 (102)
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3 B¥ERRERE &) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 MBEKRREE (£) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continuea)

108

(c) mEBEZEE
EENARDECRAREER
RFEERFAERS LR
EEVMUREBRANEE
REREESHEAELRE
THMEE-AEBENEE
XGHBES MBEMANX
ARRITEEREAEEE
BEge

TRREAWVIMAE DA
SEZETESRABHNE
BA = B4 B 2 4T

RTABRBESERALRE
BB ME - 1208 AR E|H
MERSNERBEHE H
RERTELTEKX-

Contractual maturities of
financial liabilities
At 31 December 2024

SREENANEEA
R-Z-_ME+-A=+-H

(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities to meet
obligations when due. The Group finances its working
capital requirements through a combination of funds
generated from operations, finance payables and
bank borrowings.

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on their contractual maturities.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due
within 12 months equal their carrying balances as
the impact of discounting is not significant.

PR-F
Less than
1 year
TER
HK$'000

- EZWMER
Between

1 and 2 years
TET
HK$'000

MEZRFR @t
Between

2 and 5 years
TER
HK$'000

Total
TER
HK$'000

FITE Non-derivatives
B 3R Finance payables 54,889 - - 54,889
BITEE Bank borrowings 21,163 - - 21,163
BISER B RETHEEFRE  Interest payments on finance

E payables and bank borrowings 2,895 - - 2,895
EREFREMEMNRIES  Trade and other payables* 97,454 - - 97,454
st Total 176,401 - - 176,401

ARIRBIEMRBRAT] o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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3 HERRERE#) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
31 MBEERBREE (&) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) mEBELEE (&) (c) Liquidity risk (Continuea)
PR—F —FERMEN MEERER
Less than Between 1 Between 2
Contractual maturities of 1 year and 2 years and 5 years
SRABNANIEA financial liabilities THT FET THT
RZZ-_=F+=-A=+—H At31December 2023 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FoTE Non-derivatives
B FER B Finance payables 30,591 - - 30,591
RITEEE Bank borrowings 65918 - - 65918
MIEENFUERIRITIEEFE  Interest payments on finance
OES payables and bank borrowings 2,869 - - 2,869
HEaRE Lease liabilities 222 - - 222
HEEEFENHK Interest payment on lease liabilities 2 - - 2
R BRI R E A JE IR Trade and other payables* 73,577 - - 73,577
Foh Total 173,179 - - 173,179

* TEERAMENHEBERESTE- *  Excluding other taxes payable and accrued payroll.

M RITEEREEABORET Note: The interests on bank borrowings and lease liabilities are
RIE-_NFR-ZFT== calculated by applying the respective applicable interest rates
+—A=+—RAZEHEBNH as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 over the period up to their
EKEHE BEEEIBA AL respective maturity dates.
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3 H¥EERBREIEE) 3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
32 EXxERE 3.2 cCapital management
(a EEE®E (a) Risk management
AREBNEAEEREEE: The Group's objectives when managing capital are to:

110

o REELBELEHE
BEZBREEN M
BE V-1 &P EE
KB H s & % R F
=&

s HWRREMNEAEEBMNU
HARE B RAS

RTHRBIABELAER
AEEAREERBIN TR
ROBEESH RABRREE
ER - BIOTHBRAHEERE
PURAK BT

BEXRRBELRBBERFE
BRRESBBETE-BEHFE
ARG B A AOR R PR B0 BE
BRERNFE RITEERHE
ERABERBERREMREF
EMARERRITERAE -

HE-_ZZ_MWF+ = A
Z—t+—BLtFE ALXAEE
BEFReMRR WELXERE
LE R EA o

o safeguard their ability to continue as a going
concern, so that they can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders; and

. maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The gearing ratio is calculated at net debt divided by
total equity. Net debt is calculated as total finance
payables, bank borrowings and lease liabilities as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position, less cash and cash equivalents, and short-
term bank deposits.

Since the Group has a net cash position as at year
ended 31 December 2024, gearing ratio is not
applicable.

R+t=RA=+—H
As at 31 December
—®w_QmEF

—E=F
2024 2023
FH&ET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000

ReRBLEZEEYD Cash and cash equivalents
(FF#E1) (note 11) 87,342 96,173
RHIRITER Short-term bank deposits - 30,942
B IRITEE SRR Less: bank borrowings,
MEAE (Hi16%17)  finance payables and
lease liabilities
(notes 16 and 17) (76,052) (96,731)
FIRES AR Net cash position 11,290 30,384
B Total equity 86,118 69,535
EARBELE Gearing ratio TiE A 3 A

Not applicable

Not applicable

ARIRBIEMRBRAT] o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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3 H¥ERERE(E) 3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 DAFEMET

AEEeREE (BRBEER R
HEEHE RERREEEY
REMBTER)REHERAR
(62 5 & A5 Bl 30 % L b A5 5K
B TS e IR BNEASRTT (6 & K B
HESEE AREIHARE
WEREEEE N FERE -

34 BEEcHEERERERE

EAREB AT A AITHEF A K
ERReE TASBRFEEL
REIFABEREENGEAR
R eREEEAENEHARHE
WHEMBRRRRE L FHR - AE
BRI LA B R ER A B
BELAIBEATNAFEESRE
o DI AESR R LA A

T EGFH R R A

mEMBHERFER GG BERE
B HARIEEANERGER - EEET
FEEAAEE NS R BUREF L -

st A S FEFE - REDREE
SRBEEMARML BREAREHE
BYBRELXEREBRBBERATHERR
AR ARREMHTRA -

(@) BENHIRIEEFREH
EEMSHERGR F2ELEX
FlE- BEXHF AL RZ A
BRARGEEIEERAHBA LS
Rt B MR EFRIEERBE
REIRRVCHEN SRR BEE
BREEELREHRRZAEHK
BT AR -

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets,
including trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and short-term bank deposits, and short-term
financial liabilities, including trade and other payables,
finance payables, current bank borrowings and current
lease liabilities, approximate their fair values due to their
short-term maturities.

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial

liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial position
where the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts, and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The Group has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting
but still allow for the related amounts to be set off
in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the
termination of a contract.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of
accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the
actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in
applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact
on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

(@) Current and deferred income taxes
Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income tax. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such difference will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provision in the
period in which such determination is made.
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(a)

(b)

(c)

Current and deferred income taxes (Continued)
Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of
their actual utilisation may be different.

Net realisable value of inventories

The Group Inventory comprises of finished goods, work in
progress and raw materials. Among them, finished goods
and raw materials are subject to impairment testing. Net
realisable value of finished goods is the estimated selling
prices in the ordinary course of business less estimated
selling expenses. The net realisable value of raw materials
is the estimated selling price of finished goods produced
using this raw material less the estimated costs to be
incurred upon completion, estimated selling expenses and
related taxes in the ordinary course of production. These
estimates are based on the current market condition and
the historical experience of selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes
in economic conditions in places where the Group
operates and changes in customer taste and competitor
actions in response to changes in market conditions.
Management reassesses these estimates at each reporting
date.

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions
and inputs used are disclosed in Note 3.1(b).
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a)

Revenue

The Group's revenue is recognised at a point in time when
a group entity has delivered products to the customer; the
customer has accepted the products and collectability of
the related receivables is reasonably assured. During the
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group’s
revenue was derived from the Apparel Supply Chain
Servicing Business.

Revenue from the major customers, which amounted to
10% or more of the Group's revenue, is set out below:

BE+t-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-UF —E =4

2024 2023

FE T T T

HK$'000 HK$'000

ZHEA Customer A 356,143 209,862
=B Customer B 231,563 188,016
587,706 397,878

RAMBREEFRR - ZNF—
A—B#&EAHNAEHEBNERER
U 2% 49 51,0090,0008 T (—E - =
4F 1 523,000/ 7T) °

DEER
EREDERTELERRE ([X
BRERRE]BHNBRSETE
REDH -TERERKERAD
RERMAGELED ORI X
ERRESARBRITES-

HE_T-_NGFR-_FZ=F+=
A=+—BHLEFE AEBEZERH
EREHEERBES -EREH
X EREBER—ABE K2
DEETES AATRMEK R
BHE R ER RIBRRE
®) 5 A ARR o

(b)

The revenue recognised in the current financial year
relating to carried-forward contract liabilities as at 1
January 2024 was approximately HK$1,009,000 (2023:
HK$523,000).

Segment information

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the chief operating
decision-maker (“CODM"). The CODM, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segment, has been identified as the executive
directors of the Company.

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the
Group is principally engaged in the Apparel Supply Chain
Servicing Business. Management reviews the operating
results of the business as a single operating segment as
the nature of services, the type of customers for services
and the method used to provide their services is same in
different regions.
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5 WERIBER (&) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
(b) DEWER (&) (b) Segment information (Continued)
AEB s WEETERGUAF The Group’s revenue is mainly derived from customers
(BREBBRFPEAM) 2P M located in China (including Hong Kong and the PRC)
AEBCEBEHETERNPHE whilst the Group’s business activities are conducted
T-AEEEREEFEHEE S 2 predominately in China. An analysis of the Group's sales by
HEDHTT : geographical area of its customers is as follows:
—E=F
2023
T T
HK$'000
+ China 641,019 437,594
BN Rz Ab 2= Europe and North America 13,378 15,742
H B R Other countries 6,152 8,995
660,549 462,331
REBBRIELERIEE E SN2 FETR An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets other than
PEE - REEMEHEED 25 deferred tax assets by geographical area in which the
W assets are located is as follows:
—E=F
2023
T
HK$'000
+ China 2,231 3,377
RIFE Cambodia - 5,942
2,231 9,319
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(c) Accounting policies of revenue recognition

Sales of goods - Apparel Supply Chain Servicing
Business

The Group manufactures and sells a wide range of woven
wear, cut-and-sewn knitwear and sweater knitwear
products to a number of owners or agents of global
reputable brands. Sales are recognised when control of
the products has transferred, being when the products
are delivered to the customers, the wholesaler has full
discretion over the channel and price to sell the products,
and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
wholesaler’s acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs
when the products have been shipped to the specified
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been
transferred to the customers, and either the wholesaler
has accepted the products in accordance with the sales
contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or
the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

The products are sometimes sold with volume discounts
and customers have a right to return faulty products
in the wholesale market. Revenue from these sales is
based on the price specified in the sales order, net of the
estimated volume discounts and returns at the time of
sale. Accumulated experience is used to estimate and
provide for the discounts and returns, using the expected
value method, and revenue is only recognised to the
extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal
will not occur. The volume discounts are assessed based
on anticipated annual purchases. No significant element
of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with
a credit term of 30 to 90 days, which is consistent with
market practice.

Receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is required
before the payment is due.
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6 WX BMERRE 6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
B HEEE HAREE BAERE B RE @t
Leasehold  Furniture office Motor
Buildings improvements and fixtures  equipment Machinery  vehicles Total
FhL ThAL TR FHT FRT ThAL FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
R-B-=#-B-A At 1 January 2023
XA Cost 1,300 2463 3,266 5846 65,901 5,623 84,399
2HTERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (491) (1,186) (2,676) (5,655) (41,313 (5,474 (56,795)
FEFE Net book amount 809 1,277 590 191 24,588 149 27,604

HE-B--E£+-A=t+-HILEE  Yearended 31 December 2023

FNREFE Opening net book amount 809 1,277 590 191 24,588 149 27,604
EXEH Exchange differences (14) (1 - (12) (30 ) 63)
RE Additions - - - 590 - 373 93
e Disposals - - - - (301) (187) (488)
FEER Depreciation charge (57) (154) (242) (2¢) (8.242) (299) (9,020)
REER Impairment loss - - - - (9.891) - (9,891)
FRERFE Closing net book amount 738 1122 348 743 6,124 k(| 9,105
RZBZ=f+ZA=1-H At 31 December 2023
KA Cost 1,286 2462 3266 6,426 65,566 5,690 84,696
ZHFERAE Accumulated depreciation and

impairment (548) (1,340) 2918) (5,683) (59,442) (5660 (7559)
REFE Net book amount 738 1122 348 743 6,124 30 9,105

HE-Z-MET-A=+-HILEE  Yearended 31 December 2024

FOREFE Opening net book amount 738 1122 348 743 6,124 0 9,105
EiEH Exchange differences 53 1 - 46 98 15 213
RE Additions - 18 - 136 116 32 59
HERBAR Disposals of a subsidiary - - (347) (377 (2,662 - (3,38)
e Disposals - - - (59) 472 - (531)
FEER Depreciation charge (56) (347) [©] (145) (3,136) (81 (3,7¢6)
FRERFE Closing net book amount 735 794 - 344 68 290 2,231
W-B-mE+=A=+-A At 31 December 2024
KA Cost 1313 2,481 167 6,095 9,639 5430 25125
2HAERAE Accumulated depreciation and

impairment (578) (1,687) (167) (5,751) (9,571) (5140 (22,89)
FEFE Net book amount 735 794 - 344 68 290 2,231
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6 ME -BERRZEH) 6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
(@) NEAE2ERSIRMBOITERS (@) Depreciation expense has been charged to the
URINE consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
follows:

BE+t-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—ENE —E=F
2024 2023
FTHExT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
58 A AN Cost of sales 3,280 7,850
THAX Administrative expenses 486 1,170
3,766 9,020
7 FE 7 INVENTORIES
R+=B=+—H
As at 31 December
—ENE —EZ=F
2024 2023
FTHE T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
R4 Raw materials 59,175 26,347
T2 M Work in progress 399 6,997
BIRK o Finished goods 22,052 17,399
81,626 50,743
BT ERERE Less: provision for impairment
of inventories (5,712) (7,484)
75,914 43,259
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FE (&) INVENTORIES (continuea)

(@) BREPEBERE (a) Assigning costs to inventories
FEERITE B KA I T 16K The costs of individual items of inventory are determined
REETE ° using weighted average costs.

(b) REZHANSHE (b) Amounts recognised in profit or loss
HE_ZT-_NF+=ZA=+— Inventories recognised as an expense during the year
HEFEBRARRIOTEAR ended 31 December 2024 amounted to HK$512,091,000
512,091,000 T (ZF = =4 : (2023: HK$340,238,000). These were included in cost of
340,238,000/ 7T ) © 5% F AT A sales.

SHERAN o

FERERRFEREBERBLER Provision for inventories is recognised for the amount by

WENFEN e EER Wit ALE which the carrying amount of the inventories exceeds the

THBERNEENETN -HEZ net recoverable amount, and is recorded in cost of sales

E_NFE+_A=+—HLEE in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

R FERBE L 721,642,000 7T The inventories provision was recognised for the year
=4 1,404,000 7T) ° ended 31 December 2024 amounted to approximately

HK$1,642,000 (2023: HK$1,404,000).
AEEIEI TR AR AR o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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8 ®RERESIHWEREIA 8 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
R+=—A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E-F —E-=F
2024 2023
FTHExT FT
HK$'000 HK$'000
THEE Financial assets
WHEK A ENSBEE  Financial assets at amortised cost
JE LS B 3R B L Ath JE UK IR Trade and other receivables 9 104,762 62,370
RHRITER Short-term bank deposits 12 - 30,942
e hBeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 11 87,342 96,173
192,104 189,485
R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E_WF —E=F
2024 2023
THEx T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
k-3 -Ki Financial liabilities
RHEKAAENSRBERE  Financial liabilities at amortised
cost
JETERF R H M EfF kT8> Trade and other payables* 15 97,454 73,577
B 745 FE < 5K08 Finance payables 16 54,889 30,591
RITEE Bank borrowings 17 21,163 65,918
HEAE Lease liabilities - 222
173,506 170,308
* TEEFEEMENHBEREFSTE- *  Excluding other taxes payable and accrued payroll.
rEEmREFEeRTANSERRRY The Group's exposure to various risks associated with the
M 5E35m il - 35 B R A= B R b A S K financial instruments is discussed in note 3. The maximum
HARLisEeEENREE: exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the
carrying amount of each class of financial assets mentioned
above.
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9 REUWERIKRHEMEWNKIE 9 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
R+t=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-NNE —E-=F
2024 2023
FHET FH&IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEULER 3R Trade receivables 91,794 51,594
H A fE UK IR Other receivables 13,809 10,920
105,603 62,514
R R (E Less: provision for impairment
JRE U5 BR 5K Trade receivables (841) (144)
104,762 62,370
TEBRTEFPHEEEBE A30E9 Credit terms granted to customers by the Group are usually 30
H - BEXxZREWEECHRTRIER to 90 days and which are mainly due from customers with good
EREHNEF - R-_TE-_NF+=A credit history and low default rate. As at 31 December 2024, the
=+ —A EREFREZZHHNER ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on invoice date is
BommT : as follows:
R+t=ZA=+—8
As at 31 December
—E-ME —E-=F
2024 2023
FET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
30N Within 30 days 46,239 32,401
31E90H 31 t0 90 days 40,625 19,152
91£2180H 91 to 180 days 4,750 14
HBiE180R8 Over 180 days 180 27
91,794 51,594
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9 RBURRKHEMEWKRIE (&) 9
AEEREKERNREELTNIIEH

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continuead)

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables are

B: denominated in the following currencies:
R+=B=+—H
As at 31 December
—E_mE —E=4F
2024 2023
F#ExT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT HK$ 49,563 488
AR# RMB 27,047 42,638
ETT usbD 15,184 8,468
91,794 51,594
(@) DEREWIRRH i B WK (@) Classification as trade and other receivables
b
FEWEESRARERBEBHRME L Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
EMSFETHREERE S ® goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
IE - H — AR HA30E90H A B H 45 business. They are generally due for settlement within 30
B -BAEHSRREEE- to 90 days and therefore are all classified as current.
JRE LT B TR e L A R LK 5 T ) 2 Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
BHEORESERR BEREEX the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless
Bl & 2B 5 Y FE UL BR 51 K H b FE UK they contain significant financing components, when they
HR AP EER - AEEFBER are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
AR R R H At JE M R IE &) B 1R /3 MR and other receivables with the objective of collecting the
aRBEERE ALBEEAER contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
BRI P AT 2 - subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
(b) EWERRREMERRELAF (b) Fair value of trade and other receivables
=1
AR ENE IR RIBE M R B - & Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables,
RHEERAEEAFEMRS- their carrying amounts are considered to be approximate
to their fair values.
(c) WERE (c) Impairment and risk exposure

B8 1 MK R R I b R LSRR B
MERMAREAZNEERRE
SBME3 -

Information about the impairment of trade and other
receivables and the Group’s exposure to credit risk can be
found in note 3.1.
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10 FEFRKIE 10 PREPAYMENTS

R+=-—HA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-NEF —E =4

2024 2023
THT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000

BNEMERE NIE ERERK Prepayments for purchases of

R raw materials, processing fees,
consumables and insurance 10,692 16,252
11 RERREEEY 11 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
R+=—A=+—8H

As at 31 December
—E-MF —E-=F
2024 2023
FET FE T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RITRE Cash at bank 87,241 95,790
FHERE Cash on hand 101 383
87,342 96,173

AEBIRE MRITHEGHIREEL T The carrying amounts of the Group's cash and bank balances
HHEHE: are denominated in the following currencies:
BR+=B=+—H

As at 31 December
—E-NE —E-=F
2024 2023
FET FHE T
HK$'000 HK$'000
AR RMB 16,240 14,444
BT HK$ 65,212 59,089
S usb 5,277 21,782
HinEHE Other currencies 613 858
87,342 96,173
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11 RERBREEEY (&) 11 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)
AREREVHEBRBETSERALRNE RMB is currently not freely convertible currencies in international
o NRB R INE R ARKEE L market. The conversion of RMB into foreign currencies and
B 78 5 R B AT A 45 B S1NE Il AR B remittance of RMB out of the PRC, is subject to the rules and
ROEIREMR regulations of the foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government.
12 EHRTENR 12 SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS
R+t=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-mEF —E=F
2024 2023
FET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RHRITER Short-term bank deposits - 30,942
RZEZ=F+ZA=1+—H0 F&H As at 31 December 2023, the Group holds the short-term bank
A 85 B8R 1717 ;AR30,942,0007% 7T - deposits of HK$30,942,000, which is with a maturity of 122 days
BEN2K RZZTZWFE—A+ZA%F maturing on 12 January 2024 and an expected annual return of
BR - TR ER4F B 3R K 54.68% - A HABR 2 4.68%. Due to the short maturity, the Group consider that the fair
BOASEBERARBRITTRNATE value of the short-term bank deposits is the same as the book
BT =F+ - A=t+—HMEEE value as at 31 December 2023.
EIE
13 BRARRHGEE 13 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
BOIRBREMNEBERAT Ordinary shares issued and fully paid are as follows:

EBRRHA EER RORE @t
Number of
ordinary  Ordinary Share

shares Shares premium Total
FHET FTHET FTHET
HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000

RZZEZWER As at 31 December 2024 and 2023
ZEZ=F+ZRA=+—H 600,000,000 60,000 53,441 113,441
RZEBEZMF+—A=+—H EEE The total authorised number of ordinary shares as at 31
8 A% 42 2 51,200,000,0000% (Z & = = December 2024 was 1,200,000,000 (2023: 1,200,000,000) with a
F :1,200,000,0008% ) - & I A E A0.17%5 par value of HK$0.1 per share (2023: HK$0.1 per share).

T(ZEZ=F:8R01BT) °
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B 15 e = MY 5 E

Hib B 14 OTHER RESERVES

ELifE ZERfE -GOREE ELXRE HELE
Exchange Statutory  Merger  Capital Total
reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserves
FTAET TAET TAET TAET FTAET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(HizE@) (D)

(note (@)  (note (b))
R-ZE-=5-F—H As at 1 January 2023 (4,519) 12,786 2,957 3,872 15,096
ERBEES Currency translation difference (946) - - - (946)
R-ZE-=H+=-H=+—H As at 31 December 2023 (5,465) 12,786 2,957 3,872 14,150
ERMEES Currency translation difference (318) - - - (318)
EIBE R Transfer to statutory reserves - 1,244 - - 1,244
R-ZZ-_ME+=-HA=+—H Asat 31 December 2024 (5,783) 14,030 2,957 3,872 15,076

(a)

(b)

EEE

REBFERD LT ERRNAKE
AR AEE BB AR
RIBHEFH R ERR RAKR
Y R 23 IR AT B AL D BEE0R
EfE-IEE LARESART
BALHTENEARNERSE
o

AEBETZPRMBQFSRIES
B AR Est RAGRNMKE TR
MO EERE BEEZHE
3 B 5 & AN50% © VA TE f7# 8 1
ARNAER A A DK E A E
4o

BotRE
AEBNEHBERBRBRENR-F
——FERNBEMKIENE R
PR L h R ER Al iR AP B T AR R
AIRAEENZR-

(a) Statutory reserve

In accordance with the PRC regulations and the Articles of
Association of the PRC companies, the PRC subsidiaries
of the Group are required to make appropriations from
net profits to the statutory reserve, after offsetting
accumulated losses from prior years, and before profit
distributions are made to shareholders. The percentages
of profits to be appropriated to the above funds are
determined by the board of directors of the PRC
subsidiaries.

The principal PRC subsidiaries of the Group appropriates
10% of their net profit as shown in the accounts prepared
under PRC generally accepted accounting principles to
statutory reserve, until the reserve reaches 50% of the
registered capital. Appropriation of the statutory reserve
must be made before distribution of dividends to equity
holders.

(b) Merger reserve
Merger reserve of the Group represented the difference
between the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the reorganisation completed in 2012 over the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued
in exchange thereof.
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15 BENERRRHEMESKE 15 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
R+=B=+—H

As at 31 December
—E-ME —E=F
2024 2023
FET T T
HK$'000 HK$'000

FERTBR R — BN E = RIE Trade payables — due to third

(Bt3ED)) parties (note (b)) 93,582 69,504
JEETTE Accrued payroll 11,220 11,093
H M E A FRI8 Other payables 3,872 4,073
H b eI Other taxes payable 1,168 3,719
109,842 88,389

ENERAEERABETRERIZIE Trade payables are unsecured and are usually paid within 30

VHAZM-MEMNEFBRETHRS to 90 days of recognition. Where trade payables are settled via

HRAHE QRSN AEE S NEE - electronic cash transfer, they are derecognised when the group

EIEREUHEN R AEFARIEREE has no ability to withdraw, stop or cancel the payment, has

NEREMNERENUARTEENRR lost the practical ability to access the cash as a result of the

BB ERER - electronic payment instruction, and the risk of a settlement not

occurring is insignificant.

(a) ENRIRREMESRKEZL (@) Fair value of trade and other payables
FE
BR] i < R SR K E At B A< 5RTE B iR R The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are
S ERAEERAHEEAE considered to be approximate to their fair values, due to
BREE- their short-term nature.

(b) ERNEFRAEER ANEEFEMH (b) Trade payables are unsecured. The credit period granted
ER R A EEBN F30290H » by the Group's principal suppliers ranges from 30 to 90
R-E-_ME+-_A=+—H8" & days. As at 31 December 2024, the ageing analysis of trade
NEEFREZHHMNERTD payables based on invoice date is as follows:

T
R+=A=+—H

As at 31 December
—E-ME —E=F
2024 2023
FET T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
30H A Within 30 days 32,098 29,888
31£290H 31 to 90 days 55,126 33,673
91£180H 91 to 180 days 1,227 3,068
HBiE180H Over 180 days 5,131 2,875
93,582 69,504

4} o ANNUALREPORT2024 125



RO RIS R MY ST

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 BNRFREMESREE)

(b) (&)
REBRMNEREEMENRIALZ
BREENRTIIEBHE:

15 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other
payables are denominated in the following currencies:

R+=B=+-—H

As at 31 December
—E-pE =R =
2024 2023
FTHExT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
AR RMB 94,135 68,296
BT HK$ 8,528 9,736
EV usb 7,179 10,357
109,842 88,389

16 B EFIE

16 FINANCE PAYABLES

R+=A=+—~
As at 31 December

RE FERE RE FERED

Current Non-Current Current  Non-Current

FET THERT AT AT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

B 765 FE A5 5B Finance payables 54,889 - 30,591 -
(@) HBEMNFEHARIZHE K (@) Finance payables are linked to specific transactions. The

SERRTREERBORER
W R RITAS AR E SR B Z B A
ERERP  tRITESREL
BT B R A5 3R o A R B AR IR 1T
REIH B AT A SR B 3 E R P 3
g KB o B 75 A SR IR AR —
A= UEAR - ARF A EE
BERERHMI RN FRRRITERE
IR

by M-ZZT-WNF AEBEMRIEIT
R EEEmE L AL HERIE
SR AG A ER 3% 4 E 7 Y JE A AR B
B AT S TERSIN
E| 855 H B R R 302 90K IE
REHERHZ1502210K
5
B ES A B 3BT B A
HEEEREWREINEERA
BTG

126

Group provides the purchase contracts and invoices
to the banks and authorises the banks to transfer the
corresponding amounts directly to the suppliers’ accounts
or receives the finance from the bank and make payment
to the suppliers immediately. The Group authorises the
banks to withhold the principal and interest from the
designated accounts of the Group by the maturity. The
terms of finance payables are generally three or four
months. The Company provides guarantee to the banks for
the finance payables granted to the group entities.

In 2024, the Group entered into supplier finance
arrangements with two banks. The terms and conditions of
the arrangement are unchanged from the trade payables
from this supplier, other than:

the due date has been extended to 150-210 days
after the invoice date from the original 30-90 days,
and

the acquired payables are no longer able to be offset
against credit notes received from the supplier.
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16 HEENSE
©

RIE (%)

16 FINANCE PAYABLES (Continuead)

©

NREHEEHER Range of payment due dates
HEERELHETHAER Liabilities under supplier finance BRERHE —
arrangement 150£210K
150-210 days after
invoice date
RMAHEETE LN comparable trade payables BERHE —
ATt ER R (B — % 548) that are not part of the supplier 30Z90%
finance arrangement (same line  30-90 days after
of business) invoice date

R=-Z-mHN $
+t=-A=+-

As at

31 December

2024

FHET

RZZTZm4F
—A—H

As at

1 January
2024

T T

Carrying amount of liabilities
under supplier finance
arrangement

HEEMEZETEENRAE HK$'000 HK$'000

HEEBRELHETHEE Liabilities under supplier finance

arrangement

—FETER X - Trade payables 2,531 21,900
HpHEmE R ERfEtE of which the supplier has received
B3R payment from the finance
provider - _
HENRELHETHNARE Liabilities under supplier finance
arrangement
— B % P R - Finance payables 54,889 30,591
HEfHEmEAaERMis of which the supplier has received
W3R payment from the finance
provider 54,889 30,591

HE_Z-_WNF+-_A=+—H1
FE - HETBRELHETHNEESR
TEREREZREZE-

There were no material foreign exchange differences
that would affect the liabilities under the supplier finance
arrangement for the year ended 31 December 2024.

MRNEGHEE BN RIE
FRHERRAEERFEMESE-

The carrying amounts of finance payables are considered
to be reasonable approximations of their fair values, due to
their short-term nature.
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16 B ERE(TRRIE (&) 16 FINANCE PAYABLES (continued)

d RZZEZmF+_A=+—HHM (d) The weighted average effective interest rate per annum
BEFHERFFE BRI (ZF as at 31 December 2024 was 4.55% (31 December 2023:
Z=F+ZA=1+—H:534%) - 5.34%), and the carrying amounts of finance payables
BB ZIEMRME G ER approximate to their fair values as at 31 December 2024
ZEZNFRZZEZ=F+=A and 2023.

—+t—HHAFERE-

() AEBMIBEENFIBBRZATSE (e) The Group's finance payables are repayable as follows:
HER:
R+=—A=+—A8
As at 31 December
—E-mEF —E=F
2024 2023
FET FHEIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
—F R Within one year 54,889 30,591
FHEREER D ERAER Y & The above repayment schedule is based on the assumption
EREMEEEZEREEKIRN that the Group has not violated any terms that would
ERRBIRERIED o trigger the repayment on demand clause.
 AEEVBESREBZEEDEBENAT ()  The carrying amounts of the Group's finance payables are
P EHEEE denominated in the following currencies:
R+t=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-ME —ZEZ=F
2024 2023
FET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT HKS - 17,722
AR RMB 54,889 12,869
54,889 30,591
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17 HRITRE 17 BANK BORROWINGS

Rt+t=-—HB=+—H
As at 31 December

B EFR B TRED FE R &
current Non-Current Current  Non-Current
FET THET FHET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RITIEE Bank borrowings 21,163 - 65,918 -
(@ WEBRITHBMEHH FIERTEER (@) According to the bank facilities, all bank borrowings are
HEBREXES WHERTHE subject to review at any time and overriding right of
ZREREE At MR35 repayment on demand, therefore, they are all classified as
BnEBEE- current liabilities.
b)) TEERTEEBAZRUTFEHE (b)  The Group's bank borrowings are repayable as follows:

Ea
N

R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-pgE —E=F
2024 2023
THExT FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
—F R Within one year 16,446 60,604
—FEMFNR Between 1 and 2 years 636 608
MEZRFN Between 2 and 5 years 2,027 1,960
b cRaked Over 5 years 2,054 2,746
21,163 65,918
FlEREERDERAER N E The above repayment schedule is based on the assumption
ERAMEHEFRERERBGERY that the Group has not violated any terms that would
IERE R ERAEH © trigger the repayment on demand clause.
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17 $RITEE (&) 17 BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

© FMEBENRIFBMNERFE R (c)  All the borrowings are at variable interest rates. The
ZENFE+ZA=+—H&M weighted average effective interest rate per annum as at
BFHERFNERLTIZ% (ZF 31 December 2024 was 4.73% (31 December 2023: 6.73%).
T=F+=-—A=+—H:673%) ° These bank borrowings are repayable by installments up
ZERTEEESHERE HEEZ to 2032 (2023: 2032) and the carrying amounts of bank
- F (B =F_F=— borrowings approximate to their fair values as at 31
F) ROTBEZEEERAR December 2024 and 2023.

ZENER T _=F+=A1
=t—BMAFERE-

d) AEBRTEEZERmMAENATIE (d) The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings are
METE denominated in the following currencies:
R+=A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—EIQE —F-=F
2024 2023
FTHET FH&IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT HK$ 10,334 65,918
AR RMB 10,829 -
21,163 65,918
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18 EEHREEERELEHREGE 18 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX
LIABILITIES

(a) EEMREEE (a) Deferred tax assets

Rt+t=-—H=+—H
As at 31 December
S E —E_=F

2024 2023
FEx FiBT
HK$'000 HK$'000

HHBFEHRUTEEELEN The balance comprises

HRFERE: temporary differences
attributable to:
ZIREHE Bad debt allowance 176 24
FERERE Inventory impairment allowance 1,427 1,856
HEEE Lease liability - 36
ttERE Social security 766 766
2,369 2,682
BRI ERCEERLEFTE Set-off of deferred income tax
Ha’E liabilities pursuant to set-off
provisions - (36)
BRIEAGHEEFE Net deferred income tax assets 2,369 2,646
ELERIBEE: Deferred tax assets:
12 AR EIRIEEFRIBEZE - Deferred tax assets to be
recovered within 12 months 1,603 1,880
12 BB EIHEEFIBEE - Deferred tax assets to be
recovered after 12 months 766 766
2,369 2,646
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18 EEHREEERELEHREGE 18 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX
(#&) LIABILITIES (continued)
(a) EZEREEE (&) (a) Deferred tax assets (Continueqd)
35

BREE HERE HEEE
Inventory

Bad debt impairment Lease Social
Movements allowance  allowance liability security Total
T T T THT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

132

R-ZB-=%-H—-H As at 1 January 2023 61 1,504 440 1,015 3,020
EXZESE Translation difference - 2 - 2 -
RIEE (F08) /3 A (Charged)/credited to profit or loss (37) 354 (404) (251) (338)
W-ZE-=£+=-8A=+—-H Asat 31 December 2023 2 1,856 36 766 2,682
R-E-ME-A—-H As at 1 January 2024 24 1,856 36 766 2,682
ERER Translation difference @ 7 - - 5
REFEETA/ (k) Credited/(charged) to profit or loss 154 (436) (36) - (318)

WZZE-ME+=-A=+—H Asat 31 December 2024

176 1,427 - 766 2,369

AZE—WHF+—A=+—H8"&
& B 30 48 B /E5 18 945,514,000 7T
— &/~ =4 77,795,000 T ) FE
FRIE I BT 15 B & EE 910,215,000/
T(ZEZ=F+=ZA=+—8:
16,851,000/ 70) * It Th BB A A& B
REETE T &5 B AR R FERT & 7 A

ER R EE B - R E B %
EENGHEBAIERBLS .
WERE B M E R & RIEE
FEHEBIUSERERARAFR
88 5 5 Bl & #8,735,0007% It
2,163,0005% 7T * 15,296,000 JT
1,205,000 TR E DR T

—hE B RF ZEBELF
—EZ)N\FRZZFNFEH -

As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not recognise
deferred income tax assets of approximately
HK$10,215,000 (31 December 2023: HK$16,851,000)
in respect of losses amounting to approximately
HK$45,514,000 (2023: HK$77,795,000), as it is uncertain that
future taxable profit will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised. In accordance with the regional tax
law, Hong Kong profits tax losses can be carried forward
indefinitely and have no expiry date, while in Mainland
China and Cambodia income tax losses are allowed to
be carried forward to future years for a maximum period
of five years, which are approximately HK$8,735,000,
HK$2,163,000, HK$15,296,000, HK$1,205,000 and nil
expiring in 2025, 2026, 2027, 2028 and 2029 respectively.
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18 EEHREEERELEHREGE 18 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX
(&) LIABILITIES (continued)

(b) EEREBEERE (b) Deferred tax liabilities

R+=—H=+—H
As at 31 December
S EF —E_=F

2024 2023
TEx TAET
HK$'000 HK$'000

EHREEHAUTEREELEN The balance comprises

HRER: temporary differences
attributable to:
FREEE Right-of-use assets - (36)
IR IEITE Accelerated tax depreciation (21) (15)
PNVl Undistributed profits of subsidiaries (1,441) (1,209)
(1,462) (1,260)
RIFE R T RIEFTS Set-off of deferred income tax assets
MEE pursuant to set-off provisions - 36
REFSHAEFEE Net deferred income tax liabilities (1,462) (1,224)
ELERBEE: Deferred tax liabilities:
~“12EARNEEERIEHRBEEE - Deferred tax liabilities to be
settled within 12 months - -
-12EABEEEEERIEEE - Deferred tax liabilities to be
settled after 12 months (1,462) (1,224)
(1,462) (1,224)
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18 EEFREEERELEHRESRE 18 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX
(&) LIABILITIES (continued)

(b) EEREBERE (£) (b) Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

RO MR Hi RS
BREEE MERERE BEFMERE AREF EREER

Accelerated Assets  Undistributed  Other taxable

Right-of-use tax appraisal profits of temporary
Movements assets  depreciation increment subsidiaries difference Total
BT BT FHET FET FHET THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-B-=%-A-8 As at 1 January 2023 440 571 76 1,349 - 2436
FAER Credited to profit or loss (404) (556) (76) (140) - (1,176)
RZBZZ#+ZA=+-H As at 31 December 2023 36 15 - 1,209 - 1,260
R-E-M%-A-A As at 1 January 2024 3 15 - 1,209 - 1,260
REZE Translate difference - - - 4 - 4
g (T A) /T (Credited)/charged to profit or loss (36) 6 - 208 - 198
RZB-ME+=A=+-H As at 31 December 2024 - 2 - 1,441 - 1,462
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19 Hfb (FEB) WE- 38 19 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS — NET

BE+=A=t+-RALEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-ME —E-=F
2024 2023
FTHExT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
S BB A A E 18 Losses on disposal of a subsidiary (3,966) -
B Donation (1,022) -
b 5 18 F 5 Net foreign exchange losses (716) (221)
HEYE - BB REE (), Net (losses)/gains on disposal of
&y property, plant and equipment (332) 65
ER G- T Gains on modification of lease
agreement - 27
BBl S AT B S 2 FE AR 3R Write-back of trade receivables
previously written off - 597
HAh Others (14) 56
(6,050) 524
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20 RMEE X 20 EXPENSES BY NATURE
A ER A 3HE & R 2 DA R AT Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and marketing
BRZANRI>TAT: expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows:

BE+t-A=+—-HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-lNE —EZ=F
2024 2023
FHExT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
B RIE R MTF B8 E) Changes in inventories of finished
goods and work in progress 1,945 8,944
FTARME R ERERS B MI#E & Raw materials and consumables
KBS m used, processing fee paid and
merchandise purchased 510,146 331,294
EERAMFEZ (M7E22) Employee benefit expenses (note 22) 69,585 60,176
ERAX Transportation expenses 10,354 8,220
HEHHEREKEEERBAN Rental expenses relating to short-
ek term leases and low-value assets 7,908 9,960
e Depreciation 3,980 11,123
KEE Utilities 3,746 4,716
JE T A 2 Entertainment expenses 3,063 4,372
mERX Travelling expenses 2,511 1,531
GFEREREBFE (MW7) Allowance for inventory impairment,
net (note 7) 1,642 1,404
% BLRD B & Auditors’ remuneration 1,110 1,901
BERBGE Professional service fees 994 1,655
W B E KR ERE (FE6) Impairment of property, plant and
equipment (note 6) - 9,891
HAth (FffsEa) Others (note a) 12,294 9,605

HERA  HEREHAIUR Total cost of sales, selling
TR BEE and marketing expenses and
administrative expenses 629,278 464,792

@ EHEmAZZTZaEHERRER (@)  Other expenses mainly comprise repairs and maintenance
YT oRRE - BREAS - WARMA expenses, insurance expenses, cleaning expense, office
S RHEERE - supply expense and sundry expenses.
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21 ¢REEREESE (&E)FEEE 21 NET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES/(REVERSAL) ON
FINANCIAL ASSETS

BE+t-A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—EWF — T4
2024 2023
THxT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
REREAE (MEE3.1(0)) Allowance for doubtful debts
(note 3.1(b)) 697 (102)
22 EERT/ABEX 22 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

BE+t-A=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—EB-mEF ZE=F

2024 2023

FET FH&IT

HK$'000 HK$'000

TE& e kL Wages, salaries and bonuses 54,133 48,846
E=ZNaREEEZEHN Directors’ and senior management’s

emoluments 10,056 6,321

e RER A Social security costs 2,932 2,879

& Fe R Welfare and allowances 2,464 2,130

69,585 60,176
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22 EERABAXZ (&)

HE_ZT-_MF+-_A=+T—HItFE"
TEBEBRAEGZEHTATEEE(ZE
Z=FE2R)ESF-ESNMeEHER
MER2INH ST - REBEE_T Z_MF
T AT —HALFEEMAKERMNEE
3B (ZB-=%:3%) ATHEEWMT :

22 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continuea)

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the five individuals
whose emoluments were the highest in the Group included 2
(2023: 2) directors. The directors’ emoluments are reflected in
the analysis show in note 32. The emoluments paid or payable
to the remaining 3 (2023: 3) individuals during the year ended 31
December 2024 are as follows:

BE+-A=+-HALFE
Year ended 31 December
—E-MEF — T o=F

2024 2023
THT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000

EAXFH T  HFBARBYREHN

Basic salaries, other allowances

and benefits in kind 5,158 2,153

EEMRKRSETEIHERK (FsEa) Employer’s contribution to pension
scheme (note a) 50 36
5,208 2,189

(a) HE-_Z-_WNF+-_A=+—HLEFE &K
S B KR E KT B AR W R P AR K
AR BEEHERR(ZT_=ZF ) -

MBI D ROA T HR

(a) There are no forfeited contributions for the defined contribution plans of the
Group available at the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil) to reduce
future employer’s contributions.

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

BE+t-A=1t—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
S — T =4

2024 2023
N
Number of individuals

TSR

1,000,000/ 7T A T

1,000,001 7T 21,500,000/ 7T
3,500,001 7T 24,000,000/ 7T

Emolument bands:

Below HK$1,000,000 1 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 1 -
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23

IS A R & R AN

23 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

BE+t-A=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
—EB-NF

2024
FERT
HK$'000

—E-=F
2023
T
HK$'000

RPN Finance income
-ReRBFEMHFTEHRA — Interest income on cash and
cash equivalents 41 440
“FRHRITHE MR B WA - Interest income on short-term
bank deposits 2,374 2,750
2,415 3,190
il & Pl AN Finance costs
- RN RIERIRITEERD — Interest expense on finance
FMEBHAX payables and bank borrowings (3,955) (7,102)
B/ ENAEEERE R - Interest and finance charges
B paid/payable for lease liabilities (3) (43)
SNBSS B BE N W F R - Net exchange gains on foreign
currency borrowings - 5
(3,958) (7,140)
b & Pk AN F ER Net finance costs (1,543) (3,950)
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24 FrBFEAX (EHR) 24 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

(@) FT8BiEx (ER) (@) Income tax expense/(credit)

BE+-A=+—-HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—ENE —ZE-=F
2024 2023
F#ExT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BIERPRIS T Current income tax
—hEPEMRER ([DEMRSH]) - PRC corporate income tax (“CIT") 5,889 60
—BBENEBR - Hong Kong profits tax (34) 175
—RIFEFNEH — Cambodia profits tax - 230
BVERTE NPT IS Y Current withholding income tax 270 -
6,125 465
BT Deferred income tax 288 (698)
EIETEIFRISHL Deferred withholding income tax 228 (140)
Frewims, (%) Income tax expense/(credit) 6,641 (373)
() BESHEFEH (i)  cayman Islands profits tax
R EBEMNERFE B The Company has not been subject to any taxation in
SHIE- the Cayman Islands.
(i) EEFRH (i) Hong Kong profits tax
HE_Z-_OMFER=-_ZT == Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime for the
F+_A=1+T—HILFE" year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the profits
REBEFESH MBS CEE tax rate for the first HK$2,000,000 of assessable
2,000,000/ 7T F& &% 4 5 F &9 profits is lowered to 8.25% (half of the rate specified
FISHBMETAZE825% (& in Schedule 8 to the Inland Revenue Ordinance).
B T 755 {6k D1 B ZR8FT #R T B 3R Assessable profits above HK$2,000,000 continue to
2 —3¥) = 2,000,000/ 7T A £ be subject to the rate of 16.5%.
B FE SR T8 7 i BB R B K
16.5% 8 it ©
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(@) FIEHEX (ER) (&)

(iii)

(iv)

)

RIFEFEH
TEBRRHEENE A
M B A AlAgile Sweater
(Cambodia) Co. Ltd.
(TAgile]) (RZZEZ=—WMFh
A=THTBEALRKEHNWE
~aE (29 )R =MW
FREBITBHRBE T = —
F-f—HE_ZT - _4F
+ZA=+—BHEZB%
ESp R

RIE R EF L WAgile T
HFAERETEBE OIS 8
EBZ20%F] 15 BT Lk T
S E R A B U B 1% 5
BR(UAREEBE) BT -
REBE-_Z_MWFEHLA=T
BIEHErE#HzZz_Z ==
F+-_A=Z+—HIEFE"
AgilleB 1Bk BERE
RBEB HER-T-MNERA
HENERFIEEMNSHE
B M ARIE T 75 R R Agle s &
RER BN SR K&K
H-RZZEZWFLA=T
H i EAgilefs - B @ % R
b (BB SR EF
B)THEANEEARH-

FE LR ([ERFE
#J)

7R B BE T 5 R B AR AR S
MEBLEMSHIAER
Bm MR R25% (ZF =
F:25% ) B

& B 78 H1 Fr 15 %
REBCEMESHRE HEHE
REBBIEBIERABFT
BEHEERABRBIROZEE
REBRAFEIRBESS (=
T 5%) B EREM
J& A B R AR Y AR B B TR
T o

(a)

Income tax expense/(credit) (Continuea)
(iij) cambodia profits tax

Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Co. Ltd. (“Agile”), the
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group in Cambodia,
which ceased to be a subsidiary of the Group on
30 September 2024 (note 29), in 2024, received tax
reassessments from the tax authority for the period
from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2022.

Pursuant to the Cambodia tax laws, Agile is subject
to 20% profits tax rate or Minimum Tax at 1% of total
revenue exclusive of value added tax, whichever
is higher, if it is not qualified for the conditions for
exemption of Minimum Tax. During the period ended
30 September 2024 and the year ended 31 December
2023, Agile was loss-making and, according to the
view of the management, Agile maintained proper
accounting records before its disposal in September
2024 and pursuant to the tax regulations, Agile
is entitled to be exempted from Income Tax and
Minimum Tax. Such tax exposure (including additional
taxation, penalty and interest) was no longer related
to the Group after the disposal of Agile on 30
September 2024.

(iv) PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”)

)

CIT is provided at the rate of 25% (2023: 25%) on the
assessable profit of the entities within the Group
incorporated in the PRC.

PRC withholding income tax

According to the CIT Law, as there is a tax treaty
arrangement between the PRC and Hong Kong where
the Group's foreign immediate holding companies
are located, a withholding tax on dividends from
subsidiaries in the PRC has been provided for at a
rate of 5% during the year (2023: 5%).
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24 FISHiEX(EBR) (&) 24 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (continued)
(b) FiEBMEx  (E&)HZRAD (b) Numerical reconciliation of income tax
expense/(credit)
AEFEBBAGETN (BB The tax on the Group's profit/(loss) before tax differs from
HAERNEREANS I EEEY the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rates
NEBERBANMRITENIEH applicable to profit or loss of the Group's entities in the
SR COFBOT: respective jurisdictions as follows:

BE+-A=1t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—ENEF —E-=F

2024 2023
FER TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000

BRETERAER, (5E) Profit/(l0ss) before income tax 23,542 (5,323)

REBANERAERAALER Tax calculated at rates applicable
EREENHERTENTIE to profit or loss of the Group's
entities in the respective

jurisdictions 5,649 (1,307)
BETEBEREG Over provision in prior years (172) -
WERBRELEMSHEED Tax losses for which no deferred
HIEEE income tax assets were
recognised 2,630 2,420
{58 AR A1 3 M T SRR AE B 18 Utilisation of tax losses for which
BEMNBIBER no deferred tax assets were
recognised previously (872) (772)
BAMBRHBA Income not subject to tax (1,298) (631)
EEE Expenses not deductible for
tax purposes 206 57
REGHFRBEMBEAR T SE Tax effect of withholding tax on
AN IELE the distributable profits of
the Group's PRC subsidiaries 498 (140)
SRR (Ek) Income tax expense/(credit) 6,641 (373)
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25 SRER(FHE)

(@) SREXRF, (EE)
SREXEFN, (FR)BREAT
A A PRF] (518)
B LA B BT B AT
o

25 EARNINGS/(LOSSES) PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings/(losses) per share
Basic earnings/(losses) per share is calculated by dividing
the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to equity holders
of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

BE+-—A=1t—HILEE

Year ended 31 December

—E_=4F
2023

—E-mE
2024

RAREREEARBEEA Profit/(loss) for the year attributable
wHL (BR) (F8T) to equity holders of the Company
(HK$'000) 16,901 (4,950)
B BT E AR INAE T Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue 600,000,000 600,000,000
FREARREAN, (EE) (Br) Basic earnings/(losses) per share
(HK$) 0.0282 (0.0083)

(b) EREBBEER(FEHE)
HREBE T -_NF+_A=+—
BEFEATEELBEHEYEN
ETER(ZE_=F:8) HER
BEAR (BE)SNRERER
ar,/ (EE)-

26 BE
BE-_Z-_NE+-A=+—HILFE"

ARAESTERERTREE (ZZ
—ZFE) e

(b) Diluted earnings/(losses) per share
As there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares during
the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil), diluted
earnings/(losses) per share was equal to basic earnings/
(losses) per share.

26 DIVIDEND

No dividend was approved and declared by the directors of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).
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27 BT 27 SUBSIDIARIES

RZBE-_WNF+-_A=+—HHHEAR The following is a list of subsidiaries as at 31 December 2024:

144

S -

DAEH

Name of company

E R R

Type of legal
status

FEEK

Principal activities

MEBAR-REABELEE ((REEZHEE)EMRY EEBEEREERESR
Subsidiaries - incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), operated in Hong Kong and

directly owned

2RTR
HERK
Issued and
paid up
capital

FEREREREI

Effective percentage of
equity holding

—s-mE
2024

—T-=F

2023

Higrowth Ventures Limited BREMF REER 1,000 7T 100% 100%
Higrowth Ventures Limited Limited liability Investment holding USD1,000 100% 100%
REEBRERAR BERER REER 1,001 7T 100% 100%
Rich Vast International Limited Limited liability Investment holding USD1,001 100% 100%
BTREBRAA AREE BREER 1,001% 7T 100% 100%
Mega Dollar Investment Limited Limited liability Investment holding USD1,001 100% 100%
BREBARAR BREME REER 1,225% 7T 100% 100%
Splendid Gains International Limited Limited liability Investment holding USD1,225 100% 100%
Hanson Global International Limited BREMF REER 1005 7T 100% 100%
Hanson Global International Limited Limited liability Investment holding usD100 100% 100%
BEZRAR AR BERER REER E 100% 100%
Portbase Holdings Limited Limited liability Investment holding USD1 100% 100%
MEAR-RTIEEMRIREERBERS
Subsidiaries - incorporated and operated in the PRC and indirectly owned
REARRRERERAF INEBERE PR pE 8 40,000,000/ 7T 100% 100%
PR %%
Dongguan Speedy Garment Wholly foreign owned Apparel Supply HK$40,000,000 100% 100%
Manufacturing Company Limited enterprise Chain Servicing
Business
BEAR (RR)BRAA NEBERE PR it pE 5 10,000,000 & 100% 100%
(ZRERERK (BN ARARF) PR %%
Koyip Garment (Dongguan) Manufactory -~ Wholly foreign owned Apparel Supply HK$10,000,000 100% 100%

Ltd. (formerly as Koyip Garment
(Huizhou) Manufactory Ltd.)

enterprise

Chain Servicing
Business
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27 MIBAT (&) 27 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

ERTR
BB
Issued and
paid up
capital

AAER R 3 Bl FREK FERERERE D

Effective percentage of
equity holding

Type of legal
status

Principal
activities

Name of company

WEBAR-REAEMRUREBRMERR

Subsidiaries - incorporated and operated in Hong Kong and indirectly owned

RERFHEK (BR)ERDA

Speedy Garment Manufacturing
(Hong Kong) Limited

BEEX (HK)ERAF

Jointex Garment Manufactory Limited

BERKARAT

Goalwill Garment Manufactory Limited

EREX(FE)ARAA

Pageant Enterprise (Hong Kong) Limited

BELXERAF

Well Faith Enterprise Limited

EREME

Limited liability

EREME

Limited liability

ERAMLE

Limited liability

BREL

Limited liability

BREL

Limited liability

MRS e
RIS
Apparel Supply
Chain Servicing
Business
AR e
RIS %
Apparel Supply
Chain Servicing
Business
PRt e
RS E
Apparel Supply
Chain Servicing
Business
PRt e
e
Apparel Supply
Chain Servicing
Business
PR 5 ft e 32
PR %%
Apparel Supply
Chain Servicing
Business

10,0007% 7T

HK$10,000

1,000,000/ 7T

HK$1,000,000

10,0007 7T

HK$10,000

10,0007 7T

HK$10,000

10,0007 7T

HK$10,000

R o ANNUAL REPORT 2024

—E-NE
2024

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

—E-=F

2023

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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28 REREBER 28 CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(a) R&EMBRES (@) cash generated from operations

BE+-A=+—-HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-mE —ZE-=F
2024 2023
THERT FABT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRmF (EE) Profit/(loss) for the year 16,901 (4,950)
BTHSHEELDAE: Adjustments for:
-FTSBAYX (Eke) - Income tax expense/(credit) (note 24)

(Ffi5E24) 6,641 (373)
-y & (MIEE20) - Depreciation (note 20) 3,980 11,123
-ME - BE RS ERE — Impairment of property, plant and

(Hf5E6) equipment (note 6) - 9,891

-HEME - BENMREEIE - Net losses/(gains) on disposal of
O (WeEs ) FEE (H5E19) property, plant and equipment

(note 19) 332 (65)
- U (B 3E23) — Finance income (note 23) (2,415) (3,190)
—Rb & AR A (B 3E23) — Finance costs (note 23) 3,958 7,140
—fE 5 Es 18 F RE (MIEE19) - Net foreign exchange losses (note 19) 716 221
-GFEREREE (H:E20) - Allowance for inventory impairment
(note 20) 1,642 1,404
-FEEt (B[R RIRBE - Accrual/(reversal) of allowance for
(F7E21) doubtful debts (note 21) 697 (102)
~-LENBRREE — Losses on disposal of a subsidiary
(KF5E19) (note 19) 3,966 -
—E N E R W - Gains on modification of lease
(Mf5E19) agreement (note 19) - 27)

BIEE S B EATAAEE T - Operating profit before working

capital changes: 36,418 21,072
-FE — Inventories (34,297) 3,484
- BRF R E A U FRTE - Trade and other receivables (55,673) 9,506
-TEf B — Prepayments 5,560 (9,239)
-ENER R EMENZKE - Trade and other payables 31,595 4,598
-EHaE - Contract liabilities 750 486

K (A /FERE Cash (used in)/generated from
operations (15,647) 29,907
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28

ReREBER (H)

(b) EHFaREREXRT HEWE
5 KR SRR

28 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds
from disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise:

BE+t-HA=1+—HILEFE
Year ended 31 December

—E-NE =4

2024 2023

FTHExT T T

HK$'000 HK$'000

BREFE (M5E6) Net book amount (note 6) 531 488

HEWE HERZE Net (losses)/gains on disposal

(E18) Wz F 58 of property, plant and equipment

(K$5E19) (note 19) (332) 65
HEME BERRBEME Proceeds from disposal of property,

FKIE plant and equipment 199 553

(c) REFEHEK

(c)

Net cash reconciliation

R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-ME —ZEZ=F
2024 2023
FET T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BehBeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 87,342 96,173
RHERITIFR Short-term bank deposits - 30,942
B ERNRIE-ER—FR Finance payables — repayable
EE within one year (54,889) (30,591)
RITEE-ER—FREE Bank borrowings — repayable
within one year (21,163) (65,918)
HEABE-ER—FNEE Lease liabilities — repayable
within one year - (222)
REFHE Net cash 11,290 30,384
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28 BWEREER (#) 28 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)
(c) B FHEYEKRE) (c) Net cash reconciliation (Continued)

8E REEHFEEE
Assets Liabilities from financing activities
MERTH
BeRRE BHST MERIH MERIH NUBEN MERIH
ZEN #% MEEGRE MHHEEEE RE MRTEE

Lease Lease Finance Bank

Cash Short- liabilities liabilities  payables borrowings

and cash  termbank due within  due after due within  due within
equivalents deposits 1 year 1 year 1 year 1 year Total
THT THL TBT THT TR TEL THEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

WZE2-=%-B-H Net cash as at

ZBEFE 1 January 2023 160,720 - (2,305) (331) (43,301) (108,311) 6,472
Remeg Cash flows (63,443) 30,942 2,071 - 12,710 42,393 24,673
% Foreign exchange

adjustments (1,104) - - - - - (1,104)
- Transfer - - (331) 331 - - -
HinZ3) Other changes

REBR Lease modification - - 343 - - - 343

FlBFAX Interest expense - - @) - (1,726) (5371) (7,140)

FEMNT (25 AR Interest payments

AETE) (presented as operating
cash flows) - - 43 - 1,726 5371 7,140

WZE-=%+-A=1+-H Netcashasat
ZBEFE 31 December 2023 96,173 30,942 (222) - (30,591) (65,918) 30,384

RZE-ME-A-A Net cash as at

ZREFHE 1 January 2024 96,173 30,942 (222) - (30,591) (65,918) 30,384
BenE Cash flows (7,316) (30,942) 222 - (24,566) 44,755 (17,847)
ERE Foreign exchange

adjustments (1,515) - - - 268 - (1,247)
g3 Transfer - - - - - - -
& Other changes

FleFAZ Interest expense - - %] - 2,157) (1,798) (3958)

FISFH (25 A E Interest payments

RenE) (presented as
operating cash flows) - - 3 - 2,157 1,798 3958

RZE-ME+=-A=1—H Netcashasat
ZREFHE 31 December 2024 87302 - - - (54,889) (21,163) 11,290
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29 HEHWBLQTA 29 DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY
R-ZEBE-_MEANA=1+H AEEHH On 30 September 2024, the Group disposed its entire equity
fEAgile 2 ERELE T —BE =T interests in Agile to a third party, at a consideration of
(B 53,300,000/ Lo HEFIBEMAT : HK$3,300,000. Details of the disposal are as follows:

Mt
Total
FAET
HK$'000
B U ER IR & Cash received 3,300
BIPENRE Total disposal considerations 3,300
FIbEWB AR FEERE Total net assets of the subsidiary disposed of (7,266)
HEEE Losses on the disposal (3,966)
HEMBREE kML ERS Cash proceeds from disposals, net of cash
disposed of
BB S & R E Cash considerations received 3,300
WML ENBARE SR Less: cash and cash equivalents in the subsidiary
BeEEY disposed of (1,797)
LERS TN FE Net cash inflow on disposal 1,503
REEMEEFEERTMAECHANER Difference between the consideration and carrying amount of
733,966,000/ 7T - E NS 2 E K= X net assets disposed amounting to HK$3,966,000 was recognised
mIEMEE (W) —F8E AR in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income within
R o “Other losses/(gains) — net”.

3R o ANNUAL REPORT 2024 149



AR O WIS R EE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30

EXBELRS

AEBNEBEERIERRR AEX
TRERAT (REBELEHSFMA
N ) B A AR F)54.54%8% 1) o 7N 52 E
MEREES A RITRERBEEREE
(I|HEE]) »

HEFP S BENERAMREHEM
AR RERMETASEL T B REE
RREHEBMEAZE S AZT K
BRAERE-

ARNBEERE UWTRAIALTAR
HE-_T-_WEFE_ZET-_=F+=_H
—+-ALFEHEAESEETEARS
NBEBREET

DR AL

Company/Individual

REMARENEEEEARAR ([REXE])

REMAENEERERALA
(
("Dongguan Tianai")

BEBXAERAF ([FHE])

BHEEKFRAA]

(Master Trend Garments Ltd.) (“Master Trend")

SRUERKARAR (TBEMEE])
BEBERKERDA

30 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The immediate and ultimate holding company of the Group is
Sky Halo Holdings Limited (incorporated in the BVI), which owns
54.54% of the Company’s shares. The ultimate controlling party
and chief executive officer of the Group is Mr. Huang Chih Shen
("Mr. Huang").

Parties are considered to be related if one party has, directly
or indirectly, the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other parties in making financial
and operating decisions.

The directors of the Company are of the view that the following
companies and individuals were related parties that had
significant transactions or balances with the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023:

HEAEEHER
Relationship with the Group

&S A RH L R
Controlled by Mr. Huang and his brother

Dongguan Shi Tianai Property Management Company Limited)

BREEERELRE
Controlled by Mr. Huang and his brother

mE s R E A
Controlled by Mr. Huang and his sister

(Shing Fun Knitting & Garment Limited) (“Shing Fun Knitting")
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30 EXBEARS (&) 30 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a) BAEFRXEF (@) Related party transactions
BRABmREMENREFEEIN Saved as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,
REBEEZZE_NF+=_/F=+— during the year ended 31 December 2024, the following
BIEFE RNEESEEER#ET transactions were carried out between the Group and
UWTRG - ARBEERE BiE related parties. In the opinion of the directors of the
FRGTINABERBEPET Company, the related party transactions were carried out
BBGEF TR E BB E T in the normal course of business and at terms negotiated
& o between the Group and the respective related parties.

HE+-A=1+t—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
—ENEF —E-=F

2024 2023
T TAET
HK$'000 HK$'000

() ENEEREHBEERRS () Shortterm lease expenses

payable or paid to
RERE Dongguan Tianai - 1,600
B L s Shing Fun Knitting - 120
o Master Trend 120 120
120 1,840
(b) SREEETH (b) Senior management's compensations

BE+t-A=+—HIEE
Year ended 31 December
—E_-MF —E_=F

2024 2023
FE T THE T
HK$'000 HK$'000

TERFSUREMEYEF  Wages and salaries and other

benefits in kind 9,970 7,600
R A Social security costs 86 72
10,056 7,672
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31 RATFMBERRRR FEEE 31 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

R+=B=+—H
As at 31 December
—S-UE —E =4
2024 2023
FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current assets
KRB AR ZEE Investments in subsidiaries 46,868 46,868
REEE Current assets
AN ] Prepayments 227 -
H e Y 5k IE Other receivables 64,269 63,869
RehBEeZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 31 59
64,527 63,928
EEHE Total assets 111,395 110,796
e EQUITY
KATEZFEAELEEZE Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company
i 7% Share capital 60,000 60,000
f& 10w B Share premium 53,441 53,441
HMEE Other reserve (b) 46,837 46,837
Syt Accumulated losses (a) (180,561) (180,330)
(20,283) (20,052)
=R LIABILITIES
REBE Current liability
H b fE I FRIB Other payables 131,678 130,848
Em kB EEE Total equity and liability 111,395 110,796
RARMBRAKRER T _AF=H The statement of financial position of the Company was
“tHNNHBAESEgHETHILATRESR approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2025 and was
Fo signed on its behalf.
BEER EET®
Huang Chih Shen Huang Li Hun, Serlina
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31 ARFAHBRRARRFEEB
(%)

(@ ARAFRRFAEREH

31 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

(@) Movement of accumulated losses of the
Company

TAET
HK$'000

R-E=-=%—A—H As at 1 January 2023 (172,047)
FANEE Loss for the year (8,283)
R-ZE-_=F+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2023 (180,330)
R-ZE-_MNME—HF—H As at 1 January 2024 (180,330)
FANEE Loss for the year (231)
R-ZEB-NME+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2024 (180,561)

HE—_T-=F+-A=+—HI
FEBEITZFERRARBIRAF
EBhE M B A 7 2% & R AR
BEEG EEAFEAEELSRAY
BEELEFE

(b) HtbfEfE
ARREMEEERE-T——F
TERCE B P R MY A BRI E
PR B BE R M AT IRR
MWEEZ B ERE-

The loss for the year ended 31 December 2023 was
mainly attributable to the impairment provision recognised
by the Company during the year for its investments in
subsidiaries, which did not have impact on the Group's
consolidated financial results during the year.

(b) Other reserve
Other reserve of the Company represented the difference
between the investment cost in the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the reorganisation completed in 2012 over the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued
in exchange thereof.
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32 EERFETHAEMS 32 DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

154

BE-_E-ME+-B=t-HLEE

EMOLUMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2024

Eshe

Directors'
Fees
TiEx
HK$'000

g

Salary
T
HK$'000

Rfea

Discretionary
honus

T
HK$'000

EXmEHRERN
STt
Employer's
contribution to
a retirement
benefit scheme
TET

HK$'000

Total
TERL
HK$'000

HirEE Executive directors

BE4E (IEH0) Mr. Huang (note (i) - 4,180 1,500 18 5,698

BBELTL Ms Huang Li Hun, Serlina - 1,430 - 18 1,448

BUFHTEE Indepencent non-executive directors

ERBLE Mr. Wong Ting Kon 180 - - - 180

(ki e Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 180 - - - 180

RAERE Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 180 - - - 180

RAER %4 (M) Mr. Chan Tsang Mo (note (i) 180 - - - 180
720 5,610 1,500 36 7,866

BE-B-=E+-R=t-HLEE

Year ended 31 December 2023

5

Directors'
Fees
AL
HKS'000

Salary
BT

HKS'000

Bita

Discretionary
bonus
Fign
HK$'000

TA

Employer's
contribution to
a retirement
benefit scheme
BT

HKS'000

Total
THL
HK$'000

HITEE Executive directors

BRE (H50) Mr. Huang (note () - 3402 - 18 3420

EBLAL Ms Huang Li Hun, Serlina - 1,430 - 18 1,448

BUHHTEE Independent non-executive directors

BEBEE Mr. Wong Ting Kon 180 - - - 180

hikat Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 180 - - - 180

ROELE Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 180 - - - 180

RiRIEL (B Dr. Chan Chung Bun, Bunny (note (i) 15 - - - 15

BRI %4 (BIFEGD) Mr. Chan Tsang Mo (note (i) 60 - - - 60
615 43832 - 36 5,483
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32 EERFEMTHRAEME (A

feE

(iii)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

BREERADBTRER -BREEEREE
—EEFt A=t RLEFERERA
EMELAME (ZT_=F 8)-

MR-ZT-=%—F=+—8 BEEWwEL
HEBUERATEERR _ZS=_=FNA
- HEERCEREZTAB L IENTE
EREZNBE_Z-_NEFR T =
F+ZA=+-—BLEE BEARATES
BRI BT

HE-_Z-_NF+-_A=+—HILFE XK
SEHERESIAETAME  EARSIH
A SN A TR B B B ) 2R 3 1 R BE B A
B(ZE_=F ).

EERNKAH
TERESEEAQNRREMBER
AN EBMRENEMRESmEN
SN ZERF S (ZEZ=F:
) o

EERLEBRBENSRIF S

FRWEME ST (A FRER
Fla 1EAEBRAKIEZERK
IERBHHE (2 Z=F &) -

RRERHUESERBEMAE=5X
HHRE
MENE - BALTRENRAES
RIS (R RAERTEFTHREUEA
SR MM REMERRE=
THRE(ZT_=F:8)-

Ex ZESEHNZAERE
REEEAFEENERZENK
BLUERUARERZEALH
HtXZHNEH
FRTEEF REFEHNL
AEERESEEHENERECZE
FHBUEFARERZSEALH
HRXHHEBERN (T =4
&) o

32 DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Notes:

(iii)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Mr. Huang is the chief executive officer of the Company. No director has
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the year ended 31
December 2024 (2023: Nil).

On 31 January 2023, Dr. Chan Chung Bun, Bunny retired as an independent
non-executive director and Mr. Chan Tsang Mo was appointed as an
independent non-executive director later on 31 August 2023. Except this, no
director of the Company was appointed/resigned during the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office (2023: Nil).

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any
directors in respect of their other services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company or its
subsidiary undertaking (2023: Nil).

Directors’ termination payments or benefits
No payment was made or benefit provided to directors as
compensation for the early termination of the appointment
or in respect of termination of the services of directors
during the year (2023: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

No consideration was provided to or receivable by any
third party for making available the services of a person as
a director of a company, or in any other capacity while as a
director (2023: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors

There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors during the year
(2023: Nil).

155

37 o ANNUAL REPORT 2024



RO MRS <M 5
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32 EERFETHAEME (4) 32 DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(e) EEEXRZ ZHIAEGHNHPH
BEARER
B BRREMEMATEESEIN
RERSEZZ O FF RN
M AEEBMEST TS RASE
EEEMANGZEZTHEERBE
FHERHBEEAREZEER S
LTHRAEH (T B -=4F )

(e) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,
no significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year 2024
(2023: Nil).

33 HttEARSHEEHE 33 SUMMARY OF OTHER MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

A ERERRZETEE M B RKREH
RAZEMBEEERNRTBRRBE R
ABEHPI ZERRRABRINFE

This note provides a list of other potentially material accounting
policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements. These policies have been consistently
MEAER B -ZSPBERERTDAR applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
EE(AARRARENBRRANR) R The financial statements are for the Group consisting of the
&lo Company and its subsidiaries.

(a) &fHtRAIRER AR (a) Principles of consolidation and equity

accounting
(i) HERA (i)  Subsidiaries
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Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of
the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
(refer to note 33(b)).
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(a) Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)
(i)  Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the statement
of comprehensive income, statement of changes in

equity and financial position respectively.

(ii) Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with owners of the Group. A change in
ownership interest results in an adjustment between
the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests to reflect their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount
of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and
any consideration paid or received is recognised in a
separate reserve within equity attributable to owners

of the Company.

(b) Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether
equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary

comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred;

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of the

acquired business;

° equity interests issued by the Group;

. fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a

contingent consideration arrangement; and
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(b) Business combinations (Continued)

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’'s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the:
° consideration transferred:;

° amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity; and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than
the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified
as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
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(b) Business combinations (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or l0ss.

(c)

(d)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chairman of the board, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the chief operating decision-maker.

Foreign currency translation

(M)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), which is the Company's
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally
recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred in
equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges
and qualifying net investment hedges or are
attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign
operation.

Foreign exchange gain and loss that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, within “finance
costs”. All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within “other (losses)/gains —

"

net".
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(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iiij) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

o income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on the
dates of the transactions); and

o all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

(e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.
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(8)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 33(g)).

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in
profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Acquired computer software licences

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are amortised over their
estimated useful lives of 3 to 5 years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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(h)

Other financial assets

(i)

(ii)

(iir)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement category:

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. The Group classifies its debt instruments
as financial assets at amortised cost.
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(h) Other financial assets (Continued)

(M

(iiij) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are assets that
are held for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss
and presented in other gains together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

(iv) Impairment
The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables, see note
3.1 for further details.

Inventories

Raw materials, work in progress and finished goods
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of
normal operating capacity. Costs are assigned to individual
items of inventory on the basis of weighted average
costs. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after
deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.
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)

(m)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial
institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity (Note 13).
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented
as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12
months after the reporting period. They are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees
paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.
In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs.
To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.
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33 SUMMARY OF OTHER MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(m) Borrowings (Continued)

(n)

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement
of financial position when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or
loss as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liabilities for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.
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(0) Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(i)

(i)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.
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(0) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(i)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and where the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

(p) Employee benefits

(i)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave that
are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect
of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected
to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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(p) Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for long service leave and annual leave
that are not expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service. These
obligations are therefore measured as the present
value of expected future payments to be made in
respect of services provided by employees up to
the end of the reporting period using the projected
unit credit method. Consideration is given to
expected future wage and salary levels, experience
of employee departures and periods of service.
Expected future payments are discounted using
market yields at the end of the reporting period
of high-quality corporate bonds with terms and
currencies that match, as closely as possible, the
estimated future cash outflows. Remeasurements as
a result of experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or 10ss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position
if the Group does not have an unconditional right
to defer settlement for at least twelve months after
the reporting period, regardless of when the actual
settlement is expected to occur.

Post-employment obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “Pension Scheme”) set up pursuant to
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for all of its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
Pension Scheme. The assets of the Pension Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administrated fund. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid.
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(p) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iij) Post-employment obligations (Continued)
Pursuant to the government regulations in the PRC,
the Group is required to contribute an amount
to certain retirement benefit schemes based on
approximately 7% to 20% of the wages for the year
of those employees in the PRC. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of those employees of the Group.
Contributions to these retirement benefits schemes
are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as incurred.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations
in Cambodia, all enterprises or establishment must
register with the National Social Security Fund
("NSSF"). Employers are obliged to pay contributions
to the NSSF for occupational risk and heath care
schemes for all employees. In occupational risk
scheme, the contribution rate is 0.8% of employee’s
monthly salary whereas in health care scheme the
contribution rate is 2.6% of employee’s monthly
salary. Contributions to these benefits schemes
are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as incurred.

(q) Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make
good obligations are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.
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(q) Provisions (Continued)

r

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Earnings per share
(i)  Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

o the profit attributable to owners of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares;

o by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares
issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares.

(ii) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in
the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account:

J the after income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential ordinary shares, and

o the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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(s)

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payment that are based on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

. payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period.
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33 SUMMARY OF OTHER MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(s)

(t

(u)

(v)

Leases (Continued)
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received,

o any initial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.

Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer
at the discretion of the Group, on or before the end of
the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the
reporting period.

Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in profit or loss as part of other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes, see note 23. Any other interest
income is included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets
the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grants will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Al o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



-_— RIERKIZERERAE

EE” SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	主席報告
	財務摘要
	財務概要
	管理層討論及分析
	董事及高級管理層簡歷
	企業管治報告
	環境、社會及管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合全面收益表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	封底



